
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              October 1, 2019

          

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

Board of Supervisors Room
County Administrative Center

224 North Edwards
Independence, California

  All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please obtain a 
card  from  the Board Clerk and  indicate each  item you would  like  to discuss.   Return  the completed card  to  the Board Clerk before  the Board 
considers the item (s) upon which you wish to speak. You will be allowed to speak about each item before the Board takes action on it. 

Any member  of  the  public may  also make  comments  during  the  scheduled  “Public  Comment”  period  on  this  agenda  concerning  any  subject 
related to the Board of Supervisors or County Government.  No card needs to be submitted in order to speak during the “Public Comment” period.
Public Notices: (1)    In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,  if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please 
contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 8780373.  (28 CFR 35.10235.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
County  to  make  reasonable  arrangements  to  ensure  accessibility  to  this  meeting.  Should  you  because  of  a  disability  require  appropriate 
alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda 
available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an agenda item 
for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors,  is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be 
available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per 
Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).              
Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at 
the Board’s convenience.

October 1, 2019  8:30 AM
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION –  County of 
Inyo et al. v. Amerisourcebergen Drug Corporation et al (National Prescription Opiate 
Litigation – Northern District of Ohio. MDL 2804).

 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – 
Significant exposure to potential litigation pursuant to (2) of subdivision (d) of 
Government Code §54956.9 (one case).

 

  4. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Regarding employee 
organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo 
County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman 
Deputy Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health 
and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff 
Thomson.

 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all opensession items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.)
 

10 A.M. 5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

  6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
 

  7. PUBLIC COMMENT
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              October 1, 2019

  8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes)
 

  9. INTRODUCTIONS  The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: 
Daniel Armogida, Deputy, and Josyln Cash, Correctional Officer, Sheriff's 
Department.

 

  10. PROCLAMATION  Supervisor Kingsley  Request Board approve a proclamation 
recognizing the dedication of the newly minted Alabama Hills National Scenic Area.

 

DEPARTMENTAL  PERSONNEL ACTIONS 
 

  11. County Administrator  Parks & Recreation  Request Board find that, consistent 
with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for 
one (1) Park and Campground Maintenance Helper position exists in the General 
Fund as certified by the Assistant Administrator and concurred with by the County 
Administrator and AuditorController; B) where due to the seasonal nature of the 
position it is unlikely that the position could be filled by internal candidates meeting 
the qualifications for the position, an open recruitment is appropriate to ensure 
qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the external recruitment and hiring of one 
(1) Parks and Campground Maintenance Helper at Range PT50 ($15.05  
$18.27/hr.).

 

  12. Health & Human Services  Social Services  Request Board approve the job 
description for the Social Services Aide classification and change the Department's 
authorized strength by deleting one (1) Health and Human Services Specialist III at 
Range 57 and adding one (1) Social Services Aide at Range 60.

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator)
 

  13. Agricultural Commissioner  Request Board approve Resolution No. 2019
44, titled "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of 
California Approving the Application for Grant Funds from the Sierra Nevada 
Conservancy for the Eastern Sierra Noxious Weeds Project," and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign.

 

  14. County Administrator  Request Board authorize payment to the Town of Mammoth 
Lakes for a prioryear invoice in the amount of $5,000 as part of Inyo County's share 
of reimbursement for clerking activities related to the Eastern Sierra Council of 
Governments.

 

  15. County Administrator  Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign a letter of support for Eastern Sierra Transit Authority's FTA Section 5304 grant 
application to plan future transportation services.

 

  16. County Administrator  Advertising County Resources  Request Board approve 
final payments from the 201819 Advertising County Resources Budget in the 
following amounts: $3,357 to the Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce for the 2019 
Images of Inyo Shoot Out Photo Contest; $1,416.50 to the Lone Pine Chamber of 
Commerce for Concerts in the Courtyard; and $1,300 to the Friends of the Inyo for 
the 2019 Owens Lake Bird Festival.

 

  17. County Administrator  Information Services  Request Board amend the July 9, 
2019 minutes and corresponding Board Order for the Canon Financial Services 
Contract Amendment approved by your Board, to add a "not to exceed" contract 
amount of $100,800 not included in the original departmental request.

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              October 1, 2019

  18. Health & Human Services  Behavioral Health  Request Board approve the 
Prevention Early Intervention (PEI) Three Year Evaluation Report as a supplement of 
the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Plan Update for Fiscal Year 20182019 and 
authorize the HHS Deputy Director Behavioral Health Division, as the Mental Health 
Director, to submit the report to the California Mental Health Services Oversight and 
Accountability Commission (MHSOAC).

 

  19. Health & Human Services  Health/Prevention  Request Board: A) approve an 
amendment to the August 6, 2019 minutes and Board Order regarding Standard 
Agreement No. 1810869 between the County of Inyo and the California Department 
of Public Health; and B) authorize the HHS Director to sign a current Contract 
Certification Clause for resubmittal to the State. 

 

  20. Public Works  Request Board: A) approve the plans and specifications for the 
Mazourka Shop Fencing Project; and B) authorize the Public Works Director to 
advertise and bid the project.

 

  21. Public Works  Road Dept.  Request Board approve the purchase of one 
Caterpillar Inc. Model 918M Wheel Loader from Quinn Company of City of Industry, 
CA in an amount not to exceed $157,322.00.

 

  22. Public Works  Road Dept.  Request Board approve the closure of a portion of Line 
Street in Lone Pine on Wednesday, October 2, 2019 between the hours of 12:30 
p.m. and 1:30 p.m.

 

  23. Public Works  Road Dept.  Request Board approve the closure of a portion of 
School Street in Big Pine from 8:45 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. on October 12, 2019 for the 
purpose of the Big Pine Homecoming Parade. 

 

  24. Public Works  Road Dept.  Request Board approve the closure of a portion of 
Bartell Road on October 5, 2019 between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. for 
the purpose of the Big Pine Paiute Tribe's Fall Fandango.

 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience)
 

  25. Health & Human Services  Health/Prevention  Request Board ratify and approve 
Standard Agreement Number 1910419 between the County of Inyo and the 
California Department of Public Health for the provision of HIV surveillance services 
for a total grant amount of $23,340 from the period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 
2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign the Standard Agreement, Contractor Certification, Civil Rights 
Form, and the Darfur Contracting Act Certification.

 

  26. Sheriff  
Request Board: 
A) amend the Fiscal Year 20192020 Sheriff Safety Budget 022710 as follows: 
increase estimated revenue in Federal Grants Revenue Code No. 4555 by $2,500 
and increase appropriation in Overtime Object Code 5003 by $2,500 (4/5ths vote 
required); and
B) ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Drug 
Enforcement Administration of United States for the provision of Organized Crime 
Drug Enforcement Task Forces FY 2019 Agreement in an amount not to exceed 
$2,500 for the period of April 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019, and authorize the 
Sheriff or designee to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained.

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              October 1, 2019

  27. County Administrator  Personnel  Request Board ratify and approve the July 1, 
2019 June 30, 2022 Memorandum of Understanding between the County of the Inyo 
and the Law Enforcement Administrators Association (LEAA).

 

  28. County Administrator  Recycling & Waste Management/Emergency Services 
 Request Board consider approving and authorizing the Chairperson to 
sign Resolution No. 201945, waiving gate fees for green waste disposal at all Inyo 
County Landfills on Saturday, November 2, 2019 and Sunday, November 3, 
2019 and quarterly thereafter on the third weekends of January, April, July and 
October of each year until changed by Board consensus. 

 

  29. County Administrator  Request Board: A) conduct workshop regarding regional 
dispatch; and B) authorize expenditure of up to $25,000 to fund 25% of a feasibility 
study.

 

  30. County Administrator  Emergency Services  Request Board discuss and 
consider continuation of the local emergency that was proclaimed as the result of 
Taboose Fire.

 

  31. County Administrator  Emergency Services  Request Board discuss and 
consider staff’s recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency 
known as the “Here It Comes Emergency” that was proclaimed in anticipation of run
off conditions from nearrecord snowpack posing extreme peril to the safety of 
property and persons in Inyo County.

 

  32. County Administrator  Emergency Services  Request Board discuss and 
consider staff’s recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency 
known as the “Rocky Road Emergency” that was proclaimed as the result of flooding, 
mud, and rock landslides and deep snow drifts over portions of Inyo County caused 
by an atmospheric river weather phenomena that began January 3, 2017 and 
continued throughout February.

 

  33. Clerk of the Board  Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meetings of September 10, 2019 and September 17, 2019.

 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after 
the scheduled time.)
 

34. PUBLIC WORKS  11 A.M.  Request Board: A) hold a public hearing to receive and 
consider input on proposed increases in the County's rates and charges for water 
service; and B) if the Board finds and determines that it has not received written 
protests to the proposed rates and charges from a majority of the affected parcels, 
then approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign Resolution No. 201946, 
approving new or increased rates for town water system services.

 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff)
 

  35. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS 
 



County of Inyo

Board of Supervisors
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Supervisor Matt Kingsley 
 
SUBJECT:  Proclamation Celebrating the Alabama Hills National Scenic Area 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
PROCLAMATION - Supervisor Kingsley - Request Board approve a proclamation recognizing the dedication of 
the newly minted Alabama Hills National Scenic Area.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On March 12, 2019, the John D. Dingell Jr. Conservation, Management, and Recreation Act, also known as S.47, 
was signed into law. Included in the omnibus bill was the California Desert Protection and Recreation Act, 
sponsored by Congressman Paul Cook, that designates more than 18,000 acres of the Alabama Hills a National 
Scenic Area.

The designation brings long overdue recognition to the valuable cultural, geological, historical, recreational, 
scientific, and cinematographic resources found in the landscape, along with enhanced protections to ensure 
continued access to and preservation of the land for future generations. It also is the culmination of 10 years of 
hard work on the part of the Alabama Hills Stewardship Group and the dozens of user groups and stakeholders 
they brought together in support of the designation.

A celebration in honor of the newly minted National Scenic Area is scheduled for Saturday, October 5 at the 
Museum of Western Film History from 6-8 p.m. Prior to the public reception, a pre-event ribbon cutting will take 
place to dedicate the new National Scenic Area. 

Given our Board's consistent and strong support for the Alabama Hills Stewardship Group's efforts, I request our 
Board's approval of a ceremonial proclamation celebrating the National Scenic Area designation and recognizing 
the hard work and efforts of so many over the past 10 years.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:
There is no financial impact associated with approval of this proclamation.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. AHNSA Dedication Proclamation
2. Event Flier
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/25/2019
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 9/25/2019



Commemorating the  
100 Mules Walking the Los Angeles Aqueduct 

 
     Whereas, in commemoration of the 100th Anniversary of the Los Angeles Aqueduct, artist 
Lauren Bon, the Metabolic Studio, and mule wranglers mostly from Inyo County, took 100 
mules from the Intake in the Owens Valley to the Cascades in Los Angeles, in recognition of the 
essential labor force used in the building of the Aqueduct; and 

     Whereas, the walk commenced on October 18, 2013 traveling the length of the Aqueduct 
through Inyo, Kern, and Los Angeles counties, culminating at the Cascades on November 5, 
2013, 100 years to the day from the date William Mulholland opened the gates delivering 
Owens River watershed water to the City of Los Angeles; and 

     Whereas, this project raised awareness of the mules, water source, and the direct line 
between Inyo County and the City of Los Angeles, highlighting how their history and futures 
are intertwined; and 

     Whereas, without the reliability, strength, and endurance of the mule, the Aqueduct could 
not have been built; and  

     Whereas, the mules were all obtained in Inyo County thanks to the Eastern Sierra packing 
industry, with most of the staff, equipment, and mule gear coming from the Eastern Sierra, 
including 17 trucks hauling everything from a mobile kitchen, to mule gear, corrals, hay, 
water and supplies; and  

     Whereas without the support, vision, and determination of Lauren Bon, the Metabolic 
Studio, and Lee and Jennifer Roeser of Independence, this historic and memorable event would 
not have been possible; and  

     Whereas  on November 11, 2013, the Great American Mules marched strong and proud, so 
fittingly honoring the defenders of our freedoms, at the Veterans Parade in the City of 
Glendale, and after many photographic opportunities at Griffith Park and the L.A. State 
Historic Park, the 100 mules and their wrangler team headed home to the Owens Valley to a 
heartwarming welcome home tribute in Bishop, not only the “Mule Capital of the World” but 
the home of Bishop Mule Days Celebration, and the future home of the American Mule 
Museum. 

     Now therefore be it proclaimed the Inyo County Board of Supervisors thanks the artist 
Lauren Bon, the Metabolic Studio, and Lee and Jennifer Roeser, for raising awareness of the 
importance of the mule to the history of the Owens Valley, congratulates all those who 
embraced the true pioneer spirit, blazing new trails of understanding and possibilities,  and 
commemorates this highly creative and innovative living art exhibit:  

 

“100 Mules Walking the Los Angeles Aqueduct,”  
     
     Passed and proclaimed  this 17th day of December, 2013, by the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors. 
                                                              
 ________________________________________________________________ 
 Linda Arcularius, Chairperson Board of Supervisors  

PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA CELEBRATING THE ALABAMA 

HILLS AS A NATIONAL TREASURE BY RECOGNIZING THE DEDICATION OF 

THE NEWLY MINTED ALABAMA HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC AREA 
 

Whereas, on March 12, 2019, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors gratefully joined the millions of Americans 

celebrating the U.S. President signing into law S.47, the John D. Dingell Jr. Conservation, Management, and Recreation 

Act; and 
  

Whereas, among the more than 100 bills contained in S.47 was the California Desert Protection and Recreation Act 

sponsored by Congressman Paul Cook, which designated more than 18,000 acres of existing federal land in Inyo County 

as the Alabama Hills National Scenic Area; and  
 

Whereas, the purpose of a National Scenic Area, as stated in the legislation, is to “ … conserve, protect, and enhance for 

the benefit, use, and enjoyment of present and futures generations the nationally significant scenic, cultural, geological, 

educational, biological, historical, recreational, cinematographic, and scientific resources …;” and 
  

Whereas, the Alabama Hills have long been treasured for these many valuable resources, starting thousands of years 

ago with the indigenous residents of the valley, continuing in the 1920s with Hollywood film producers who inspired a 

century-long cinematic love affair with the landscape, and enduring today as locals and visitors alike explore, study, and 

recreate in the Hills while introducing their wonders to new generations; and 
 

Whereas, the long-sought National Scenic Area designation is owed to not only overwhelming bipartisan support in both 

the House and Senate, but also the hard work, passion, and perseverance of a group of Inyo County business owners, 

community leaders, and Tribal members who believed in bringing recognition to a truly special place while preserving the 

area’s heritage and a multitude of existing uses; and  
 

Whereas, these individuals formed the Alabama Hills Stewardship Group, and were able to bring together a widespread 

and diverse collection of 30 stakeholder and 40 different user groups who shared a common love for the Hills; and 
 

Whereas, for 10 years, the Stewardship Group – with unparalleled support of stakeholder groups – wrote letters, lobbied 

lawmakers in Washington, D.C., helped draft legislation, and never lost sight of their goal; and 
 

Whereas, the National Scenic Area designation is more than the culmination of their blood, sweat, and tears: it is the 

validation of a strongly held belief in the need to spotlight the Alabama Hills as one of America’s most unique and 

treasured landscapes, as well as the need to manage these lands in a balanced way that maintains existing uses and 

preserves precious resources for the future. 
 

Now, Therefore, Be It Proclaimed, this 1st day of October 2019, that the Inyo County Board of Supervisors joins in 

celebrating the Alabama Hills as a national treasure by recognizing the dedication of the newly-minted Alabama Hills 

National Scenic Area. 

                                                                                                

  

Supervisor Dan Totheroh, District 1                                                                Supervisor Jeff Griffiths, District 2           

 

 

Supervisor Mark Tillemans, District 4          Chairperson Rick Pucci, District 3                Supervisor Matt Kingsley, District 5 



National Scenic Area Celebration
Saturday October 5, 2019

6:00 - 8:00 p.m.
Museum of Western Film History
701 S. Main Street, Lone Pine, GA

ATABAMA HIttS

ln March of 201 9, the heart of the Alabama Hills
was designated a National Scenic Area after more
than a decade of hard work by so many.

Join us for a public reception to recognize
this accomplishment and celebrate this
magnificent place with the community
of Lone Pine.

***There willbe a pre-event ribbon cutting in the Alabama Hills
at 4:00 p.m. RSVP is required for the pre-event as transportation
is limited. (RSVP at alabamahillscelebration@gmail.com).

Alabama Hills

SI'LWARDSHIP GROUP
For more information on the celebration contact Sherri Lisius
^t 1Ed C74 Enn/l



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Parks & Recreation
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  Request to Hire One Seasonal Helper for the Parks and Recreation Dept. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) Park and Campground Maintenance Helper position exists in the General Fund as certified by 
the Assistant Administrator and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where due 
to the seasonal nature of the position it is unlikely that the position could be filled by internal candidates meeting 
the qualifications for the position, an open recruitment is appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) 
approve the external recruitment and hiring of one (1) Parks and Campground Maintenance Helper at Range 
PT50 ($15.05 - $18.27/hr.).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Operation of the County parks and campgrounds relies on help from seasonal employees during the winter. The 
department is requesting that one seasonal employee be hired for the period from November through April to 
assist regular County staff in maintaining the facilities during our winter season. This position is included in the 
approved 2019/2020 budget.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to authorize filling this position, however, this is not recommended, as the position 
is needed to properly maintain the facilities.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Personnel
 
FINANCING:
Funding for this position is included in the FY 2019-20120 Parks and Recreation Budget 076998 object code 
5012.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 9/10/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/10/2019
Teresa Elliott Approved - 9/12/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 9/16/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/16/2019
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 9/16/2019



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Social Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Marilyn Mann 
 
SUBJECT:  Approve Social Services Aide job description and change authorized strength. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the job description for the Social Services Aide classification and change the 
Department's authorized strength by deleting one (1) Health and Human Services Specialist III at Range 57 and 
adding one (1) Social Services Aide at Range 60.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
During the budget hearings, your Board approved the Department's request to delete four (4) Health and Human 
Services Specialist (HHSS) III's at Range 57 from the Aging and Social Services Division and four (4) Social 
Services Aide positions at Range 60, consistent with the Merit Systems classification, contingent upon the 
Board's approval of the job description.  The Social Services Aide classification is a Merit System position and 
the attached job description is the State-approved job description for the position.  The Department respectfully 
requests that your Board adopt the description for use in recruiting and hiring vacant positions for this 
classification.

Additionally, the Department inadvertently overlooked a fifth HHSS III position that is housed in our Tecopa office 
and is respectfully requesting that your Board delete one Health and Human Services Specialist III at Range 57 
and add one Social Services Aide at Range 60.  This position provides valuable support to Social Workers in the 
provision of child welfare services, adult protective services, and In Home Supportive Services in our most 
remote area of the County.  The Department is respectfully requesting that you approve this recommended 
change in authorized strength. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could deny the request, which would result in the budget action taken by your Board not being 
implemented, as well as the one remaining HHSS III position not being aligned with others in the same 
classification. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

California Personnel System; California Department of Social Services
 
FINANCING:
State, Federal, Social Services Realignment, and County General funds. This position is budgeted 100% in the 
Social Services (055800) in the Salary and Benefits object categories.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Social Services Aide Job Description
 
APPROVALS:
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 9/23/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/23/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 9/24/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/25/2019
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 9/25/2019



CPS HR CONSULTING
invites applications for the position of:

 Social Service Aide

SALARY: 

DEPARTMENT: 

OPENING DATE: 

CLOSING DATE: 

TENTATIVE WRITTEN EXAM DATE: 

$3,684.00 - $4,475.00 Monthly 

Inyo County Health and Human Services 

 

TENTATIVE ORAL EXAM DATE - WEEK OF: 

POSITION INFORMATION: 

Under general supervision, the Social Service Aide provide supervision and care of abandoned, 
neglected, and abused children in protective custody; assists Social Workers by performing specifically 
designated tasks related to the improvement of family functioning and child care and child welfare 
services; and performs related work as required.

Social Service Aide is a paraprofessional class. Incumbents assist Social Workers by relieving them of 
routine tasks such as performing various tasks for Child Welfare Services. Incumbents work under close 
supervision within established guidelines and parameters. 

The Social Service Aide differs from the Social Worker in that the former requires a lower level of skill 
and training than the level required of a professional Social Worker.

SUPERVISION EXERCISED AND RECEIVED
Incumbents in the Social Service Aide classification receive supervision from a Social Worker Supervisor 
or other higher-level supervisor or manager.

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES: 

TYPICAL DUTIES AND EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS:

Duties may include, but are not limited to, the following:

• Conducts ongoing client needs assessments and verifies needs by contacting medical and health
services providers.

• Presents client assessments to professional staff for approval.
• Completes narrative reports regarding a client's condition and services provided and/or

recommended. Enters data regarding case and client information and contacts into automated
system.

• Makes client referrals to medical personnel or social workers as needed.
• Provides direct training and counseling to parents on parenting and household management

skills, and teaches families about nutritional meal preparation, budgeting and household care.
• Monitors the medical and psychological care of abused children.
• Supervises visits between parents and children and reports observations to social worker.
• Provides emergency child care.
• Transports or accompanies clients to appointments for service or interviews.



• May testify in juvenile court hearings.
• Assists Social Workers in providing a variety of child social services.
• Acts as liaison between clients and professional staff, individuals and groups in the community

serviced.
• Directly assists families in using and learning about the resources of society, particularly medical,

legal and employment services.
• Maintains records of work performed, and performs other related work as required.
• Performs related duties as assigned.

EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS

Knowledge of:

• Basic rules and regulations regarding child abuse reporting, and Welfare and Institution Codes.
• Departmental and community resources useful to clients served.

Ability to:

• Interview persons to obtain a variety of information applicable to the provision of social services.
• Understand and accept differences in human behavior resulting from cultural, economic or other

forms of deprivation.
• Effectively instruct parents in parenting and household skills.
• Deal with physically and sexually abused children.
• Prepare basic written reports or narratives.
• Recognize and report specific indications of need for social services.
• Maintain confidential information in accordance with legal standards and/or County regulations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relations with co-workers, outside organizations, and the

public.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:

• Operate a personal computer and other modern office equipment, including repetitive hand and
arm motions.

• Occasionally lift up to 20 pounds
• Consistently required to operate a motor vehicle.
• Communicate effectively with others in person and over the telephone.
• Interpret directions, procedures and regulations, and develop appropriate responses.
• Perform job duties under stressful conditions.
• Respond appropriately to situations.
• Maintain confidential information in accordance with legal standards and/or County regulations.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

Sixty (60) semester units or ninety (90) quarter units of college, including fifteen (15) semester units or 
twenty-two and one-half (22.5) quarter units in social welfare, social/human service, sociology, or other 
social or behavioral science;

OR
Two (2) years of full-time experience providing social services in a public or private setting to 
disadvantaged adults or children;

OR
A combination of education and comparable experience equivalent to two years of full-time experience 
which includes a minimum of fifteen (15) semester units or twenty-two and one-half (22.5) quarter 
units in social or behavioral science. When combining education and experience; fifteen (15) semester 
units or twenty-two and one-half (22.5) quarter units equal six months of experience.

Examples of social or behavioral science courses include: anthropology, criminal justice, economics, 
education, ethnic studies, history, human development, law, nursing, nutrition, philosophy, political 



science, psychology, public health, religion, social welfare, sociology, welfare, women's studies.

While the above requirements outline the minimum qualifications, applicants may be further evaluated 
for qualifications beyond those listed. Those applicants that are determined to be most highly qualified 
will be invited to participate in the next step of the selection process.

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

• A valid driver's license will be required at the time of appointment and employees may also be
required to drive their own car, provide proof of car insurance and a DMV clearance.

• Current and future vacancies will be filled contingent upon continued funding; should funding
cease, the position will be eliminated.

• Position may require pre-employment drug testing, physical and fingerprinting for a background
investigation.

• Government agencies accessing US government information, which include federal tax
information must ensure that background investigation requirements for all agency employees
and contractors that have access to federal tax information are consistent to the IRS background
investigation requirements for access to federal tax information. A background check may be
required if the position requires access to these types of records. Background requirements
consist of three components which include, fingerprinting, citizenship verification and local law
enforcement checks. Applicable agencies must conduct investigation during time of hire and
ensure a reinvestigation is conducted 10 years from the date of the previous background
investigation for each employee that has access to federal tax information.

VETERAN'S PREFERENCE
If you would like to request Veteran's preference points as part of the application packet, please attach 
a copy of your DD-214 form to your application.

EXAMINATION INFORMATION 
If supplemental questions are included as a part of this job bulletin, applicants may be rated based 
upon their responses to the supplemental questions. If rated, only those that are determined to be 
highly qualified will be invited to participate in the next step of the selection process.

SPECIAL TESTING ARRANGEMENTS
Special testing arrangements may be made to accommodate applicants for disability, military, or 
religious reasons. If you require such arrangements, please contact CPS HR Consulting at 
mss@cpshr.us or 916-471-3507 upon notification that your application has been approved. 
Documentation from medical, military, school, or church officials outlining the accommodation request 
must be received by our office a minimum of five business days prior to a scheduled examination.

ABOUT INYO COUNTY
Self-proclaimed as the Adventure Capital of the World, Inyo County offers natural and extreme 
geographic diversity. From Mount Whitney, the highest peak in the 48 contiguous US states to the 
lowest elevation in North America at Badwater Basin in Death Valley National Park, Inyo County has the 
greatest elevation difference of any of the California counties. The County is also home to the oldest life 
forms in the world with the Great Basin bristlecone pines, and notably the oldest living tree on Earth. 
Inyo County is the second largest in area in California, and the Death Valley area comprises half of the 
County.  With these extremes of nature, as you would expect, there are abundant activities, including 
world class alpine climbing, backcountry skiing, hang gliding, and mountain biking. There is a wealth of 
beauty to be found in the peaceful desert, mountain streams, granite peaks, wildflower covered 
meadows, and the historic John Muir Wilderness. The rich natural history and breathtaking scenery 
make Inyo County a favorite location for visitors and residents alike.   

APPLICATIONS MAY BE FILED ONLINE AT: 
https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/cpshr

2450 Del Paso Road



Suite 160
Sacramento, CA 95834
(916) 471-3507

mssprogram@calhr.us

Health and Human Services Specialist III (MSS Class Title: Social Service Aide) Supplemental 
Questionnaire

* 1. As of today, have you received a Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university in the
United States?

Applicants who completed their education outside of the United States must submit verification of 
degree and/or course equivalency with the application. Organizations that provide foreign education 
credential evaluation services can be found at www.naces.org. CPS HR Consulting will accept 
verification of degree and/or course equivalency from any of the listed member agencies. You must 
attach all pertinent documents before submitting the application.

 Yes
 No

2. How many college credits do you have? Please specify the number of units and whether they are
Quarter or Semester.

3. The minimum qualifications for Social Service Aide (under Pattern I) requires the equivalent to
completion of two (2) years of college, including fifteen (15) semester (22.5 quarter) units in social
welfare, social/human service, sociology, or other social or behavioral science Examples of social or
behavioral science courses include: anthropology, criminal justice, economics, education, ethnic
studies, history, human development, law, nursing, nutrition, philosophy, political science,
psychology, public health, religion, social welfare, sociology, welfare, women's studies.

APPLICANTS WISHING TO USE THEIR EDUCATION TO QUALIFY MUST SUBMIT THIS CLASS
COURSE LISTING. ONLY ENTER THE COURSEWORK REQUIRED TO MEET THE MINIMUM
QUALIFICATIONS AS STATED IN THE JOB ANNOUNCEMENT. (College transcripts MAY NOT be
substituted for this form.)

List the following for EACH COLLEGE COURSE:
1. Subject
2. Course #
3. Course Title
4. Total # Units
5. Units of Measure (Semester or Quarter)
6. Name of College

Applicants who completed their education outside of the United States must submit verification of 
degree and/or course equivalency with the application. Organizations that provide foreign education 
credential evaluation services can be found at www.naces.org. CPS HR Consulting will accept 
verification of degree and/or course equivalency from any of the listed member agencies. You must 
attach all pertinent documents before submitting the application.

* Required Question



County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Nathan Reade 
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Resolution No. 2019-44, titled "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, 
State of California Approving the Application for Grant Funds from the Sierra Nevada Conservancy for the 
Eastern Sierra Noxious Weeds Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Sierra Nevada Conservancy administers a Forest Health Grant program that disperses the California Prop 1 
and Prop 68 funds.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Not approve this grant application; however this is not recommended as these types of grant funding 
opportunities are not readily available.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
Funding for in-kind expenditures contained in this request is already in place through existing staff positions.  
Weed management activities are wholly funded by outside grants and contracts. This revenue will apply to 
budget number 621300, as a state grant revenue.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. SNC_ForestHealth_PreApplicationForm_updated090619
2. SNC_ForestHealth_DetailedBudgetWorksheet
3. Authorization_Resolution
 
APPROVALS:
Alexandra Barbella Created/Initiated - 9/9/2019



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/10/2019
Alexandra Barbella Approved - 9/10/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 9/11/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/12/2019
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 9/16/2019



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

1 of 14
06/2019

SNC Grant #  1245

Applicant Organization Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area

Project Name Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area Noxious Weeds Project

County(ies) in which 
project is located Inyo and Mono Counties

Project Category

☒ Category One 
 On-the-ground site improvement or fee title acquisition. 
Maximum $1,000,000 grant award.

☐ Category Two
Pre-project activities that are necessary for a specific, future 
on-the-ground project(s).  
Maximum $100,000 grant award.

SNC Grant Request $ $107,085.89

Contact Information
Please provide information below for both the primary contact related to the application 
and, if different, the representative who is authorized to apply for a grant and enter into a 
grant agreement on behalf of the applicant organization.

Applicant Contact Name Authorized Representative Name

Nathan Reade Alexandra Barbella

Applicant Contact Title Authorized Representative Title

Agricultural Commissioner Project Coordinator

Applicant Contact Phone Authorized Representative Phone

760-873-7846 760-873-3578

Applicant Contact Email Authorized Representative Email

nreade@inyocounty.us abarbella@inyocounty.us

Applicant Contact Address Authorized Representative Address

207 South St. Bishop Ca 93514 207 South St. Bishop Ca 93514



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

2 of 14
06/2019

Project Summary
Provide a Project Summary of no more than five sentences including the project location, 
acreage, purpose, partners, and estimated cost.
_________________________________________________________________________________

The goal of this project is to eradicate Spotted Knapweed, Perennial Pepperweed, Canada 
Thistle and Dalmatian Toadflax at six different locations in the Eastern Sierra (Onion Valley, 
Aspendell, Pinecreek, Mammoth Lakes, and Tioga Pass). The cumulative area of these sites is 
146 acres. The project will be implemented by a collaboration of two of the Eastern Sierra 
Weed Management Area partners: the Agricultural Commissioner’s Office and the Inyo 
National Forest. The total estimate for managing these sites for three and a half years is 
$199,077.89; $107,085.89 of which would be provided by the SNC Forest Health Grant and 
the rest from in-kind contributions. 

__________________________________________________________________________________

Project Description
Provide a brief overview of the project including why the project is a priority, project acreage, 
proposed treatments (Category One) or planning approach (Category Two), timeframe, and 
the expected natural resource and community benefits. 

If SNC would be funding only a portion of a larger project, please clearly identify how and 
where SNC funds would be used. 

Proposals for Category Two planning projects should describe both the planning effort and the 
specific potential future implementation project.

Provide a general overview only, no more than two pages. A more detailed Project Description 
will be required in the Application.
_________________________________________________________________________________

The Eastern Sierras are world renowned for their natural beauty and recreational opportunities. 
In fact, a large component of the economic activities of Inyo and Mono Counties rely on tax 
revenue from eco-tourism. This irreplaceable resource is under constant threat from 
degradation from invasive plants that if allowed to proliferate will dominate the landscape, 
decrease flora and fauna biodiversity, and increase the fire hazard by adding new fuel ladders 
and fuel loads. Controlling invasive weeds is a vital aspect of forest health management. 
Invasive plants have been shown to alter trophic dynamics (Wigginton 2014), how the 
landscape is used by wildlife (Carson 2016), and fire regimes (Brooks 2004). In addition, if 
invasive weed infestations are left unmanaged the economic cost of removal and 
environmental remediation increases every year (Leung 2002, Pimentel 2005, Holmes 2009). 
These outcomes will make the Eastern Sierras a less attractive destination, threaten the 



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

3 of 14
06/2019

livelihood for both counties, and create a management problem too costly and large to 
manage.

Noxious weeds in the Eastern Sierra must be monitored and controlled because they can 
quickly spread into remote wilderness areas and into the watershed affecting water dynamics 
and use. All of the waterways in Inyo and Mono counties are in the Southern Lahontan 
Watershed Area. Water from this watershed is used for local inhabitants as well as the greater 
Los Angeles Metropolitan Area. This project will target high priority weeds as designated in the 
Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area Strategic Plan, particularly Spotted Knapweed and 
Perennial Pepperweed. These weeds are known to form dense stands that crowd out native 
plants and animals, and create fuel ladders up to 8 feet tall. In addition, Spotted Knapweed is 
spreading throughout the roads and trails of the town of Mammoth Lakes. Mammoth Lakes is 
the largest source of recreation revenue in Mono County and is nestled in Inyo National Forest 
land. The recreation attraction in Mammoth Lakes is the dense network of walking and biking 
trails in and around town; creating a perfect storm of human-weed interaction. Spotted 
Knapweed is a large problem because it is not only a threat to forest health, but it is a human 
health issue too. Spotted Knapweed is a skin irritant and can cause rashes in those who come 
into contact with it. 

The rest of the Eastern Sierra has extremely popular backpacking and hiking trailheads such 
as Tioga Pass next to Yosemite National Park and Onion Valley trail head which is about 10 
miles from Kings Canyon and Sequoia National Parks. These areas receive thousands of visits 
per year. If Perennial Pepperweed and Spotted Knapweed are allowed pass from these areas 
into the back county wilderness forests, the infestations would be economically unfeasible to 
treat. 

Fortunately, the Eastern Sierras have a unified weed management organization in the form of 
the Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area (ESWMA). The ESWMA is a collaboration of land 
management agencies operating in Inyo and Mono Counties and has been successfully 
addressing the invasive weed issues in Inyo and Mono Counties since 1996. The ESWMA is 
bound by a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and a Strategic plan that is voted on by the 
participating partners. Members include Inyo & Mono Counties Agricultural Commissioner’s 
Office, the Inyo National Forest, CalTrans, CalFire, Inyo/Mono RCD, Humboldt Toiyabe 
National Forest, Bureau of Land Management, California State Parks, the Bishop Paiute Tribe 
Environmental Office, Inyo/Mono Cattlemen’s Association, and the City of Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power. The ESWMA continues to meet regularly to share 
information and resources and is committed to seek funding for important invasive weed 
control projects within their boundaries.

The Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area is proposing a category one project intended to 
eradicate invasive weeds at twelve sites located in Conifer forests throughout Mono and Inyo 
Counties. The total combined acreage of the sites is 146 acres (acreage was calculated from 
GPS observations entered into ArcGIS software). The sites proposed in this application are a 
priority because these sites threaten sensitive habitats (sites near waterways), recreation and 



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

4 of 14
06/2019

property (sites in Mammoth Lakes), and, if left untreated, the long-term environmental and 
economic impacts will be greater (Leung 2002, Pimentel 2005, Holmes 2009). Three sites are 
also in or near water ways which means those populations have increased risk of spreading 
via the waterway and damaging or clogging those waterways (Van Oorschot 2017). All of 
these sites are part of long-term effort by the ESWMA and the Inyo National Forest to monitor 
invasive species occurrence and manage invasions as they happen.

Each site will be visited a minimum of two times each summer season by qualified staff from 
the Inyo & Mono Counties Agricultural Commissioner’s Office and the Inyo National Forest. If 
target weeds are entirely removed, they will be revisited once a season for five seasons before 
the site can gain the designation of eradicated. ESWMA builds five-year plans for each site 
regardless of funding, to ensure a unified and strategic management of each site. Exact visits 
depend on snow pack coverage and the biology of the plants (herbicides can only be applied 
to certain life stages), but expected site visits are planned for the summer (June) and fall 
(Septemeber) of 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023. Weeds targeted at these sites are Perennial 
Pepperweed (Lepidim latiflium), Dalmatian Toadflax (Linaria Dalmatica), Canada Thistle 
(Cirsium arvense) and Spotted Knapweed (Centaurea stoebe). Methods of removal will include 
mechanical extraction (hand pulling) and herbicide application as the biology of the plants and 
NEPA permits allow (Wilson et al 2008, Macdonald et al 2018, Kyser et al 2013).

The sites located on the Mammoth Lakes Map (Map #2) are currently funded by a CDFA 
award (award number 18-0658-000-SG). The funding for these sites will end March 31, 2021, 
but they will still need monitoring and potentially management efforts in summer and fall of 
2021, 2022, and 2023. Efforts at the other sites will be entirely funded by the SNC award.

Prevention is the best remediation, thus this project will include visitor awareness outreach in 
the form of an educational website that will be linked to from popular recreation research 
websites. The success of this project will be measured by the reduction or eradication of target 
invasive weeds and number of visitors to the web page. 
Brooks et al. 2004. Effects of Invasive Alien Plants on Fire Regimes Bioscience Vol. 54 No. 7 677-688

Carson et al. 2016. Flowering phenology influences bee community dynamics in old fields dominated by the invasive plant 
Centaurea stoebe. Basic and Applied Ecology 17 (2016) 497–507.

Van Oorschot et al. 2017. Modeling invasive alien plant species in river systems: Interaction with native ecosystem engineers 
and effects on hydro-morphodynamic processes. WATER RESOURCES RESEARCH. Volume: 53  Issue: 8  Pages: 6945-
6969

Wilson et al. 2008. Integrated Management of Perennial Pepperweed (Lepidium Latifolium). Invasive Plant Science and 
Management 2008 1:17–25

Kyser et al. 2013. Effect of Timing on Chemical Control of Dalmatian Toadflax (Linaria dalmatica) in California. Invasive Plant 
Science and Management 2013 6:362–370

MacDonald et al. 2018. Restoration of native-dominated plant communities on a Centaurea stoebe- infested site. Appl Veg 
Sci. 2019;22:300–316

Holmes et al. 2009 Economic Impacts of Invasive Species in Forests: Past, Present, and Future. The Year in Ecology and 
Conservation Biology, 2009: Ann. N.Y. Acad. Sci. 1162: 18–38 (2009)



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

5 of 14
06/2019

Leung et al. 2002. An ounce of prevention or a pound of cure: bioeconomic risk analysis of invasive species. Proc. R. Soc. 
Lond. B (2002) 269, 2407–2413

Pimentel et al. 2005. Update on the environmental and economic costs associated with alien-invasive species in the United 
States. Ecological Economics 52 (2005) 273– 288.

__________________________________________________________________________________

Project Location and Map
Please prepare the documents below. 

The documents will be compiled into one .pdf file with the Pre-Application form following the 
submission instructions.

1. One or more Project Location Maps in .pdf format.
 For Category One grants the map should clearly delineate where SNC funds will be 

used and, if the proposed SNC activities are part of a larger project, approximate 
boundaries of that larger project. 

 For Category Two grants the map should identify where pre-project activities will be 
focused and the potential location of the future implementation project.

2. Photographs of the project site - no more than 6.  All photos must be labeled and compiled 
into one .pdf document.  

In addition, please list or succinctly describe the project location in the space below, including 

o the county 
o nearby communities and public lands
o the watershed in which the project is located 
o any downstream beneficiaries of the project

_________________________________________________________________________________

See attached map PDF

__________________________________________________________________________________

Project Workplan and Schedule
Provide a general workplan with anticipated schedule and potential deliverables. Identify who 
might implement various project activities (i.e. grantee, federal agency, county). Expected 
project start dates would be June or September 2020, depending on award date. Projects 
should be complete by January 1, 2024. 

Charts, tables, or bulleted lists may be used. 



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

6 of 14
06/2019

_________________________________________________________________________________

The proposed sites with their map IDs, size of invasive species population, species present, 
and CDFA noxious weed rating are listed in Table 1. Each site listed will be visited in the 
summer (June) and followed up with in the fall (September) (Table 2). Sites will be divided 
between the Inyo National Forest Botanist, Blake Engelhardt, and the Weed Management staff 
at the Agricultural Commissioner’s Office depending on staff availability (Table 2). All sites will 
be visited. Initial site visits are expected to have the highest amount of labor costs and efforts 
with reductions each year until all visible plants are removed. Sites must be monitored at least 
once a year after that for five years before eradication status can be applied to the site.

Site
General 
Location

Map 
Number

Approximate 
Acreage

Species Treated 
(scientific name)

Species Treated 
(Common name)

CDFA Noxious 
Weed Rating

CEQA 
Status NEPA Status

1112 Aspendell 1 1 Centaurea stoebe Spotted Knapweed A exempt

Covered by a forest-wide programmatic 
EA available from the Inyo National 
Forest

1113 Aspendell 1 1 Centaurea stoebe Spotted Knapweed A exempt

Covered by a forest-wide programmatic 
EA available from the Inyo National 
Forest

813
Mammoth 
Lakes 2 21.33 Centaurea stoebe Spotted Knapweed A exempt City Property/Exempt

814
Mammoth 
Lakes 2 110.32 Centaurea stoebe Spotted Knapweed A exempt Private Property/Exempt

1085
Pine Creek 
Canyon 3 1 Centaurea stoebe Spotted Knapweed A exempt City Property/Exempt

603 Tioga Pass 4 1 Centaurea stoebe Spotted Knapweed A exempt

Covered by a forest-wide programmatic 
EA available from the Inyo National 
Forest

602 Tioga Pass 4 1 Centaurea stoebe Spotted Knapweed A exempt

Covered by a forest-wide programmatic 
EA available from the Inyo National 
Forest

816
Mammoth 
Lakes 2 1 Cirsium arvense Canada Thistle B exempt Private Property/Exempt

801
Mammoth 
Lakes 2 1 Lepidium latifolium Perennial Pepperweed B exempt Private Property/Exempt

815
Mammoth 
Lakes 2 1 Linaria Dalmatica Dalmatian Toadflax A exempt City Property/Exempt

802
Mammoth 
Lakes 2 3.44 Linaria Dalmatica Dalmatian Toadflax A exempt City Property/Exempt

812
Mammoth 
Lakes 2 1.15 Linaria Dalmatica Dalmatian Toadflax A exempt City Property/Exempt

Onion 
Valley 
Site

Onion 
Valley 5 1 Lepidium latifolium Perennial Pepperweed B exempt

Covered by a forest-wide programmatic 
EA available from the Inyo National 
Forest

Table 1 - Proposed Work Sites with Invasive Species Information



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

7 of 14
06/2019

Date of Work Sites to visit Work Plan Implementing Agency Deliverable

6/1/2020
813, 816, 801, 814, 815, 802, 
812, 1085, 1112, 1113, 603 Spray herbicide or mechanically remove.

Agricultural Commissioner's Office ESWMA 
and the INYO National Forest

Reduction or erradication of 
identified invasive weed

9/1/2020
813, 816, 801, 814, 815, 802, 
812, 1085, 1112, 1113, 603

Check progress of previous herbicide 
application, Spray  herbicide or mechanically 
remove if necessary.

Agricultural Commissioner's Office ESWMA 
and the INYO National Forest

Reduction or erradication of 
identified invasive weed

6/1/2021
813, 816, 801, 814, 815, 802, 
812, 1085, 1112, 1113, 603

Check progress of previous herbicide 
application, Spray  herbicide or mechanically 
remove if necessary.

Agricultural Commissioner's Office ESWMA 
and the INYO National Forest

Reduction or erradication of 
identified invasive weed

9/1/2021
813, 816, 801, 814, 815, 802, 
812, 1085, 1112, 1113, 603

Check progress of previous herbicide 
application, Spray  herbicide or mechanically 
remove if necessary.

Agricultural Commissioner's Office ESWMA 
and the INYO National Forest

Reduction or erradication of 
identified invasive weed

6/1/2022
813, 816, 801, 814, 815, 802, 
812, 1085, 1112, 1113, 603

Check progress of previous herbicide 
application, Spray  herbicide or mechanically 
remove if necessary.

Agricultural Commissioner's Office ESWMA 
and the INYO National Forest

Reduction or erradication of 
identified invasive weed

9/1/2022
813, 816, 801, 814, 815, 802, 
812, 1085, 1112, 1113, 603

Check progress of previous herbicide 
application, Spray  herbicide or mechanically 
remove if necessary.

Agricultural Commissioner's Office ESWMA 
and the INYO National Forest

Reduction or erradication of 
identified invasive weed

6/1/2023
813, 816, 801, 814, 815, 802, 
812, 1085, 1112, 1113, 603

Check progress of previous herbicide 
application, Spray  herbicide or mechanically 
remove if necessary.

Agricultural Commissioner's Office ESWMA 
and the INYO National Forest

Reduction or erradication of 
identified invasive weed

9/1/2023
813, 816, 801, 814, 815, 802, 
812, 1085, 1112, 1113, 603

Check progress of previous herbicide 
application, Spray  herbicide or mechanically 
remove if necessary.

Agricultural Commissioner's Office ESWMA 
and the INYO National Forest

Reduction or erradication of 
identified invasive weed

Table 2 – Proposed Work Plan

__________________________________________________________________________________

Proposed Budget
Complete the summary budget chart below with anticipated costs requested within the 
proposed SNC grant. 

Direct Project Costs include staff time and all expenses directly related to the project. Costs 
related to project-specific deliverables, project reporting, and required signage are eligible.

Administrative Overhead refers to shared overhead expenses. Administrative costs may not 
exceed 15% of direct project costs.

Additional Project Costs refers to in-kind or additional funds from sources other than SNC 
which are directly invested into this specific project, within this workplan and timeframe.

NOTE: In the event of an audit, projects with budgets that include administrative costs must be 
able to document the appropriateness of these expenses. A typical method for documenting 
administrative overhead expenses is a Cost Allocation Plan (CAP): a formal accounting plan 
used to calculate and document the method for recurring overhead costs. SNC strongly 
recommends that grantees consult with an accounting professional to develop an appropriate 
method for calculating an overhead rate and prepare a CAP.
_________________________________________________________________________________



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

8 of 14
06/2019

ACTIVITY ANTICIPATED COST

Direct Project Costs

Project Management $7,218.32

Project Implementation $85,899.77 

Other
enter text 

$ 

Administrative Costs

Administrative Overhead 
No more than 15% of direct project costs

$13,967.73 

TOTAL SNC GRANT REQUEST $107,085.89 

Additional Project Costs

Additional Project Costs
In-kind contributions or funds from sources other than SNC 
directly invested into this specific project, within this workplan 
and time frame.
In-kind contributions are from Agricultural Commissioner budget 
and grants awarded by the CDFA.

$91992.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST $199,077.89 



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

9 of 14
06/2019

Partners and Community Support
Identify project partners, if the project is part of a larger plan or collaborative effort (i.e. an 
Integrated Regional Watershed Management Plan, Community Wildfire Protection Plan, Forest 
Health Collaborative, etc.), and if there is known opposition to the project.
_________________________________________________________________________________

Treatment work will be conducted by qualified staff of the Inyo & Mono Counties Agricultural 
Commissioner’s Office, the Inyo National Forest and may include additional help from Weed 
Management Area partners including but not limited to CalTrans, CalFire, Inyo/Mono RCD, 
Humboldt Toiyabe National Forest, Bureau of Land Management, California State Parks, the 
Bishop Paiute Tribe Environmental Office, Inyo/Mono Cattlemen’s Association, and the City of 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power. 

At the time of this proposal, there is no known opposition to this project.

__________________________________________________________________________________

Land Ownership and Restrictions on Land Use
Identify all legal property owners and land managers within the project area, as well as any 
property easements or other restrictions that may impact the project. 

Please note that the full Application will require letters of support from all landowners. Category 
One applications will be required to include a draft land tenure agreement and acquisition 
projects will be required to include a willing seller letter. The grant agreement will require a 
formal land tenure agreement with all landowners giving permission for the project. SNC can 
provide sample land tenure agreements for private and public properties.
_________________________________________________________________________________

Identified land owners are the US Inyo Nation Forest, the City of Mammoth, the Snowcreek 
Resort Golf Course, and private owners in Aspendell. 

__________________________________________________________________________________

Environmental Compliance
SNC requires that all projects comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) at 
the time the SNC Governing Board authorizes a grant. Since the complexity of CEQA 
compliance will vary depending on project activities, it is important to consult with SNC staff as 
early as possible to discuss which documents may be required in an Application. A project will 
only be eligible to submit an Application if SNC determines there is a reasonable expectation 
that CEQA compliance will be completed in sufficient time for Board consideration. In addition 



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

10 of 14
06/2019

to CEQA, projects subject to National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) must be NEPA 
compliant. 

Note: In the full Application, projects not exempt from CEQA must identify the Lead Agency for 
CEQA and provide documentation from that Agency confirming intent to serve as Lead. 
Applicants may request that SNC serve as Lead Agency if there is no other organization with 
standing to serve as Lead, but this request must come during the Pre-Application process.
_________________________________________________________________________________

Brief Description of CEQA Status. 
Explain if and why a project is exempt from CEQA, or the current status of CEQA analysis if 
not exempt. Identify the potential Lead Agency or if applicant is requesting SNC serve as Lead 
Agency.

This project is eligible for a CEQA categorical exemption utilizing section 15333 small habitat 
restoration projects. A notice of exemption (NOE) will be filed with the CA Office of Planning 
and Research and the Inyo County Clerk by the Agricultural Commissioner’s Office.

Brief Description of NEPA Status.
Describe the current status of NEPA analysis, if applicable. 

Portions of this project subject to NEPA are covered by a forest-wide programmatic EA 
(Environmental Assessment) available from the Inyo National Forest. 

__________________________________________________________________________________

Site Visits for Category One Projects
SNC will conduct site visits for all Category One Pre-Applications to provide a greater 
understanding of the project for SNC and assist in developing the project and the Application. 
Key participants include a representative from the applicant organization (required), technical 
expert(s) associated with the project, landowner(s), and appropriate SNC staff. All site visits 
will be limited to a maximum of two hours and may occur during inclement weather. It is 
important to have a confirmed site visit date set as soon as possible. SNC will contact 
applicants after submission of the Pre-Application to schedule a visit. SNC aims to complete all 
site visits before September 27, 2019. 
_________________________________________________________________________________



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

11 of 14
06/2019

☒ As this is a Category One project, we agree to work with SNC to schedule a site visit with 
the representatives listed above. 

☐ As this is a Category Two project, a site visit is not required.  
__________________________________________________________________________________



Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

12 of 14
06/2019

Considerations for a Future Full Application
Please check the boxes below to confirm awareness of the following requirements if projects 
are deemed eligible to submit a full Application. These are NOT requirements for the Pre-
Application. 

☒  Under Proposition 1 and Proposition 68, applicants for Category One implementation 
projects are required to consult with the California Conservation Corps (CCC) and 
California Association of Local Conservation Corps (CALCC) to determine if it is feasible for 
the Corps to play a role in the project. Projects that only include planning or property 
acquisition are exempt from this requirement. The Corps have an email consultation 
process in place that takes five business days to complete. The CCC has developed a 
Corps Consultation Review Document to help determine whether it is feasible for CCC or 
CALCC to provide services for the proposed project. Applicants will  be required to submit 
the email consultation as part of the full Application. Please see the CCC website and 
CALCC website for more information about the process. 

☒  SNC strongly encourages Native American engagement with projects. In the Application, 
all applicants will be required to demonstrate that appropriate Tribal representatives were 
notified of the project. SNC can assist applicants with identifying Native American Tribes 
whose ancestral homelands may be in the project areas and contact information for those 
Tribes.

☒  The Application will require letters of support from all landowners as well as a draft copy of 
the proposed land tenure agreement for Category One projects. If the project is awarded, a 
signed formal land tenure agreement with all landowners giving permission for the project 
must be submitted before the grant agreement can be executed. SNC can provide sample 
land tenure agreements for private and public properties.

☒  The Lead Agency responsible for CEQA compliance must be identified in the Application 
with documentation from that Agency confirming intent to serve as Lead. Applicants may 
request that SNC serve as Lead Agency if there is no other organization with standing to 
serve as Lead. This request must come during the Pre-Application process.  The project 
will only be eligible to submit an Application if SNC determines there is a reasonable 
expectation that CEQA compliance will be completed in sufficient time for Board 
consideration.

☒  The Application will require a description of the long-term management and sustainability of 
the project. Category One projects must be maintained for a minimum of ten years, and 
SNC must have permission to monitor the project site for 25 years. 

☒  SNC will establish a GIS record of the project location. SNC staff will work with applicants 
to develop or transfer GIS files. 

https://sierranevada.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/236/2019/06/Prop68CorpsConsultationProcessandFormRev.-04152019.pdf
https://ccc.ca.gov/
http://calocalcorps.org/


Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

13 of 14
06/2019

Submission Instructions
1) Compile the documents listed below into one .pdf document.

 The compiled Pre-Application documents should be named with Project Number, 
underscore, PreApplication.  Example: 9999_Pre-Application

 If you are unable to compile the documents into one .pdf document, they may be 
submitted as separate documents. 

 Please check the boxes below to confirm that all documents are included.

☒ Completed Pre-Application form. 

☒ Project Location Map(s)  
o For Category One grants the map should clearly delineate where SNC funds will 

be used and, if the proposed SNC activities are part of a larger project, 
boundaries of that larger project. 

o For Category Two grants the map should identify where pre-project activities will 
be focused and the location of the potential future implementation project(s).

☒ Project site photos. 
o No more than 6 photographs of the project site. 

2) Open the Project Submission Folder
 The link to the Project Submission Folder is in the Welcome Email.
 Each Project Submission Folder is a Microsoft OneDrive folder specific to each 

project. Only people with whom you share the link have access to the folder.
 If you lose the link or have trouble accessing it, please contact the SNC Grants Team 

at grants.snc@sierranevada.ca.gov or 530-823-4689.

3) Upload the compiled Pre-Application document (or separate documents) to the Project 
Submission Folder. 
 Open the folder using the link
 Drag and drop documents into the folder

OR
 Select :Upload” from the menu ribbon across the top of the page and navigate to the 

documents to upload.

4) Using the Project Number as the subject of the email, send an email to notify SNC that the 
Pre-Application files are complete.
GrantSubmission@sierranevada.ca.gov

mailto:GrantSubmission@sierranevada.ca.gov


Sierra Nevada Watershed Improvement Program
Forest Health Grant Program FY2019-2020

PRE-APPLICATION 

14 of 14
06/2019

5) Please save backup copies of all documents submitted to SNC, as well as the email record 
of submission and receipt, for your own files.



Project Number and Name: Project Number 1245 Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area Noxious Weeds Project
Applicant: Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area

SECTION 1 
DIRECT PROJECT COSTS

Project Management 
Staff member(s) primarily responsible for project management, including costs directly attributed to fiscal 
management of this project. 
Aspendell Sites - Program Coordinator: time to invoice and manage project finances
Tioga Sites - Program Coordinator: time to invoice and manage project finances
Onion Valley Sites - Program Coordinator: time to invoice and manage project finances
Mammoth Lakes Sites - Program Coordinator: time to invoice and manage project finances
Outreach Program - Project Coordinator: time to invoice and manage finances (0.75 hours per month)

Project Implementation 
Costs directly related to implementation of the project. Please be specific. For example, list cost by treatment type 
(hand thin, underburn, etc …) and acreage or other specific activities. 
Aspendell Sites - Field Operations Supervisor (per hour): time to spray herbicide or monitor sites
Aspendell Sites - Field Assitant (per hour): time to spray herbicide or monitor sites
Tioga Sites - Field Operations Supervisor (per hour): time to spray herbicide or monitor sites
Tioga Sites - Field Assitant (per hour): time to spray herbicide or monitor sites
Onion Valley Sites - Field Operations Supervisor (per hour): time to spray herbicide or monitor sites
Onion Valley Sites - Field Assitant (per hour): time to spray herbicide or monitor sites
Mammoth Lakes Sites - Field Operations Supervisor (per hour): time to spray herbicide or monitor sites
Mammoth Lakes Sites - Field Assitant (per hour): time to spray herbicide or monitor sites

Project Materials and Supplies 
Costs directly related to the project.
Aspendell Sites - Milestone (oz)
Aspendell Sites - Induce (oz)
Aspendell Sites - PPE (per day, per person)
Aspendell Sites - Mileage (per mile)
Aspendell Sites - Power Sprayer (per hour)
Tioga Sites - Milestone (oz)
Tioga Sites - Induce (oz)
Tioga Sites - PPE (per day, per person)
Tioga Sites - Mileage (per mile)
Tioga Sites - Power Sprayer (per hour)
Onion Valley Sites - Telar XP (oz)
Onion Valley Sites - Induce (oz)
Onion Valley Sites - PPE (per day, per person)
Onion Valley Sites - Mileage (per mile)
Onion Valley Sites - Power Sprayer (per hour)
Mammoth Lakes Sites - Telar XP (oz)
Mammoth Lakes Sites - Milestone (oz)



Mammoth Lakes Sites - Induce (oz)
Mammoth Lakes Sites - PPE (per day, per person)
Mammoth Lakes Sites - Mileage (per mile)
Mammoth Lakes Sites - Power Sprayer (per hour)
Mammoth Lakes Sites - ATV + Sprayer (per hour)

Publications, Printing, Public Relations 
Outreach and informational materials and activities.
Create Pamphlets (8 hours of Project Coordinator time)
Update Pamphlets (2 hours of Project Coordinator time per year)
Print Pamplets (1 hour of Project Coordinator time per year)
Hand out pamplets at outdoor retailers (8 hours of Project Coordinator time per year)
Call retailers to ask permission to post pamphlets (4 hours of Project Coordinator time per year)
Get permission to host link on popular outdoor recreation websites (3 hours of Project Coordinator time per year)
Create Informative Web Page (40 hours of Project Coordinator time)
Update Informative Web Page (20 hours a year of Project Coordinator time per year)
Get link posted to partner websites (1 hour of Project Coordinator time per year)
Pamphlet Printing at Vista Print on Recycled Materials
Mileage to drop-off pamphlets to retailers

Reporting, Performance Measures 
Costs related to tracking and reporting of project progress and performance.
Aspendell Sites - Program Coordinator: time to manage reporting data and compile reports
Tioga Sites - Program Coordinator: time to manage reporting data and compile reports
Onion Valley Sites - Program Coordinator: time to manage reporting data and compile reports
Mammoth Lakes Sites - Program Coordinator: time to manage reporting data and compile reports
Aspendell Sites - Program Coordinator: time to visit site for report tracking
Tioga Sites - Program Coordinator: time to visit site for report tracking
Onion Valley Sites - Program Coordinator: time to visit site for report tracking
Mammoth Lakes Sites - Program Coordinator: time to visit site for report tracking
Outreach Project Reporting

TOTAL DIRECT PROJECT COSTS

SECTION 2 
ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

Administrative Costs 
Must not exceed 15% of Direct Project Costs

TOTAL REQUEST TO SNC



SECTION 3 
ADDITIONAL PROJECT COSTS

Secured additional funds or in-kind contributions from sources other than SNC directly invested into this 
specific project, within this workplan and timeframe.  
Please identify source and general purpose of additional investment.
Agricultural Commissioner - representing the ESWMA SNC program to the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, 
approving grant reports, and general oversite (about 30 hours a year)
Supervising Agricultural Biologist - reviewing reports, ecological review, reviewing herbicide use and compliance, 
and general oversite (about 30 hours a year)

TOTAL PROJECT COST (including funds from other sources)



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 TOTALS

$ 524.32 $ 524.32 $ 524.32 $ 524.32 $322 $ 2,419.44

$ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 15.00 $ 277.16
$ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 15.00 $ 277.16
$ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 15.00 $ 277.16
$ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 15.00 $ 277.16

$ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 1,310.80
$ -

$ 19,828.88 $ 15,863.10 $ 12,846.88 $ 10,612.64 $ - $ 59,151.50

$ 617.76 $ 494.21 $ 411.84 $ 411.84 $ - $ 1,935.65
$ 220.08 $ 176.06 $ 146.72 $ 146.72 $ - $ 689.58
$ 514.80 $ 411.84 $ 411.84 $ 411.84 $ - $ 1,750.32
$ 183.40 $ 146.72 $ 146.72 $ 146.72 $ - $ 623.56

$ 617.76 $ 494.21 $ 411.84 $ 411.84 $ - $ 1,935.65
$ 220.08 $ 176.06 $ 146.72 $ 146.72 $ - $ 689.58

$ 12,870.00 $ 10,296.00 $ 8,236.80 $ 6,589.44 $ - $ 37,992.24
$ 4,585.00 $ 3,668.00 $ 2,934.40 $ 2,347.52 $ - $ 13,534.92

$ -
$ -

$ 4,495.32 $ 4,457.34 $ 4,423.45 $ 4,355.07 $ - $ 17,731.17

$ 1.18 $ 0.94 $ 0.75 $ 0.60 $ 3.47
$ 0.13 $ 0.10 $ 0.08 $ 0.06 $ 0.37

$ 16.28 $ 16.28 $ 16.28 $ 12.21 $ 61.05
$ 36.30 $ 36.30 $ 36.30 $ 36.30 $ 145.20
$ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 100.00

$ 1.18 $ 0.94 $ 0.75 $ 0.60 $ 3.47
$ 0.13 $ 0.10 $ 0.08 $ 0.06 $ 0.37

$ 16.28 $ 16.28 $ 16.28 $ 16.28 $ 65.12
$ 320.76 $ 320.76 $ 320.76 $ 320.76 $ 1,283.04

$ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 100.00
$ 5.00 $ 4.00 $ 3.20 $ 2.56 $ 14.76
$ 0.34 $ 0.27 $ 0.22 $ 0.17 $ 0.99

$ 16.28 $ 16.28 $ 16.28 $ 16.28 $ 65.12
$ 121.00 $ 121.00 $ 121.00 $ 121.00 $ 484.00

$ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 25.00 $ 100.00
$ 4.95 $ 3.96 $ 3.17 $ 2.53 $ 14.61

$ 158.76 $ 127.01 $ 101.61 $ 81.29 $ 468.66

Project Number and Name: Project Number 1245 Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area Noxious Weeds Project
Applicant: Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area



$ 18.27 $ 14.62 $ 11.69 $ 9.35 $ 53.93
$ 203.50 $ 203.50 $ 200.00 $ 160.00 $ 767.00

$ 1,375.00 $ 1,375.00 $ 1,375.00 $ 1,375.00 $ 5,500.00
$ 625.00 $ 625.00 $ 625.00 $ 625.00 $ 2,500.00

$ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 $ 6,000.00
$ -
$ -

$ 2,485.05 $ 1,633.03 $ 1,633.03 $ 1,633.03 $ 1,633.03 $ 9,017.17

$ 262.16 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 262.16
$ - $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 262.16

$ 32.77 $ 32.77 $ 32.77 $ 32.77 $ 32.77 $ 163.85
$ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 1,310.80
$ 131.08 $ 131.08 $ 131.08 $ 131.08 $ 131.08 $ 655.40

$ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 491.55
$ 1,310.80 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,310.80

$ - $ 655.40 $ 655.40 $ 655.40 $ 655.40 $ 2,621.60
$ 32.77 $ 32.77 $ 32.77 $ 32.77 $ 32.77 $ 163.85

$ 300.00 $ 300.00 $ 300.00 $ 300.00 $ 300.00 $ 1,500.00
$ 55.00 $ 55.00 $ 55.00 $ 55.00 $ 55.00 $ 275.00

$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -

$ 1,015.87 $ 1,015.87 $ 1,015.87 $ 1,015.87 $ 735.40 $ 4,798.88

$ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 20.00 $ 282.16
$ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 20.00 $ 282.16
$ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 20.00 $ 282.16

$ 163.85 $ 163.85 $ 163.85 $ 163.85 $ 20.00 $ 675.40
$ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 65.54 $ 327.70
$ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 491.55
$ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 98.31 $ 491.55

$ 131.08 $ 131.08 $ 131.08 $ 131.08 $ 131.08 $ 655.40
$ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 262.16 $ 1,310.80

$ -
$ 28,349.44 $ 23,493.66 $ 20,443.55 $ 18,140.93 $ 2,690.59 $ 93,118.17

$ 4,252.42 $ 3,524.05 $ 3,066.53 $ 2,721.14 $ 134.53 $ 13,967.73

$ -

$ 32,601.86 $ 27,017.71 $ 23,510.08 $ 20,862.07 $ 2,825.12 $ 107,085.89



$ 22,998.00 $ 22,998.00 $ 22,998.00 $ 22,998.00 $ - $ 91,992.00

$ 14,601.60 $ 14,601.60 $ 14,601.60 $ 14,601.60 $ 58,406.40

$ 8,396.40 $ 8,396.40 $ 8,396.40 $ 8,396.40 $ 33,585.60

$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -

$ 199,077.89TOTAL PROJECT COST (including funds from other sources)



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-____

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA
APPROVING THE APPLICATION OF GRANT FUNDS FROM 

THE SIERRA NEVADA CONSERVANCY FOR 
THE EASTERN SIERRA NOXIOUS WEEDS PROJECT.

Whereas, The legislature and the Governor of the State of California have provided funds under a Forest 
Health Grant Program of Proposition 1 and Proposition 68; and 

Whereas, The Sierra Nevada Conservancy (SNC) has been delegated the responsibility for the 
administration of a portion of Proposition 1 & 68 funds through a local assistance grants program, 
establishing necessary procedures; and

Whereas, said procedures established by the SNC require a resolution certifying approval of the 
application by the Applicant’s governing board before submission of said application to the SNC; and

Whereas, Inyo County, if selected, would enter into an agreement with the SNC to carry out the Eastern 
Sierra Noxious Weeds Project; and

Whereas, the County has identified the Eastern Sierra Noxious Weeds Project as valuable toward 
meeting is mission and goals.

Now, therefore let it be resolved by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors to:

(a) Approve the submittal of an application for the Eastern Sierra Noxious Weed Project;
(b) certify the understanding of the assurances and certification requirements in this application;
(c) certify that Inyo County has sufficient funds to operate and maintain the resources consistent with the 

long-term benefits described in the support of the application;
(d) certify that Inyo County will comply with all legal requirements as determined during the application 

process; and
(e) appoints the Inyo/Mono Agricultural Commissioner and his/her designee, as agent to conduct all 

negotiations, execute and submit all documents, including but not limited to; the application, 
agreements, payment requests, etc., which may be necessary for the completion of the Eastern 
Sierra Noxious Weed Project.

Passed and Adopted by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors this 1st day of October, 2019 by the 
following vote of the Board of Supervisors:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

______________________________________
Rick Pucci, Chair
Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:  CLINT G. QUILTER
                 CLERK OF THE BOARD

__________________________________
By: Assistant Clerk of the Board



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Clint Quilter 
 
SUBJECT:  Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Invoice for ESCOG Administrative Support 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board authorize payment to the Town of Mammoth Lakes for a prior-year invoice in the amount of 
$5,000 as part of Inyo County's share of reimbursement for clerking activities related to the Eastern Sierra 
Council of Governments.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On October 9, 2018, your Board voted to make annual contributions of $10,000 to reimburse the Town of 
Mammoth Lakes for staff time associated with clerking activities for the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments. 

Other ESCOG member agencies similarly agreed to make contributions towards additional administrative 
support.

The Town of Mammoth Lakes is now invoicing for those contributions, but only for half of the year. The County 
received its invoice on September 23 in the amount of $5,000. Because the payment is for Fiscal Year 2018-
2019, Board approval is required. 

Town of Mammoth Lakes Finance Department staff confirmed that the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 invoice will be for 
the full $10,000. The Assistant Clerk of the Board will work with the Finance Department to ensure receipt of the 
invoice prior to June 30. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
In fall of 2018, it was requested that the Board discuss the scope and role of ESCOG. If the Board decided to 
support the current, increased level of activity by the ESCOG, it was recommended that the Board approve a 
contribution of $10,000 annually toward administrative support. Funding for this was included in the Board of 
Supervisors' Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget. 

As noted, the Board unanimously voted on October 9, 2018 to make an annual $10,000 contribution towards 
administrative support for ESCOG.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to authorize payment of the prior-year invoice, but this is not recommended as your 
Board has committed to paying a share of ESCOG's administrative costs.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Town of Mammoth Lakes, ESCOG
 
FINANCING:
Funding for the FY 18-19 contribution was rolled over into the FY 19-20 Board of Supervisors (010100) Budget 
and is available in the Other Agency Contributions (5539) Object Code.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. FY 18-19 Invoice
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/23/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/23/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 9/25/2019



TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

P.O. BOX 1609
MAMMOTH LAKES, CA 93546

760 965-3662
.{*{.rF6Ft**'*,

Please send remittance directly to the Town of Mammoth Lakes Finance Department.

County of lnyo
PO Drawer N

lndependence, CA 93526

Attention: Clint Quilter

DATE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT DUE
9t18t2019 ESCOG Staffing Reimbursement for Clerking Activities

FY2018-19 PartialYear

TOTAL DUE

5,000.00

5,000.00



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  County Administrator 
 
SUBJECT:  Letter of Support for ESTA Grant Application 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a letter of support for Eastern Sierra Transit 
Authority's FTA Section 5304 grant application to plan future transportation services.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Eastern Sierra Transit Authority is applying for a Federal Transit Act Section 5304 grant through Caltrans and is 
asking the Inyo County Board of Supervisors to submit a letter to Caltrans in support of its application. 

According to ESTA, the grant funding is being sought to fund its next 5-year Short-Range Transit Plan and 
Coordinated Public Transit - Human Services Transportation Plan. These plans will address various issues, 
including an increase in the local aging population and increased demand for public transit to recreational 
destinations in the Eastern Sierra.

Staff recommends the Board review the draft letter, suggest any desired revisions and/or additions, and authorize 
the Chairperson to sign the letter, which ESTA is hoping to have in its possession by October 2.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
According to the Federal Transportation Administration, the FTA 5304 grant provides funding and procedural 
requirements for multimodal transportation planning, requiring the planning to be cooperative, continuous, and 
comprehensive and resulting in long-range plans and short-range programs reflecting transportation investment 
priorities.

ESTA's current Short Range Transportation Plan (2015) was developed after an assessment of transit and 
related transportation issues in Inyo and Mono counties and designed as a "road map" for the public transit 
program over the next five years, providing a comprehensive strategy of short-range service, capital, and 
institutional improvements with a supporting financial and implementation plan.

The current Coordinated Public Transit - Human Services Transportation Plan (2014) was developed through 
public and stakeholder input and includes new and refined implementable strategies for increasing mobility for 
individuals with disabilities, older adults, and people with low incomes for the period of 2014-2019.

 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the letter of support but this is not recommended, as ESTA needs 
funding assistance for planning efforts critical to addressing future public transit needs in the Eastern Sierra.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Eastern Sierra Transit Authority
 
FINANCING:
There is no fiscal impact associated with approving the letter of support.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Letter in Support ESTA FTA Grant 2019
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/20/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 9/25/2019



MEMBERS OF THE BOARD •  DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  RICK PUCCI •  MARK  TILLEMANS  •  MATT  KINGSLEY
CLINT G. QUILTER •  Clerk of the Board •  DARCY ELLIS  •  Assistant Clerk of the Board

            

October 1, 2019

California Department of Transportation 
Division of Transportation Planning 
1120 N Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814

Dear Grant Administrator:

On behalf of Inyo County Board of Supervisors, I would like to express our support for the 
Eastern Sierra Transit Authority's (ESTA) FTA Section 5304 grant application to plan future 
transportation services.

As expressed in Inyo County’s Overall Work Program, page 7, we are in support of ESTA’s 
Short Range Transit Plan. Further, page 24 of this plan states that we are in support of any 
plan that considers our seniors, persons with disabilities, and low-income and minority 
communities.  

Page 44 of our Regional Transportation Plan states that the county’s seniors aged 85 and 
older is expected to increase by 32% over the next 10 years. In addition, public transit 
demand to Inyo County’s many recreational destinations is expected to increase. We need 
current and well-developed plans to deal with these challenges.

The Board of Supervisors can attest to ESTA’s dedication to serving the residents and 
visitors of Inyo County. Their staff strives to understand the needs of our community and 
provide the highest quality of service to the entire region.

The regional and local services provided by ESTA are beneficial to Inyo County and the 
Eastern Sierra region as a whole. Please feel welcome to contact Mike Errante, Director of 
Public Works, with any questions at merrante@inyocounty.us  or (760) 878-0201.

Sincerely,

Rick Pucci, Chair
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
COUNTY OF INYO

P. O. DRAWER N   INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526
TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373 

email: dellis@inyocounty.us

mailto:merrante@inyocounty.us


County of Inyo

County Administrator - Advertising County 
Resources

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Jon Klusmire 
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve final payments from the 2018-19 Advertising County Resources Budget in the following 
amounts: $3,357 to the Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce for the 2019 Images of Inyo Shoot Out Photo Contest; 
$1,416.50 to the Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce for Concerts in the Courtyard; and $1,300 to the Friends of 
the Inyo for the 2019 Owens Lake Bird Festival.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce was awarded a FY 2018-19 Non-Competitive, Line Item County of Inyo 
Community Project Sponsorship Grant in the amount of $6,714 to help sponsor the Images of Inyo County Photo 
Shoot Out Contest. After contracts were finalized, 50 percent of the grant funds were disbursed. The Chamber 
has provided staff with sufficient documentation of acceptable expenses for reimbursement for a final payment of 
$3,357. The organizers also provided evidence that Inyo County was prominently mentioned as a sponsor of the 
event in ads and other promotional material

The Lone Pine Chamber of Commerce was awarded a FY 2018-19 County of Inyo Annual New Community 
Project Sponsorship Grant in the amount of $2,833 to help sponsor the Concerts in the Courtyard event. After 
contracts were finalized, 50 percent the grant funds were disbursed to the Chamber. The event organizers have 
provided staff with sufficient documentation of acceptable expenses for reimbursement for a final payment of 
$1,416.50. The Chamber also provided evidence that Inyo County was prominently mentioned as a sponsor of 
the event in ads and other promotional material.

The Friends of the Inyo was awarded a FY 2018-19 Annual Competitive County of Inyo Community Project 
Sponsorship Grant in the amount of $2,600 to help sponsor the Fifth Annual Owens Lake Bird Festival. After 
contracts were finalized, 50 percent the grant funds were disbursed to the Friends of the Inyo. The Festival 
organizers have provided staff with sufficient documentation of acceptable expenses for reimbursement for a final 
payment of $1,300. The Friends also provided evidence that Inyo County was prominently mentioned as a 
sponsor of the event in ads and other promotional material. About 150 people participated in the event.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could deny the requests. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
The  Community Project Sponsorship Program is part of the Advertising County Resources budget and is 
financed from the General Fund. Funds for these grants have been budgeted in the FY 2018-19  Advertising 
County Resources Budget (011400) in the Object Code noted in the Departmental Recommendation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Final Report FOI BIRD FESTIVAL 8.28.2019
2. Final Request LP Chamber 2019 Music in Courtyard
3. Final Request LP Chamber 2019 Photo Contest
 
APPROVALS:
Jon Klusmire Created/Initiated - 9/20/2019
Leslie Chapman Approved - 9/25/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/25/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/25/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/25/2019
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 9/25/2019

































































































County of Inyo

County Administrator - Information Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Information Services 
 
SUBJECT:  Amending July 9, 2019 Minutes and Corresponding Board Order 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board amend the July 9, 2019 minutes and corresponding Board Order for the Canon Financial 
Services Contract Amendment approved by your Board, to add a "not to exceed" contract amount of $100,800 
not included in the original departmental request.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On January 8, 2019, your Board approved a lease agreement with Canon Financial Services, with a term of 60 
months in an amount estimated not to exceed $90,000 per year.

On July 9, 2019, we presented your Board with a request to approve an amendment to that contract, increasing 
the annual contract amount by $10,800. Your Board approved that request, which was entered into the record in 
both minutes and a corresponding Board Order. However, the request failed to specify that the contract's new 
not-to-exceed amount is now $100,800 a year. 

For the sake of clarity and auditing purposes, we request this information be retroactively added to the motion 
approved by your Board through amendment to the July 9 minutes and corresponding Board Order.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to deny the requested amendments but this is not recommended.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor's Office
Clerk of the Board's Office
 
FINANCING:
The original contract approved January 8 and the amendment approved July 9 bring the total amount to be spent 
with Canon Financial Services to an annual amount not to exceed $100,800 over the course of the term of the 
contract. This needs to be clarified by amending the motion approved by your Board on July 9.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 20190709InfoServices-CanonFinancialServicesContractAmendment1
2. 20190108InfoServices - CanonFinancialServicesContract
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/25/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/25/2019
Jayme Westervelt Final Approval - 9/25/2019



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

             In the Rooms of the Board of Supervisors 
                           County of Inyo, State of California  
              

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, 

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 9th day of July 2019 an order was duly made 

and entered as follows: 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Information 
Services – Canon 
Financial Services 
Contract 
Amendment 1 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to: A) approve 
Amendment No. 1 to the lease agreement between the County of Inyo and Canon Financial 
Services for photocopy machine leasing and management by American Business Machines, 
adding 11 managed multi-function machines through CFS and ABM for a 55-month term for an 
annual amount of $10,800 plus any per-copy overage fees; and B) authorize the Chairperson 
to sign the lease agreement amendment, lease agreement for 11 additional machines, and 
municipal fiscal funding addendum, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
 

Routing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CC       
Purchasing  X 
Personnel   
Auditor    
CAO   
Other: Information Services 
 DATE: July 12, 2019 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 9th       
Day of  July, 2019  

 

 
 

CLINT G. QUILTER 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 
 

               
                             By: _____________________________ 



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

!Consent nDepartmental lCorrespondenceAction

n Scneduted Time for E Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

1
n Pultic Hearing

n lnformational

FRoM: County Administrator- lnformation Services

FOR THE BOARD MEETING: July 9, 2019

SUBJECT: Request approval to amend the contract with Canon Financial Services ('CFS") for photocopy machine
lease and management by American Business Machines ('ABM').

DEPARTMENTAL REC OMMENDATI ON :
Request that the Board approve Amendment 1 to the lease agreement for 11 additional managed multi-function
machines through CFS and ABM for a 55 month term and an annual amount of $10,800 plus any per copy
overage fees.

SAMMARY DISCUSSION:
ln January 2019 your Board approved the 5 year lease agreement and contract with American Business Machines
and CFS for the purpose of upgrading the County's photocopy machines. The initial agreement was for 42
managed, multi-functional copier, printer, fax machines, most with color capability. Since the deployment of the
machines many departments have been able to surplus old and expensive standalone printers while embracing a
centralized printing model.

Since the departments have seen the benefit of utilizing the managed multi-function machines vs the more
expensive alternative, many have requested to have additional machines in offices currently not equipped with
managed machines. This Amendment to the contract will add an additional 11 multi-function machines across the
County's departments.

ALTERNATIWS: The Board could choose not to approve the amendment, in which case departments would
need to look at obtaining multi-function printers from another source. This option is not recommended since would
cost the departments, and ultimately the County more money than amending the current lease agreement.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT:

1. County Counsel to review and approve the amendment
2. Sheriff, Farm Advisor, Public Guardian and HHS to receive the new managed machines
3. Auditor's office to review and approve the amendment and payments

FINANCING: Funding for this estimated cost was requested in the FY 2019-20. Funding for obligations in future
years will be requested in the lnformation Services budget for those years. lnformation Services collects print counts
on a monthly basis and bills departments quarterly based on their printing activity.



Agenda Request
Page 2

DEPARTM ENT H EAD SIG NATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are
(The Original plus 14 copies of this document are required)

COUNry COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
rcviewed and approved by county aunsel pior to subrnsslon to the board clerk.)

i v(tq\,_./_ Approved:

AUDITORYCONTROLLER: AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and apprcved by the auditor+ontroller pior to

,7
Date

to

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL($ruO nenfeOltfeUs (Must be rcviewed and apprcved by the director of personnel seruices pior to

submissrbn tol{e board clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

Tle
BU BUDGET RELATED ITEMS (Musf be rcviewed and approved by the budget officer prior fo submtsstbn to the board

clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

APPROVALS

z >rq)



AMENDMENTNUMBER.l TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTV OF INYO AND

American Business Machines
FOR THE TEASE OF COPY MACHTNE EqUIPMENT, MATNTENANCE SERVTCESANDTRATNTNG

SERV|CES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (herelnafter referred to as "County") and
Amerlcan Buslness Ma.chlne$ . of Bjlkersfteld. Callforola (hereinafter referred to as "ABM"), have

entered into an Agreement for the lease of copy machine equipment, maintenance services and training
services Januarv 20. 2019 . on Canon Financlal Services Total Solution lease Agreement, for the term
from - Januarv 2O,.2019 to Januarv 19, 2024. A Copy of that Agreement is attached hereto as

Attachment 1.

WHEREAS, County and ABM do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below:

Adda4addltlonal copy machlnes to origlnal lease agreement.
As set forth in Attachment 2, add 11 additional machines, for a term of 55 months at the cost of

+ applicable taxes per month in additisn to the origlnal amount.

2, County and ABM agree to execute the "Total Solution Lease Agreement" as set forth in
Attachment 2 hereto, and to execute the Municipal Fiscal Fundlng Addendum as set fofth ln Attachment
3 hereto,

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is . . .
Allthe other terms and conditions of the Agree ment are unchanged and remain the same,

AMERICAN

By:

1.

Dated:

Type or Prlnt

tltlx'rrq

APPROVED ASTO FORM AND LEGATITY

!\-4-.

County Counsel

AS TO NTI

APPROVED

Risk M

RISK



ATTACHMENT 2

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

FOR THE LEASE , MAINTENANCE
SERVICES AND TRAINING SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: IANUARY 20.2019 TO: IANUARY 70.2024

SEE ATTACHED:
r LEASE AGREEMENT FOR 11 ADDITIONAL MACHINES
o SCHEDULE A SCHEDULE OF FEES FOR ll ADDITIONAL MACHINES



LESSOR'g AGREEMENT
NUMBER:

COMPANY LEGAL NAME

lnyo California, County Of

DBA PHONE

{'Customer") 760-878-0398
BILLING ADDRESS

168 North Edwards Sireet
CITY COUNTY

lnyolndependence
STATE ZIP

cA 93526

EQUIPMENT ADDRESS

See Schedule A
CITY COUNTY STATE ZIP

lnitial Meter ReadingMake/ModeliAccessory Serial Numbor

fglack & Whitel lColor)

Monthly Guaranteed
Minimum Copies

Overage Copy Charge.
(Black & Whits) {Color}

Aggregate and Co Terminus

with Lease # 001 -0086457-004

0,00s2 0.06TOTALS 11,000 O/CPC

Guaranteed Copy Plan:

Paymsnt Frequsncy:

Meter Readlng Frequency:

End ofTerm Purchase Option:

Ef utonthly

n Monthly

n ot"oo

n Quarterty n otn"r:

E Quarterly fl otn"':

E Fair Market Vatue I Otn"r'

Term: . 55 months

Minimum Monthly Rental Payrnent *:

Service and Supplies lncluded':

lndividual Aggregate (Totals only required)

. Plus Applicable Taxes

Supplies

Cancn
Remlltance Address: 14904

GANON FTNANCIAL SERVICES, lNC. {"CFS)
TOTAL SOLUTION

Center Dr LEASE AG NT

THIS AGREEMENT IS NON-CANCETABLE BY CUSTOMER, CUSTOMER
TO AUTHORIZE EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF CUSTOMER

THE

I. AGREEME{T: rsnls lo Cu6tms, a

THAT AtL ACTION REOUIRED
SIGNATORIES HAS BEEN TAKEN.THE

HAS READ, UNDERSTANDS AND HEREBY AGREES TO ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT

sganized undd lhe laws of _,*ilhilschiefex6uliveoflleal ,

Solulion LsseA!rcwflt
Nsw Jqsey 08054, ad CFS
CFSshell be'Lessof.

sd of lh€ sch€dul€d tsm.

sy ?balemenl, set-off, defsse, or rcunte.daim fq any r@sm whaLsmvor,

(("Deale/')

Tax lD#i lf proprielq, DOB;

Byr X

Printed Nsre: addr€ss:

Equifinent has b€en examined by Cstomrand b in good operating order and
hereby billing under this

!*!llcgtdf'

thal lhe

E!8.l!u

releffed lo in lhisAgeemenl has besn

Mth-
lhe Eqolpment iscondilbn and is,

To: D€al€r

WAIVES AIIY RIGHT TOAJURY TRIAL IN ANY SUCH PROCEEDINGS,

lhe Lisbililiss

PERSONAL GUARANTY

Siorahro:

Signalu.€i r!61Prinled Name:

Addr€s:

Print€d Nam€:

Addr€s:

Dats:

Phone:

Datel

Phone:

SF€ RFY€RSE S/DF FOR ADATIONAL CONDIIIONS



SUITABILITY OR DURABILITY OF 

'IJE 
EQUIPMENT, THE ABSENCE OF ANY CI-AIM OF INFRIN6SMENf OR 1'18 i.IKF,

OR ANY OTHER REPRESENT/{IION OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WTH RESPECT TO THE €QUIPMENI
INCLUDING, WTHOUI IIMIIATION, lHE IMPLIED WARMNTIES OF I\IERCHANTABII.ITY AND FIINESS FOR A
PARIICULAR PURPOSE, Anywatran(y wilh rospol to llrc Equipmsnlmade by lhe manutrcfure., Doal€r, q supptior is
ssparal€ tron, e[d i6 lot ? pad of lhis Agr$mnt, and shall b€ fs lhebselilolCFS, Cuslffiq, and CFS'sc6sss d
assion€os, it a[y. So long as Cuslorer is nd in broach q defa0llollhis Agrffisl, CFS sssigns to Cssloror a0y
warysnlios (iflcl0ding lhNe agreed lo b6tw*n 0u6lmffand llE manulelurtr, Doals, or s0ppliedwhich CFS nay have
willr respol lo any ilem of Equipnst;providod lhaLthesmpe and limil0lia$ ol aBy sch wsrranly shallbe solely as setel
io any gg.smmlbehfl€n Cuslomr and srch manulaclurs, Oslsl, orsupplidor asolheNis spsiliad in wtrranty
rolerials lrom such manulelurs, Deals, or spplier and shallnolinclude my imdied wairartios arising slely from Lesss's
{4uisitionoflheEquipmml CUSTOMERACKNOWLEDGSSIHATNEIfHERTHESUPPLIERNORANYDEALERIS
AUTHORIZED TO WAIVE OR ATTER ANY TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY SCHEDUL€, OR TO MAKE ANY
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTYWIH RESPECI IO THISAGREIMENl OR THE EAUIPMENT ON BEHALF OF

cFs.
6, ACCEPTANCE; DELIVERY: Custmoas oxmuiis of lhe Accsplance Cslillcale, tr olher srirmaUs olCuslomers
ffieplarce ollhe Equiprenl, sltdlconclusively ostdlish lhal lhe Equipmnlhas b€n delivered lo and accepl€d by
Cu6lqs brallpurpGesoflhisAgreffiqrL and Cuslons may flol, fq any reasn,.€voke lhalacceplsscs; howeyd, il
C!slms hs rol wilhin len {10} days after doliv€iy otsuah Equipmnl, delivded lo Le$q wills nolice ol any non-
eoptane, spsifyirg lhotoasqs therolor snd sp@ilically roltrencing lhis Agroflont, Cuslmq shallbod@ned lohave
rr6v@abt aw€ptcd sch Equipmtrl, Lsstr is lhe dns o{ lhe Equipnml and has leaBed lhe Eqlipmonl lo CusLmg
und6r lhis Agr€€mont As bolwren Lqsq and Cuslomd, lhis Agr@msnl shall $op€rse do any Cuslmor plrchaso otds jn

ils slirety, notwithstanding anything Io lho @nlrary conlainod in any srch pur6haso ods, CusloM agrffi lolaive sy
.ightolspeific pqbrmanco of lhi6 Agr@msl and shallhold CFS hsrnl€ss tm damsge! ii lq a0y rea86lhs Equipntrt
b nol dslivd€d as qdered, jf the Equipmtr{;s unsausf4tory, orilCFS dss nolaeeplassignmillollhis Agrsrenl.
Orslmd ag.€os lhat any d€lay in dslivqy olthe Eguipmtrtshall nolsffecllhevalidily of thisAg.€dent.
7. LOCATI0N; LIENS; NAMESi OFFICES; Customd shall not move lhe Equipmnt from lhe localitr spsifed herein
oxceplwifi Lho priq wrillen @nsenlol Lossor-C0slms shallksp ll€ EquiprenL fr* and cloar otallclains a.d liens
olhor lhan lhoso in favtrolLa6ry. Cuslomot'€ looalnamo {as soltorlh in ilsctrslitusldGumsts tled wilh lho €ppropriate

0ovsnmental olfDo fl a0sqcy) is es sl kxlh hsein- The jurisdicljs ofdganization and oiisfex6ulive office flldress ol
Cust@s are as ssl ltrlh larejn,Csslomer shall provide Lessqwilh writts nolice alle?sl lhirly (30) dsys pris lo any
change of ils legal nsme, chiol oxoculive olfrce sddross q ils hrm oi sganizaliq (includiry, wihoul liqilalim, ils iu,i$diclim
olorganizalis), a0dshall*sul€ and ddiv€.loLss s0ch dmnsls s toquited s rppiopfiate
8. WARRANTYOF SUSINESS PURPOSE; USE; PERSONAL PROPERIYT FINANCING STAIEMENIS: Cuslms
reprsmls 8nd warranls lhallhe Equipnfltwillrclbo u69d tor psrsonsl,lamily, oriwshdd purposes, Cuslomq shsll
mplywilh alllss and regulatmsrelatng to lie uso and naiol€0ance ollhe Equipnat. Cuslms shJlput lhe
Equipmflloily lo lheus cffitmplalod by lhe nautaclurs.lho gquipnstshallrsain perstralpropsty rega.dles6 of
whelhs itbmns amxed to r€al propsly or p€memlly aosls upfr any red propsr{y or any improveffit lo realpropgrly.
Cuslmq sulhqiz6 Lo$or (ad any lhird psrly [|in0 ssvi€ designeted by Le$or) looxecule and frle{a) fnsnoing
slslemenlssvidscino lho inloresl of L€ss in the Equipm€Bt (including lqms cstai0ing a br@dtr dscdplion ollhe
Eq{ipmml lhan tho doscriplim sol fdlh h6rein), {b}6mlin0s[on statemonls in r€spst thersof, and (c) antrdmenk lh6rolo,
md Clstomtrirevdablywaiv6s ary righl [onolirelhqeof.
9" INDEMNITY: D€aJtr is rsspmsibl€ for inst€llation ol the Equipment CtsLms sha{ roimbur6€ Lsstr for and def€nd
Lssr agaiNlany ciajn br,osss qinjurycausd by lie Equipmfll. This S€li6 shallsuruive tsminaliq of lhis
Ag16ffinl,
10, MAIITENANCE: lhechagmeslab[rhed by lhis Agrommlinclud€ payesls br sqvices and spplis, ed D€aleris
respmsiils lor providi[g lhsoswico6 sdsuppli€sdescrib€d in'Sdvi@ and Suppli€E lncluded'above. S€rvico will bo
psldmsd by 0oalsdwin0 regular brsino$ hrurs (0:00 a.m. to 500 p,m., M6day through Friday, except holidays) atm
Fsl loCuslwt olhq lhan as sllqlh bobv, Cuslm€r shallus rsssobl€rar€ in haodling atd opsal'on of lho
Equipmal.D*ls6hallhtvs lhsdghlloinspsl, repair snd rmveEquipnill and/s r6Bd lh6 moltr atary lim6during
Custms's busins hours Any seryir€ wqk sade n@6say by Cuslms's willful acl or fl€gligen@ {including, withoul
limilatim, damage lo any photdsceptd copie. drums ('Copid Dnrms ) €nd rso ofspplios othd lhsn lhose disributed by
Deals whiri causs abrcmslly frequsl ssvi@ calls q Hvjco problm6), orany svi@ Nork Cu6lffiermay requosl lob€
p€rlqmed dlsideBqulsr bsine$ h@rs, shallbo invdced in mrdscelilh Deelqssleblished sfli€e dcies, Deald
shall hav6 the rightto substituts €quiva'€d Equipmoi .lany limo during llF lsm ol his Agr€mel, Pap€, nustbe
purchsod spdately by Cuslorer.Cuslom a0knffilodoos hst CF$willnol be respomible fu ay sruice, repaits d
nsirtonancoof tho Equipmenl, whelhar rrovided forin thisAo.effiillqissny olhq ag.6mnt betwoil Doslet 6nd
Custmq, snd lhslif Cuslomr has adisputo regardiru lhe Equiprentq lhe mainlena0ce lher@t, Qrstmd shallcdrlif,u€
{o pay allcharges dus unds lhis Agrffislwilh&ldducling o.wihhdd;ng any amNnls,
11, TAXES| oTHER FEES AtlD CHARGES: CUSTOMER SHAIL PAY ANo 0ISCHARGE WHEN otlE ALL TICENSEAND
REGISTMTION FEES, ASSESSMENTS, SALES, USE, PROPER'Y AND OTHER TAXES, AND OTTIER F]PENSES AND
CHARGES, logolher wilr any applicable p€nallis, jrltresl ad adoinislraliv€ l€s nH s al any tkns imp6€d 0pon any
Eq!ipnsl lhe Psymenls,or cUstomer's porfonarcad nm-psformsn@of ils obligsli$shgrilndor, cfi€hs payable by

d ass$Ed lo Lasss or Cuslomor,lf Custmff f8ils lo pey any sch (6s, ase$mffils,laes, exp€nss or dHoas as
roquhed hdoundtr, Lesorshall have lheri0hlbulst lhsobligalim to pay lhose Ie*, as$nmls, ldes, exf€nses and
0hargw, aild Cuslormrshallpromplly relmbutse Losff, upon dmfld,lor allsucb paynmls madoplus adflinislraliys f6es
and 6sls, il antCuslom€r ac*n#lsdges lhat, where.equi.sd by law, L€ssfr will 1116 sy nolies and pay pssonalprcpsly
taxes levied s lheEquipmenl. Cuslmtr shall rdmb!.s Lssq lot lho exponsof swh po6on8lprop€rty tilesas itvoiced
by Lsstr and pay Lsor a proceBsing foe nol [o €xcaed $50 p€r ygsr pot ilem ofEquipm€nl lhal is subj€cl lo such ld"
Cu6lmsagi@s ltalLe$or hsnot, and willmlr€nd€r lusdvice lo Clstmer, ard lh6tpeymntof such [axsis an
administralie€ rci. ON THE DATE OF THE FIRST SCHE0ULED PAYMENI AND THE DATE OF THEFIRSTSCHEOUTEo
PAYMENT AFTER THE ADDIIION OF ANY EQUIPMENT, CUSTOMER SHALL PAYTO LESSOR A DOCUMENTATION
FEE. IN THE AMOUNT OF $85, 1O BEIMBURSE LESSOR FOR ITS ADMINISTRATIVE AND RECORDING COS'S.
1Z lilSURAlgE: Cu8tmq, at ils sde csland Exptrso, shall, dudng lho lorn hor@f hcluding allro8€wals af,d
sxlensims, oblaia. mainlain and lay br (a)iflsurrnco against lh6 los$, lhofr, or danage Io lhe €quipmsl b{ lhe bll
r+laement valse lhereof, and (b) mprohmsivepublic liability and pop€rtydanage ilsuranca.Allsqch insu.a06shall
ptovide lor a deducliblonotexceeding 95,0@ and be in lonn and mwnl, and Bilhcompaniss Estisfelory to Lssw. Ftrh
hslrs providing such insuranceslall name lsso aB addilimal insured and losstay@ and pmvidolsst hirty {30} days'
xilt€n noliF bslors Lhe policy in queston 8h8ll b€ matdially altered o cancslsd. Caslmq st!all pay lio prwiums 16 such
hsuaco, shall be reponsibl€ ffr a! deducbble porlifrs lhseol and shall dedivs wtioatos or oLhs ovir€n@ olinsuran@
lo Lessor, The pr@ds of such insu,afle, allhe oplion of Lssor, shall b6 eplied lo (a) replee or repeh lhe Equipnal, q
{b} pay Lssr tho'RMaining Le*e Balenre,'whi,$ shallb€ th€ sumofi (i)allanonls Lhenowedby Custorer loL€6sor
under trjsAgroenill;gb{ii) lh6p,esmledm of allremaining Payme.ts torlhe tullterm of $is Agr6emml;g@{iii} lhe
'Ass€lValue,' which 6hdlb€; (A) ld an Agr6sslwiLh a $1,00 Purchas€ Qfs, $1.00i (B) br an Agrtrmnlwith s Fak
MarkelVal6 Putchoso Oglis s no furchse Optim slected, lhe FsirMskelValueoflho equipmst(asdefndJ lrcrein),
and (C) br m Agrsmnlwilh m O[Er Porchaso Opliq, th€ r€6p€cfi€ dollar anourl ofsucb Purchae Oplin ildioal€d m
hs fs€ of lhi8 Agromsl;pb (iv) any applicable lils, €xp€nse6, charges and l€s, Fq pupcs otd€ts.misiog p.ssl
vdue mds lhis A4rffiment, Paymsntsshallbodiscanled atlhrsepscenll3%l pqye4- Custms hseby apfoiols Lesr
s Cuslom's allonoy-inl&l sololy lo nrkoclaim lor, rceive paymmlof, end exosts ad €ndtrs ail documnlE, cheks,
q drans ls any lss s d€nago unds ary such insurarco policy.llwilhin Lm {10} days aller Lesmrs rgqusl, Cuslmr
fsils lodolivaslist*tory ovidq@ of slci insuran€ to Lossd,llrn L€swshallhavo tho right, but 0!t lio obligatotr,lo
oblain insuran€ @vsirE Le$or's inlorsls in lh6 EquipmsL, and add lhscosls otacquhing and mrinlajning sch
hsurance, ad an sdminislrative lee, to ha smu0Ls du6 frm Cuslom€r 0ndor lhls &rsmt Les$s and any ol ils
afiliates&ay nake a profiton lh6 for€gdlg"

11" L05S; tAt AGE; Cusl@s rsure6 tnd shallb€u lhs enlie rj6k ollosE, lfisl ol or danage lo lho Equipmsl trm
any causowtr8lscvq, otftrtjvo upon d€livry to Custms, No sch ls,lhen, sdamaga shallrcliovo Cuslmlof sny
obligatm undq lhis Agr&reni, ln th€ sv€nt of damage to my Equipmnl, C!6lms shallimediatsly repak wh dam€g€
at C!6lms's sxpms€, lf any €quipmenl i6 lost, stolen, d damsged bsyond repab, Custonsr, st lh€ opljon of Lsss, qill (a)
repla@ lhosamerdlh like equipmmtin acmdilim a6eptablo lo Lssor and cmveyc,l€r lille to Emh equipntrt loLsssr
(md sh oquipmfltwill btrmo 'Equipmt'and be sbjslto lhe ldms ollhis Agremonl), or (blpay Le$slie
Remaining L€ss Edanca, Ups leser's.€c€iploFlhe Rmaining L€ase Baln@, L€sw shall Leshr Lhe applicable
6atsl1cttl0&dfiir'81$,llneRt19lviherlsl'ropnrar{d&tr8*isrdst}nsie{'1/dftdxcdpl&rrl[6,rdws
iqffibilshdlllomftda$ntund iEwn&dprsl.

Custms loimmediatdy pay all Paymonts herilnder (wh€th6.tr nol lhendue) and olhs amunts due underlhis
Agr*mnt, wilh Lesor.€taining lillo lo lh€ Equipmnt;(bltolsminalo€ny and sllsgromsLB wiLh C6loms;{r}w;lh or
wilhoulnotico, d€mand q legd preess, lo stq lpon lhe promisoswherevo lhe EquipmonL may be land, lo r€lake

0osssim o[any or allol lhe Equipmnl, and {i} relain sch Equipmenland all Paymtrls and olher rumc paid hercunds,
q (ii)$ll lhe Equiprenland r4ovor frm Cuslmg tho amounlbyvhbh hoRomsi{rin0 Lease BalanForcsdslhe nel
amdnt rssiyed by Lessor frm $ch salet or (d) lotrtrsus any olher r€mdy psmilled al law or in equity, Less (i) nay
dispoe otLhe f;quipm€nlin its lhsn presill ffidilion or lollowino s0ch pr€paration and prsassing as Le*ordwms
@mmrcially Bsonablo:(ii)shall ha€ no duly to propare orpreo$ lho Equipmfltprbr lo salo:(iii)may disdairr
waranti* ot litl6, poss$im, guisl enjoymenl and he liko; and (iv)nay Mply with any applicable stala q federallaw
requirmslsin conn4liofl wilh a dispoEibon ottisEquipmonl€nd nole ol lhe kxogoing aclions shall bed@nod lo
adyssely all6t tho comarorcid reassablen6E ol {he dispocitis 0llhe Equipmtrl., lf lhe Equipmenl is not avsilablo for
sale, Custorer shallbo liablo lq lhe Rffisinir8 le4e Balaoceand sny oths am4nlB dlound6lhi€ Agrffiml. No
waivdotanyol6!slms's obligatims, ctrdiliss or @vsnants shallbe ollelive unless slained in a wrilirg $iqnod by
Leser- Failu.e lo oxercbe aoy rotrEdy lhat Lessor nayhav€shall nolcmslilule s waiver oleny obligationwilh rospect lo
which Cuslomris in dofzult

10. tATt CIARGES; EXpEtlsES 0F ENFoRCEMENI: lf Cuslmff lails to pay any sum tobepaid by custmtrlo Lesstr
lnder lhis A{rerenl on 0r b€fs6 th6 d!e dala,ousloms shallpsy l-sstr, upon demand, an amu0lequal lo he grealq of
lon pqconl {10%) ofeeh ssh delaya, Paymefll 0. lwsly-Iy€ dollsts ($25) fr omh billing poiod o pdfon ol a billing

ffriod smh Paynenl is delayed, in eachcas lo lh€ sxl€nl pqmiltedby applicablo law. The amounls spsified above shall
be paid as liquidaled damags md a6 cmpssalbn for l6$tr's inlernal opsaling oxpenss ircurred in ctrnstion wilh

such lale paymfll, h addiljon, Cuslomr shall Gimburs L6ss for ?llof ils dl-ol-pockelmsls and exps6es hcur€d ir
oxercising any olil$ rights q romedios hsdndor d in enlocing any ol lhe lems of lhis Agr@mflt, including, *ithwl

'imitalios, 
reason8blg lo6 and €rpmses of allsneys and @ll€clion agencios, wholhq or rcl suit is broughl li Ls$tr

should bring c@rl ac0on, CusLomd ard Lsor ag.ee lhal atl0rnoy's f@s equal lo lwenly-five pqcmt(25%)ollho lolrl
am@nl ioughlby losor shall bo d6m6d r€smable ltr purpo$€6 of this Agreemml.
't7. ASSIGilMEt'lt: CUSTOMER SHALL NOTASSION 0R Pl,€0G€ THIS AGREEIVENT lN WHOl.E OR lN PART, NOR

SHAl,l. CUSTOMER SUBt[T 0R LFND ANY €QUIPMENT WlTllO|JT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT oF LESSoR. lesor
may plr{goq hamls thisAgr@monl. Cusl$ror a0rees lhatilL6st tra0$fers this AgrsMl,lhe sssrgnee lillhavelhe
sms righls ed bencfils lhat Less hrs nw and will no, hav€ lo psbrm any ol Dealer's s CFS'obligalions which D€alor

d CFSwillconlinuolopoloro. Custmoagreos lhalttre riglrls ollhe assigneewillnolbesubj@tto any claims, delensos,
q sl offa lhal Cuslomr may have agsiosl Lesd, lf C{stoms is givs rcti@ ol any such lran6ler, Custorer agrss, if qo

dir@ted lherein, to pay direlly [o he assigne all or any parl oflhe amounls payable herouoder.

18. RENEWAL; REIURN: Exceplin liecas of an Agremst cm{ai.ing a 91 00 Pur.has Oplim, lhis Agroenonlshall

aulomalically rsnw w a mslhlo-rcnlh basag alliesaft Paymorlarcunland flequmcy ilnl6ss Cu6[onerrsndswills
noli@ lo Lossor al lessl sixty {60) daysb€tso lho trd ollho 6shedutad lerm d any r6mwd lorm lhal Customtreilhe. (j)

ohall oxercis lho Purehas Oplim in eordm€ wilh lho Lsms horst and atlho end of such lsrm extrdsc $ci Purchas
Optim, or (ii)dos nolwanl lorenow lhisAgrosst, fld allheond olsuch Lsrm returns lhe Rtuipmenlas providod belw,
Unles lhis Agrwmenlautonalically rswsor CusloM purchasGlhe Equipmsntas provided hor€in, CNlwsr shall, al
lhe tsmination of this Agrsrent, rolu.n lh6 Equipmonl alils solec6l and oxpense in g@d opsaling condit6, ordjnary

wear and learrfllfng frm ptops usexcepl€d, to a locrli6 specined by Le$or, Lesor nay charge Cuslom a €tur0
beequaltolhegreatsofonePayreolsr$250{orlheprocssiigot.eturnedEquipmsl ItforanyreasmCustmtrshall
faillorelurn lhe Equipnonl {o Lessq as lroyided hqein, Cuslmtr shallpay lo Lesorupm demand se billing psiod's
Paynonl ldofth billing pqiad trpdliq lher@tthalsch rolurn isd€layed. Cuslomq shsllrdmbursc L6sss lor Eny ffls
incurod by L6$q lo plffi tho Equipmillin gaod opwating cqdi|ioo,
19. PURCHASE 0PTlOll: {A} €ND 0F TfRft PURCHASE OPTl0N, To exercise lhis oplis, Cuslmer shall give Lessw
6ixly {60} dsys'priq irryeablomjtt4 rclico {unlo$ lhe PurchaseOpto is $1 00) lhatitwi{ purchsse all Lhe Equipmenl al
hs end of tlre initial lem or af,y rsry?l leln lor Lh€ Purchase oplion price indicaled s fie faoe ollhis &remenlp@any
epplbablo taxs,Gxpilses, chargG and f*s, {B) PRIOR TO MATURITY PURCI]ASE.Cudms may, al any lime, upon
sirty (60) days priq irrwEablewi[t6 nolico purchase all (bul nollN lio all) lhe Equipnent ol a price equal to the sum ot
dl.flaining Paymflls O@ lh€ Fak Ma*etValue, pl@any applicabis lax6, expsss, chargs and tms, For purpGs of
tr]isAgi6msl,'Fair l\,lak€lValle'shal'be Lssor's relailpriceal lhe time Cuslmd nolitus L€sstrotiLs inlonllopurchaso
hs Equipmqt, Ljpon propor rciilc€ and paymntby Cuslmqol lho smenls sp@ifi6d abov6, Lo6rq shall Lra$ls lhe
Equipnqllo Cuolms 'AS-lS WHEREIS'wilhdl any ropr65trl01im or w€tranty shalssytr, ox@plfor tillo, snd this
A{rsmnl shall lsminaie,
20,0AlAr Cuslms acknwlsdgss thsllhsiard drivo(slon l|€ Equipmonl, jrcludin0 sll*hod dsvi6, may tslain images,
MtstorothsdatalhatCuslm*mayslololupurpowsolnomaloporalimof theEquipm@t('Dala'), Cuslomst
*knowledgs lhat CFS is nol slding Dala s behell ofCusLoms fld thal erposure or ecsss lo lhe Dala by CFS s Doaltr,
ilany, is pur€ly incidonLal io ths svi@ p€rldmed by CFS and De8ls, Neithsr CFS ns DBaltr nd any ol lh€ir alfl;als h€e
e obligalim to erase or ovwite Dal, upon Customds retun ollhe Equipmnl lo CFS" Cuslorer is sl6ly rspssiblo bt:
{A)ilssmpliecs wilh applicdle law ad legalrequirmstspqtai0ing to dala pdyacy, slorrgo, swrjly, role0ton a0d

proteclidiand (B) all ddjsims relat8d lo ersing or ovfliliq osla. Wilhoullimiling lholq60oin0, il appli0able, Cuslmer
should {i) mablolho Hed oisk 0riv6{HDD}data dasotunctionalily lhatis a slandard lo€lurs on csdsin Equipmnt, and/or
(ii) piltr loroturn orolh6rdispositbn ollhe EquiplrsL, utilzo lh€ HD0 (or comperabl€) formalling funclim (which may b€

.el€Ired Lo as'lnitalized All Dablsstlings' funotion) iffrund on the Equiprenl lo porlqm a ons pa$ ov€Mrit€ ol Dala or, if
C{sLms h6 higher strurily rqlirmsls, Oistms my purdlM tom itE Doaler atcurmlrales an approprial€ og[on lG
{he Equipment, which may inclode (a} an HDO Data Ercryplim Kit optioo which disguiss jnformaljm bebe iLis millil lo lht
hard d.ive using emryptim algorilhms, {b} ar HDD Dal, Eras Kit Lhatcan pdlorm up lo a 3-pss ovryrite of0ala (|tr
EquipnqtnoLconlsining dsta qrse funclimdity as a sladard loabro), or (c)a repltrmqlhard drivo{inwhchcae
C0slmd $ould proptrbdeslroy tho.opl&rd hard drivo), O,stoms shall indemniry Dods and CFg, th€ir subsidiads,
dksLmq o,fcss, omploys and sgsls tm €nd againstany and alls6l6, exptrss,liabililis, ol6lms, damag*,I*sw,
judgrunlsor l€s {ircluding r€donsblo rllomys'l@6}arising tr relaleJ Lo Lhe sldaoe, transmisim ordGtrslid oilhe
Dala This s&lion suryivs lorminalis s expi.alim ol lh:s Agr€mnl. The lerms of this sslim shall sol€ly gown as lo
Oata, ml$ilhslanding lhal any provisios otlhis Agremstd any 6ep?rale confidsliality or data 6trurily s olhea

sgreanont row s htre€ffer 6lsed inlo belw€n Custffir, Dealq and CFS appli€s, q @uld b€ trstrued lo alply 10 Dala,

2t. MAXIMUM INTEREST: RECHARACIERIZEo AGREEMEIIT: No Paym€0t is intmd€d Loaxcsd thsnsrimm smnl
olinLsestp€mitlei lo bo chargsd orcollelod by apdicable las, and ?nyech ex$s Psymslwillbeagplied lo payMls
due unda lhis Agremal, in invqse ddq of neturity, ild Lhseafls shallbe refund€d. lt lhis Agr€renl is r@haeleilzod
9s a cmdilionalsale q Iffin, Customrherebygrants to t€ssq, ils su@sws and assigns a seurity inls$tin lh€
Equipedl lo s@ur€ psyMl aod p€.lqmaco ol Customols dligalions undor his AgaeontrL

22, UCC - ARTICLE 2A: CUSI0MER A0KNOWTEDGES AND AGREES THAT THls AGREEMENT lS INTENDEO Ag A
'F|NANCE I.EASE',AS THAT TERM rS DEFTNED tN ARTTCLE2AOFTHE UNTFORM COMMERCTAT CODE fUCC 2tr),
ANO LTSSOR IS ENIITIED 10 ALL SENEFITS. PRIVITEGES ANO PROTTCTONS OF A TESSOR UNDER A FINANCE
IEASE, CUSTOMER WAIVES ITS RIGHTS ASA LESSEE UNDER UCC2A SECTIONS 508.522.

23. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE; WATVER 0FJURYTRIAL: THIS AGREEMENI SHALL FORAIL PURPOSES BE

DEEMED A CONTMCT ENTERED INTO IN, ]HE STATEOF NEW JERSEY.THE RIGHTS OF 
'I1E 

PARTIES UNDER
THIS AGREFMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED 8Y THE IAWS OF THE STA'E OF NEW JERSE'/ WTHOUT REFERENCE
TO CONFLICT OF TAW PRINCIPLES,ANY ACTION BE]WEEN CUSTOMER AND LESSOR SHATL 8E BROUGHT IN

ANY STATE OR FEOERAL COURT LOCATED IN TI1E COUNTY OF CAMDEN OR SURLINGTON. NEWJERSEY, OR AT
LESSOR'S SOLE OPTION, IN THE STATE VVHERE CUSTOMER OR THEEQUIPMENT IS LOCATEO- CUSTOMER, BY
ITS EXECUTION AND DELIVERY HEREOF, IRREVOCABLYWAIVES OBJECTIONS TO ]HEJURISDICIIC$I OF SUCI]
COURIS AND OBJECTIONS TO VENUE ANO CONVENIENCE OF FORUM, CUSTOMER, BY ITS 9(ECU1ION AND
DELIVERY HEREOF, AND LESSOR, BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF, HER€BY IRREVOCABTY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO

A JURY TRTAL IN ANY SUCH PROCEEDINGS,

24, MISCELLANEOUS: All nolies requited o pernilted undc this Agremml shall be sulficiontif d€livoed posmal!, senl
via hcsimils s oh6rslslrdic hsnsmb6im, s nail€d to Buch party at lh€ addrees *L torlh in Lhis Agrsmnl, or at such
olhsr addrs as sudr pady may dsignate in wriling hm tm€ lo time. Any notice ftm Leser to Customs shall beo,fsliva
hree (3) days aftd il h8s bss depositod in lh€oall, duly add,68ed.All such noticss to Lsssq fim Cu€lmq 6hall b€
€lfe[yo afltriths6 b*n rffiivod via U,S,nail, oxpres d8livery, fssimile q oth6r eltrlronic lransmission. lllh0r6 sheld
bo mor€ lhan ono psdy sxeuling lhi6 Agromst as Cuslmtr, a[ oblbatms to be pdlormod by Customs shsllbo lho j.inl
md sobralliabilily of allwch parli$,Cusl0ms'6r€prsslalimG,watranti€s, ild cov€nanL6 ond6r lhi6Agrsslsha!
suNivo lhodelivsy and r€lum of lh€ Equipmsl.Any prov'6is ollhisAgrsmstlhstmay b€ d€terminsd by csrp€tenl
fllhorily to be prohibitsd d unmfdcesbls i[ any jlrisdicton $hall, a6 b suci jurisdiclim, br inotlstivs lo lhe exl@t of s@h
gohibilbn or unfllm€bility withet invalidaling theremainie provhissof this Agr€oment. No sch prohibilis s
un$td€ebilily in any irriEdictm shall invelidsto or rsds unenlorceablo suoh Fovision in any olher iur'Fdiclion. Customt
agrs lhal Lssor mayinse.lmJssing infqmalion or @rsl olft€r in{malion on lhisAgrMfflincluding lhs Equ;pmnl's
desoipilm, seialnunbw, end loeton, and cmelion8to Cuslomq'slqalne€;olhwiso,lhisAgrem@lffilains lhs
stre ar,angflst betwss Cusloret and L€ssq dd no modificaUms ol this Ag.eflsl€hsllbe effstvs unl€Es in wilhg
md signed by lhe parlie-Custm€r agrsos lhalLo$ornay ac@pta lacimileor olbseleclrorjc lrilsri$im ollhis
Agrerentu any Acreptanm Cslificile as an qiginal, ail lhst fscsimilso. alckonically Irsnmjlh dcopiotolCusloyfi
ad Deel6/s signalurowillbe troelod as snodginsllor allpurposs ./,///ffi

/.4V?-l,/ |

015 (01/1

mEmlsl

Pqe2ol2



cANON FTNANCTAL SERVICES, rNC. ("CFS"l

Remiltance add.ess: 14904 Collections Center D.ive

Chicago, lllioois 60693 {800) 220-02OO

Total Solutions and cPC Rental - Schedule A

cFs - 1104 {02/14)
Application tr

Agreement #

ln witness whereof. lhe parties have caused the Schedule A to be executed on the same date set fo.lh on the Agreement

Equipment Sireet Address City zip Code
Contact /
Phone #

Make Model Monthly Lease
Overage Per

8&W Coov

Per Color

CoDv
Public Guardian; L62 6fove Street Bishop 93514 750-878-0398 Canon RA C3530i il s142.00 So.oo92 s0.06
Farm Advisor:207 South Street Bishop 93514 760-878-0398 Canon LSP-712Cd n S47.00 s0.0092 s0.06
iheriff 5ub Stationt Hvw 127 Shoshone 92384 760-878-0398 Canon RA C256iF ilt s74.00 s0,0092 s0.06
Sheriff Admin Offices; 550 5. Clay Street lndeoeodence 93526 750-878-0398 Canon RA C256iF ill s74.00 s0.0092 $o.oo
Sheriff MIN-l Office Blshop 93514 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C256iF tir s74.00 s0.0092 s0.06
SheriffAnimal Shelier; 1"001 Coulty Road Blc Pine 93513 760-878-0398 Canon tRA C256iF It S74.oo $o.oo92 So.oE
Sheriff Posse Hut: 350 Airoort Road Bishop 93514 760-878-0398 Canon tRA C2s6iF It s74.00 s0,00e2 s0.06
sheriff Dispatch: 550 s. clav street lndeDendence 93526 760-878-0398 Canon RA C256iF lt 574.00 s0,0092 90.06
HHS Wellness Center; 586 Central Ave, Bishop 93914 760-878-0398 Canon RA C256iF lr s74.00 s0-0092 E0.06

HHS Prosress House: 536 N. Second Street Bishoo 93s14 760-878-0398 Canon R,q c256it Ir 974.00 s0.0092 s0.06
Library; 168 Edwards lnde0endence 93526 760-878-0398 Cdnon LBP-712Cdn S47-oo $o.ooe2 s0,06

WALBAUM

Name:

Machines)

ACCEPIED

{ DBA:

AUTHORIZED CUSTOMER SIGNATURE

of



ATTACHMENT 3

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
American Business Machines

FOR THE LEASE OF COPY MACHINE EQUIPMENT, MAINTENANCE
SERVICES AND TRAINING SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: IANUARY 20.2019 TO: JANUARY 10.2024

SEE ATTACHED:
o MUNCIPAL FISCAL FUNDING ADDENDUM



Canoil
CANON FINANC|AL SERV|CES, tNC. flcFs")
14904 Collections Center Dr.
Chicago, lllinois 60693

Municipal Fiscal Funding Addendum
Agreement
Number:

Agreement
Date:

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY
Complete Legal Name

County of Inyo ("Customer")

THIS ADDENDUM WILL BE OF NO FORCE OR EFFECT IF THE CUSTOMER IS NOT A
STATE OR A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF A STATE WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION
103(C) OF THE TNTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED.

The Customer warrants that it has funds available to pay the lease payments ("Payments")
payable pursuant to the lease agreement (the "Agreement") between Customer and CFS until
the end of its current appropriation period and warrants that it presently intends to make
Payments in each appropriation period from now until the end of the Agreement. The officer of
the Customer responsible for preparation of Customer's annual budget shall request from its
legislative body or funding authority funds to be paid to CFS under the Agreement. lf
notwithstanding the making in good faith of such request in accordance with appropriate
procedures and with the exercise of reasonable care and diligence, such legislative body or
funding authority does not appropriate funds to be paid to CFS for the Equipment, Customer
may, upon prior written notice to CFS, effective upon the exhaustion of the funding authorized
for the then current appropriation period, return the Equipment to CFS, at Customer's expense
and in accordance with the Agreement, and thereupon, Customer shall be released of its
obligations to make Payments to CFS due thereafter, provided: (1) the Equipment is returned
to CFS as provided for in the Agreement, (2) the above described notice states the failure of
the legislative body or funding authority to appropriate the necessary funds as the reason for
cancellation; and (3) such notice is accompanied by payment of all amounts then due to CFS.
ln the event Customer returns the Equipment pursuant to the terms of this Addendum and the
Agreement, CFS shall retain all sums paid by Customer. Customer's Payment obligations
under this Agreement in any fiscal year shall constitute a current expense of Customer for
such fiscal year, and shall not constitute indebtedness or a multiple fiscal year obligation of
Customer under Customer's state constitution, state law or home rule charter. Nothing in this
Agreement shall constitute a pledge by Customer of any taxes or other monies, other than as
appropriated for a specific fiscal year for this Agreement and the Equipment.

The undersigned represents and warrants to CFS that all action required to authorize the
execution and delivery of this Addendum on behalf of the above referenced Governmental
Entity by the following signatory has been duly taken and remains in full force and effect. CFS
may accept a facsimile copy of this Addendum as an original for all purposes.

ACCEPTED
Canon Financial Seruices, lnc.

By

Title

Date

c

Title

Name

Son

cFs-2020 (06/12)



In the Rooms of tlte Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 8'h day of January 2019 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

lnformation
Services -
Canon Financial
Seruices
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Tillemans and seconded by Supervisor Totheroh to: A) approve a lease
agreement with Canon Financial Services, having a term of 60 months in an amount estimated
not to exceed $90,000 per year (based on the estimated number of copies using actual copy
counts of Fiscal Year 2017-2018), contingent on adoption of future budgets for fiscal years
covered by the term of the agreement; and B) authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried
unanimously.

IIITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 8th

oay o7 January, 2019

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supemisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CA) lnformation Seruices

Other:
DATE: January 11,2019

By:
&AbA



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

XConsent !Departmental !ConespondenceAction

! Scheduled Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

)*

! Public Hearing

fl lnformational

FROM: County Administrator-lnformation Services

FOR THE BOARD MEETING: January 8, 2018

SUBJECT: Countywide Photocopy Machine Upgrade and Management

DE PA R TMENM L R EC Q MM E NDATI ON :,
Request your Board A) approve a lease agreement with Canon Financial Services having a term of 60 months in an
amount estimated not to exceed $90,000 per year (based on the estimated number of copies using actual copy counts
of FY 17-18)., contingent on adoption of future budgets for fiscal years covered by term of Agreement and B) Authorize
the Chairperson of the Board to sign.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
In October 2018 an RFP went out for bid to provide a managed copier service and maintenance service. ABM was the
only respondent and we would like to make them sole source for the remainder of the 5 year contract.

Currently County wide we have almost 200 printers including the 39 Canon Copiers currently leased through ABM on the
network. Through onsite assessments it was discovered that we could eliminate stand-alone color printers and fax
machines by upgrading multi-function digitalcopiers by Canon through ABM. This will make a great reduction in cost of
printers and ink county wide. With buy in from department heads our goal is to move to a more centralized printing model.

On'site assessment also resulted in the need to add 3 additional Canon copiers to improve efficiency. ABM has also
granted us flexibility to add additional machines including specialized machines in the future.

ALTERNATIWS: Your board could choose not to approve this request in which case the alternative would be for
departments to convert back to stand-alone, unmanaged copiers, printers and fax machines and be seftled with the cost
of maintenance and costly supplies which could easily exceed this proposed contract of $90,000 per year.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT:
All County agencies/departments are affected

FINANCING: Funding for the estimated cost for FY 201&19 is included in the approved FY2018/19 Board Approved
Budget (011801-5285). Funding for obligations in future years willbe reguested in the Information Services budgetfor
those years. lnformation Services collects copy counts on a monthly basis and makes lease payments and charges to
departments quarterly.



Agenda Request
Page 2

D E PA RT M ENT H EAD S'GA'A TUREJ
(Not to be slgned until
(The Original plus 14

all approvals are
copies of thls document are required)

futzq,zJLA

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION
reviewed and approved by county counsel piorto submission to the boad

v

ITEMS {Musl be

Approved:

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: (Must be reviewed afapproved by the

IB

AND to
to board

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: PERSQIIIIEL AND qEUfiED lTEMqlf iLst beieviewed and approved bylhe director of personnet servrcet
submrssrbn to the boatd clerk.) It

Approved:_Date_

prior to

BUDGET OFFICER: BUDGET RELATED ITEMS fMusf be rcviewed and apprcved by the budget olficer pior to submissrbn to the boad
clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

.{.LS,,\



Canron
CANON FINANG|AL SERV|CES, tNC, (',CFS")

Remittance Address: 14904 Collections Center Dr,

TOTAL SOLUTION
LEASE AGREEMENT LESSOR'S AGREEMENT

NUMBER:
COINPANY LEGAL NAME DBA PHONE

lnyo California, Counly Of {"Customer) 760-878-0398

168 North Edwards Street lndependence cA 93526

See Schedule

ilake/Model/Accessory Serlal Number Monttu gurrantosd
Minimum Copies

l&bcl & l^[ltsl tcolorl

Overage Copy Charge'
fBlack & Vvhilel lColor)

lnitial Meter Readlng

aBlack * \ ./hitc) lllnlnrl

See Schedule 166,000 0 .0092 .06 200 50

TOTALS

Guaranteod Copy Plan:

Paymsnt Frgquency:

ileter Readlng Frequency:

End of Term Purchase Option:

I tnoivioual

EJ Monthly

n Monthly

D sr.oo

Aggregate (Totals only required) Tenn: 60 months

Mlnlmum ilonthly Rental Payment *:

Sewicc and Supplies lncluded.:

n Qr"rt"rly n otn"r:

El Quarterly fl otn"r:

fll FairMarketValue n othur:

Supplies

'Plus Applicable Taxes

ltd qlilc rdtrdrLd bm

any abatomont $t{tr, d€fense, { @unttrdam f* eyrsasm whatsmvs.

eeh such amount and mong ffounb havlng $e sile dale in sch ffds as Les, iB ib djsolion, may delehins. Custons agrws to a&is Deals ottE nettr readings lq he Equipment upon r€qu6l

NON-CANCELABLE BY CUSTOMER R€PRESENTS THAT ALL ACTION D
TO AUTHORIZE EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF CUSTOMER BY THE FOLLOWING SIGNATORIES HAS BEEN TAKEN.

THE UNDERSIGNED HAS READ, UNDERSTANDS AND HEREBY TO ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT

L AGRE€MEi{';0Eakren{r to Customr, a unds $la lils of lis state of

("Deale/)

l0#: lf FoFi€td,

By: x

Ptinted Name:

To: Dealer Customercedifies lhat (a) lie Equipnent refened lo in lhis Agreement has been received, {b)
condition and is, in all respecls, satisfactoryto Customer, and (d) the Equipment is irevocably accepted by

(c) the Equignenl has been exanired by Customer and is in good operating orderard
lhis Agreement. Accordingly, Custom€rhereby authorizes billing undorlhis Agreement

ha s been
Customer tor all pueoses under

SlgnEtE: FlffiN&e) T'tl6 0{rrt: Dds:

PERSONAL GUARANTY

dlschrgo r relsese of Cus{oreis obligalio$, wtEhtr by agrocmffld opeatm ot l#.

shallnot affect Le$otb rights unds hls Gurilty rising out of beAg.ffmentor ohd agromenb €ntlled into pri6tosuch dale,

DEEf\ED A CONTMCT ENTEREO INIO IN THE STATE OF NEWJERSEY. THE RI6HTS OF THE PAR]IES UNDER THIS GUARANTY SHALL BE COVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEWJERSEYWIHOUTREF€RENCETO

WAIVES ANY RIGHT IO A JURYTRIALIN AI"IY SUCH PROCEEDINGS,

Signatlrel {no dd€)

Prinlsd Namo:

AddrBs:

Prinlod Namo:

Add.os:

Slgnatrr€: (noijilo) Date:

Phfre:

Date:

Phme:

Page 1 of 2 SFE REYERSE SIDE FOR ADD'IIONTL IEFMS ANO COI.IDIIJOIJS



SUITABILITY OR DURABILIW OF THE EOUIPMENT, IHE ABSENCE OF ANY CLAIM OF INFRINGEIENT OR THE LIKE,
OR ANY OTHER REPRESEiI'ATION ORWARMNry, EXPRESS OR I[,9tIEO, WTH RESPECT TO THE EOUIPiIENT
INcLUDING, WTHoUT LlrlTATloN, THE lI\PLIED WARRAiITIES OF tltRcHANTAqLITAND FITNESS FoR A
PARIICULAR PURPOSE. Anywililtywih.espectlo ho EqliFnmtmade by he m4ufactlrs, Deak, ssppfa is
spdat€ Fon, ild ls nota piltof $isAgreffienl ild $allb€ lr$g bqeilof CFS, Custoru, and CFS'sucFss 6
6sigr6ss, il sy. So lmg s Cudom is notir boach or delault ot$is Agrsment CFS Nign6 to Cusbmq any
wsatias (inchldhg hos agreed lob€t**[ Csstonsad he m4ufd.irs, oBsls, q spplis)f,hich CFSnay have
*ih.espsl Io ny ltem of Equlpmml providod hat$B ffipo ad lim'rtadss of ry $ch wtranty shallbe xhly as *t an
h ily ag.6enathiroil Cu$lon* and $rft nsufactrd,oeals, fl sppliFs as othsBiss specif€d in wilaty
malsids ion s0ch moufelurs, Osolg, s supplq ild shallnotircbde ay lnpl€d waaldes rising skly fom Lsssois
4quisili*0fh€Equip.nmt CUSToifRACKNOTTVTEDGESTHATNEITHERTHESUPPUERNORANYDEALERIS
AUTHORIZED TO WAIVE OR ALTER ANY TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY SCHEDULE, OR TO MAKE ANY
REPRESENTATION oRWARMNTYWTH RESPECT To THls AcfiEEiIEUT 0R THE EQUIPiTENT oN BEHALF oF
cFs.

6. ACCEPTAiICEi oELIVERY: CustomCs oxmilionof fie Acceplaace C*liicate, s otherconllmaton otCustomeis
ecsptilce ol tts Equipmont, shall conclusively sstablsh hat fF Equipm8nt hffi b€n delvded to ild acepted by
Customld allpurpo*sol$is Agrensntild Cuslmsnaynol ld ily roasn, r€vole fiat a$aphnce;homvs, il
Customtrhas not wihin ten (10) daysds dolwy olrudl Equlpminl delvsod to Lesswittfl roljce 0lily nfl-
ecoplsnce, specitying $e reasns hsefq and spsili6ltrsfdonciog bis Agremsl CustmH shallbedemed l0 hrve
h0v6ably aE€pled such Equipnnl Les is he oHs olfB Equlpnenl and hF l€ased he Equiprnmtto Customs
mdtr {ris AgrMst As betwsn Lsss afld Cu$trns, flis Agre€mmt shall spds€do ay Customtr p[chffi ordq in
ils enijre9, notslhstanding ily$ing to fio confry utdn€d in any such puche trdtr. Custms agrss lo waivo &y
rightof s|o.ifcpdfffmace othis Agr€mdldd shallhoH CFS hrmlestom dfiag€s illr ilyre60n fie Equipmmt
is mt dslivded s odtred, lf ha €quipnslis esatisffftory, d if CFS dFs rot 8€pt assigneslof bis Agsmsi,
Customtr agI6s fial &y dslsy ln dstvsy olhs Equipmtrt shall not affoctlho vsldity olfiis Agesmont.
?. LocAllotll LIEUSi NAilESi OFFICEST Cusloms shallmtnovs tho€quipmwtfrom he locElim speifed hseir
oxcept wih sle pdtrtriten c!nsnl of Lew. Cuslws shallksep hs EqulFnal free ed cle{ of ailclaims ad les
ohs hm $os in favd ol L€sw. Custms's legslnile (as st fdh in iis €ngjtuent documenlsfiH wifi $e appa0Fiats
govmmental om@ q agorcy) is as sl lortl htroin, lhojwlsdictim of sgdizalion and chief exsutive om08 rddes !t
Cu$lonff re as sel ltrt) hsein. Custonr shal Fovide Lssr wiul witten nolice at l€61 hify (30) day$ pdr to any
change olih l€galnm6,.hisloxsudvo offca add.€sor its fdm olqgdizalion {itcfudlng, without lmiladon, itsitrisdicli8
ot orgilizadm), ild shalloxodto and dolivsto L€s $ch dosmsnls as requlred o 4popiato.
8. WARRANTY oF BUSINESS PURFoSE; UsE: PERSoNAL PR0PERTY; FIilANCING S1ATEMENTS: Custonq
rep{es€nts and wfrfrlr hatlhe Eslipmmt wi! notb€ ued ld pe.sonal,lmily, d hou$hoU pupo$s, Cuslomer shalt
comply wifi all lam md rogulatons relatng to he us and naintssca ofltto EquJFnfft Customq shal put tie
Equipnsntonlybbe us cortenplatEd bythe mflufactus. The Eqdpmstshallr€main pwnalFopstyregrdl€ss ol
*teh$ ltb*oms aftxed torealFolsv d psmanon$yro$bupon any real propeiyd anyimprovmmtloroalpropertt.
Crsloms.ufldizs Lesr {ild any$Lrd pelyilng sti€ d€sigflated by Lesd)io exsuto ad fih (a)finacing
statensls elidencjng Ele intsest 0f Les in $e EquipMt {including lqms cmtaining a boadd deslpion olhe
Equipmenthan te dffiipliffi sel foah h€r€ln), {b) cqlinuaton statflenb in respecltHmf, and (c) amendmnls htr€to,
ild Customff irevocabt waives ily rjohtto rc{ce hd€01,

Custmtr to lmmsdiatgly pay al Payments hffends (wiebsq not hon dm) od 0ft6 flounb dus unds $is
Agremmt with Lossnrelaining t'de to he Equipmsti {b)totminato any snd allalrsm6nts r,{h Customq;(c)witr s
sifiout notie, dmfld tr legalprse$, to €nis lpon $e p.mis rilsov{ th6 €qulpmntfrry b6ltrnd, to retale
possseion ol any s allof fie EquiFntrt ad {i}retain such Equlpmst and al Paymsnls nd ofts flms pdd hsendtr,
r {ii)soll0E Equipnfll ad remvs trm Cusloms $o menl bysiich fie Renaining Leas Balaco excmds bs rel
mount rffiiwd by Les lrom such sale: d (d) to pursu€ ily ohs remedy psfttted at lil d ln €qslty, Less 0) n6y
dspos olfie Equipmentin it5 h€n Fesnt cmditon tr lohwing e& prepratos od po$sirg 6 Lss dffis
cmmcldly reamable; {ii) shallhave no duty lo Fepae dF@s he Equipmslpdrlo sal€;{iit} nry dl*laim
wflilties ollide, posse$ion. quiet sjoymentod frc lke;ad {iv} nay comptwi6 ily applicable state tr fedsalla|
requkomsts in cdnwton wih s dispoiilim ot$e EquiFnfitild ronB of hefdegoing trlims sltallbe de€med to
advd$V afl€clhe commscialt€awablonas ottre disposjton ot he Equipfiflt It he Equlpmert is not dallablols
sle, CuElom shallbs l&lo fd hs Rmalnlng L€a$ Balace ad ay ohs ammts dils undshis Atem€nt No
waivs of any ol Cusfonet's obklaliss, cmditons tr @vmats sltdlbe effEclive unls cmtainod in a Hiling dgrEd by
Low. Fdlro lo exsds ilyrmedy fiat LNr may have shall notconslitule awsiv€r of any obligalion wift r€sp€dlo
whlch Cuslons is in defsull

16, lAlE CHARGESi EXPENSES OF ENFORCEiIEtO: llCustoM tajls lo pay ay sum to be pdd by Cuslomtr to Losw
Hdd his Agrwmsnlo[ sb€fs€ fte du6 dale, Custms shrllpayLsstr, ulon domad, il mounlequalto fte g{6at€r ol
trn pscent (10yo) ol eaclt such delayed Paymrt or twflty-ive dollts (i25) fd oach hllng pdiod q pddon ol a bilng
psiod swh Paymst is d€layed, h ?ac+r cas lo hs sxtontpmittrd by applcablolil, tho amdnts speclf ed *ove S!a!
be paid as lkluidated damag*ad as cmpenslim fff L€s's lnlsnalopsafng €xp€ns imwsd ln cmnstion wi$r
uh lat6 paymsl ln addits, C$tms$al.Eirttr& LoMffr allolits 0rtd"pockotco6b ild €rpffeB incm€d in
exercising 4y ol itsights srmedles htrNnd* 6 h mltrchg ily ol ho lqms 0this Agrmmrt, including, without
limitaio& teasonabio lss ffd €xp3nss of atomoys ad colstion agencies, wieha tr not suit is *oughL lf LEssd
should bdng cout acljon, Crs(m6 and Los agr@ hat atqneyl f€es equal to hrenty-five ps€nt {25yo) of hs l0ta1

mounle[ghtby Lssshallb€deemedreasahleltrpurpcssothisAgreemnl
t?, ASslGliMENT: CUSToMER SHALL NoT ASSIG{'l oRPIEDCf,'fHls AGREEiENT lN VrJ}loLE 0R lN pART, N0R
$HALL CUSTOi,CRSUBLET oR LEND ANYEQUIPMENTWTHOUl PRIOR tVRITTEN coNSENI 0F LESSOR. Le$q
may pledge { Fas{s $is Agromont. Cusim€r agres$!t il LM bil6l6s 0ti6 Agsmml ho a$igne6 rdllhave he
siledghts ild bemfits hatL€s ha3 ntr ad rrilnothavo to psfdn ay ot Deald's or CF$'obligations $iich oeals
d CFS till continue to pertm. Custmtr agrs batho ilhls of fre asignee *illnot bo subj*i to any clairo, dsftrsos,
q sst{ts hal Custms may haw againetLeM. lf CustfrnB is giver noi€ ot ily such f4eltr, Customs agr6ss, it so
directed fidsir, to pay dle{yt0 fie asdgnoo all oroy prtslh6 aounls payable hqeunds.
,l8, RfilEWAli RETURN; excspt h be 048 dan Agr€enert contaidng a S1,00 Purchre Oplim, ftis Agrsement shall
illmafcailyrsew s a mmtFtHonh bais atft€ samE Paynsl anounl and foquilcl unles Customer $rds wit€n
mlica b Ls$d at lest sixty (60) days b€lne ho 6nd olh6 $hsduhd tm s any rcnewal tqm hat Customq ei$fl (i)
slallextrd* tle Purdre Oplion in €@diley.ih he lsms h6rst ild atfi€ €nd of $ch tdm exsd$ssch Purchss
Opton, or{ll} does notwantlo ren6wbis Agreemst, and atho €nd 0tsrch tdm retrns0B Eq['pment as Fovided b€los
Llnles ftis Agreem6t iltomalically renrys sCuslmspwdasshe Equipmfftas Fovided ls€in, Cuslomtrshall, at
fte tminatim ottris Agreemenl retum il]e Eqlipmsnt atilslole cosl and cxpene in good opratjng ondilion, sdindy
mr and terr6lllingtm Fopsus oxc6pt€d, to a locglion spsifed by Lesr. Lew may chage Cuslomr a rottm
fe equalto hs grsd*ofm9 PaFnffit tr 125016 ho prdsing otreuned Equipndt lf ftr ey r6sm Gudoffi-shdl-
lail to r€hm ft€ Equiprnfltto L6sw as Fovid€d h€reh, Crsloms shall pay io Les upm dmand ono blllng pslod's
Paymmtfd oach Uling psiod q porlion h€r@f hat sch retum is delayed, Custmq slallreinbu$ L6sw tfi ily costs
hqired by Lffi to place he Equipmfltin g@d opsadng condfis.
19. PURCHASE OPIIoN: (A) END OF TERM PURCHASE oPT|oN. Toersds hls opton, Clstomsshall {iE Less
sixty (60) days' prior ftev@able witen nolige {unle$ tB Pscha$ Opliff is $'1.00) fiat itwi! pwchae all tre Equipmmt at
fie fld othe initialtsm or any renekltqm ltrthe Arr.iss€ option pdcindicdted on h6tmeoFhls AgeementplE ily
applc$l€ tdes, expenses, cheges and{*c (B) PRIoR TO i/tATURIfyPURCHASE. Customsmay, aimylime, upon
sjxty (60) day6'prior irevocabl€ wlten m{epurch* all{butnotles hil al0he Equipmenlat a prico equal to lhe $um of
alremahinq PayMts AlgS h6 Fdr ild(otVafue, Alq! ily +plcable td6, exponses, chdges andfees, Fq purposs ol
his Aqrsemnl "Fdr irtk€t Valua' shallbo Losw'e rchilpice at he tme Custdntr nolifiF Lesw of iG intst lo purchtre
he Equipmfrl Upor props nof@ ud paymst by Cslom oltre mdrls specifed above, L€ss shalltss{s he
Equipnenl to Custsnq'ASIS WHERE{S'rihoutanyrepeqlalion qwflanly sfiats$vs, €xceptfslite, sd bis
Ag16ment shall tsninate.
20. DATA: custms ad(Do',r$dg6 hath€ hrd divels) m he Equipmsnl includlng aueied dovies, nay r€lajn images,
conlentorohsdalahatCustomsmayslor€lorpurposesofnormdope{ation0ttheEquipnentfDah'}, Cusiomtr
tr*nowledges trat CFS isrot stding Dala on b6hallol Cuslomtr and hat srposure ff *s lo hs Data by CFS tr Dsals,
itany, ispwaly i.ciddlillo fio serylcFperldmBd byCFS and Dealer. Nelh* CFS rs Dealq nq eyoltte'r affilatss has
4 oblgalion t0erase soveMib oab upon Cuslomets return otthe Equipnentlo CFS. Cuslorneris solely mponsjfle for
(A)ib complianm wih rpplicSlolilsd legalroquimenb pFiaining to data privay, stqag€, $fldt, retonlim ad
prot@lion; snd {8) olld€cisions.slated l0 sasing q o€Miling Data, \rlihout lmitng Ure lseqdng, ifapplicabl€, Customq
should {i} enabl€ he H{d Disl( orive {HDD) data qasatunctimalityhatis a standdd lsaLro on csrliiB iqulFrnent, od/d
(lilFitrt0rehe tr ohs disposilion olho Equipmmt ulilze$e H0D (or compaabl€) lmotling funclm (which nsybe
rsleFed t0 as'lnitidiz€d Al Dalrsottjngs" func,lion) ilfound on &6 Equipmentlo pedtrm a ils pass ov#ite 0f Data n, if
Custffitr h6 hightr scuityrequirements, Cu8twtr may purdrs€ from its Doals atsrent rales an appropriato oplim fot
$e Equipmflt, *iich mayirctuds (a) ar HDD Dala Ensyplion Kit option wtridr disgui*s infomatim belne itis wj(€n to he
htrd drive using sqyplion algorihms, (b) an HDD Data Eras Kithat ca pslsm !p lo a 3?a$ ovffiito of Dala ifor
Equlprnontnot conlaining data sras€ funclimafily as astandud feaure), or (c) aretlamenl had drive {in v.tich cas
gustms shouu flopdt dos[oy ha roplaced had dilve), Custontr shall indemn]t Dealer and CFS, fi6t subsidiriss,
diroc,ttrs, olfctrs, employeos and agents from ild against flt and all costs, experss, fiabifties, clalms, damages, Iosc,
irdgments or tses {irdudlf,g resonabls attorneys f€es) arising 0r rdated to tts stsage, tansni$lon fr destuction of$e
0at€. This $clion suruiv6tminalion tr exlialion olthisAgtsm6nt, Tho tsmsol$is socton shallelely gowm asto
0at4 nolwihstndhg $at any Fovisions otbis Agrffionlor any $parat6 confdsUdity fl data scuity s obs
agr*nentnoworhereafrq fflqed into betFe! Custfin*, Doab and CFS applis, ffcouH b€ cmEtued to apply t0 Dalr.
21. MAXIMUM INIERESTi RECHARACTERIZED AGREEMEI{T; No Paymeni lr intflded to exced he maximum mount
of inlsesl pqnilted to be chilged or collected !y appli@ble lils, and any $ch exce$ Payrnfltwillbe applBd topaymflts
due undd fiis Agredret, in invqw qds stmaturity, ild ftseafls shallbe retunded. ll his Agreement is recha4lsiz€d
6 a condidonalsls q loan, Custonshsrebygr4lsto Les, its sccesds ad asigns a sedrity intsEl jn he
€quipnertto sectrepayffit and psfamance of Customer's oblgafon8 unds his Agr@menl
22. LJcc. ARTICLE 2A: cusTolrERAcl{NoWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THls ACREEMENT ls INTENDED AsA
"FINANCE LEASE'AS1HAT T€RM lS DEFINED lN ARflCLE 2A OF THE UNtFORTV COiil,ERCIAL CoDE fUCC 2A1,
ANO LES$OR Ig ENIITIED'IO AtL BENEFITS, PRIVILEGES AND PROTECTIONS OF A LESSOR UNDERA FINA].ICE
LEASE. CU$TOIER WAIVES ITS RIGHTS AS A LESSEE UNDER UCC 2A SECTIONS 508-522,

23.oOVERNING LAW| VENUE;WArvER OF JURYTRIAL: THIS AGREEMENT SHATL FOR AtL PURPOSES BE
DEEI€D A CONTRACT ENTERED INTO IN. THE STATE OF NEWJERSEY, THE RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES UNDER
THIS AGREEMENT SHATL BE GOVERNED 8Y THE tAW$ OF lHE S'ATE OF NEW JERSEYY!,IIHOUI REFERENCE
TOCONFUCT OF LAWPRINCIPIES, ANY ACIION BET!1IEEN CUSTOI,IERAND LESSOR SHALL BE BROUGIITTN
ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURILOCAT€O IN THE COUNTY OF CAI.DEN OR BURLINGTOTI, NEWJERSEY, OR AT
L€5SOR'8 SOLE OPTION, IN THE STATE WTIERE CUSTOIER OR THE EQUIPMENT IS LOCATED. CUSTOMER, SY
rS EXECU1ION A]\D DELIVERY HEREOF, IRREVOCABTYWAIV€S O9JECTIONS TO THE JURISDICTTON OF SUCH
COURTS AND OSJECTIONS ]O VENUE AND CONVENIENCE OF FORUM. CUSTOMER, 8Y I'S FXECU]ION AND
DELIVERY HEREOF, AND LESSOR. EYITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF, 

'IEREBY 
IRREVOCABLY WAIIE ANY RIGHT TO

A JURYTRIAL IN ANY SUCH PROCEEOINGS.

1,1, lll$d€LlA!{EotlS: t! rotku
vblxdrila o$r
oftr oddruo{ Ed!
t{d6 (01 dlti
dbti[ latrt q ob6r ohrt{ilh tmrniidid. ilE0ld
ba mo bs mo FefdEbdbICu&w

Itfi{6
afidbo

9.lt{DEMtiIfY: Deak isrospNiblolq inslrflaljon of hE EquiFnent
Less against ay claim lx lossos ainjury czued byEF Equipmfll.
Agremst

Custoffi shallr€inbtr$ Lew lor ild delend

10. MAINTEN/\i{CEr Tho chf,gos ostsblished by dris &r66ment includo payMts fd wices ad spplies, ild oeale' is
respmsibl€ tff providing hos sflices and sufflies dMibod in 'Sflicead Suppfi€s lncluded" above. Sflice tillb€
psfmed by Deals duing regulr busines hours {g:00 a.m. t0 5:00 p.m,, Ir,tonday tyough Fridsy, sxceptholidays) at m
costto Custons oh$ lha as stfsflt b€|il. Cuslonr shsllue reasmabk cre in hadlhg ad opsaton of ho
EqulplnenL Deakshailhave heriqht t0 ingpmt repar ild remove Equipmef,tad/s read he neler 6t ily ilmedfing
Custontr's busirc hours, Any lwhi wsk mads nwesFyby Cuslom€is willfrilacts neglgsco {imluding, wihout
lmitation, dilaqe !o ey photor€ceplff copin drums {'Copiq }uns') ad us oliupplloe ofiet fian fros disibut€d by
D€ald s,hirh c&$ abnmallyfe{uentwice elb c wice problem), r any wicoHt clslwqmay requeslto be
psfmed oulid€ regula husines ioss, shalbeinvciced in swdanc€ sift ooab's edablished sice polici€s,oealq
shallhaveft6righttosubsliluteeqsivahntEquiprentateyimduhghe lsmof0risAgresment Papsmuslb€
purchs€d ssptatsly by Cuslms. Custom acknonledgesSrrl CFS trllllnot b€ rssponsibh ftr ay ryice, repairs 0r
maintmflcs 0f heEquipmsl *fietErprovided lff in SlisAgreomsnlor in ily ohtr agreenent boireil Dealer ad
Customtr, and hat if Cwlms has a disput6 rcgfldin0 hs Equignflt tr he maintend€ $dm( Custmtr shallconlinue
lo pay allchagss d{e unds his Agrffimt*ihoul deduclirg q wihholding any fldrts,
11. TAXES; OTHER FEES ANB CHAREES: CUSTOITER SHALL PAY AND DISCHARGE WHEN DUE ALL IICENSE AND
REGISTMTION FEES, ASSESSi,€NTS, SALES. USE. PROPERryAND OTHER TAXES, AND OIHER EXPENSES AND
CHARGES, togefts tlh ily applcable penallies, inltr€sl ild administralive leer mw tr at sy Um imposod upon oy
Equigrent fie Paynents, or Cuslmq's pqfDmrue trmn-pqfdmffGof iis obligaljss hseundff, wiebspayShby
r asssd to lesstr q Cus(ms,lf Clslomq taikto pay ay sohfms, a$owflls, taxeq expenss dchrges s
requiod iotowds, Le$d shallhave hB rightbutnotfr6 obligadff to piy&osofoes, so$msls, taxes, exp€nss and
chdges, edCustomtr shallFomptyreimbwso Los, upon demad,ls allsudr paynsls made pfus adminishalivef€es
ild cods, ilily. Custons a*ndiJedg6 ful wtse requlred by lap, Le$dHilile any nofces 4d pey pssnalyopffly
tax6s levied m he Equipnsnt. Customs shall roinbure Le$fr fq ['tB expens ol sch personal proptrty laflos s invdced
by Lew fld pay L6sr a ilocs$sing fse nottD sxceed 150 ps yer ps ibm ol EquipmBnt halis st jec{to slch td,
Cusiomtr agr€6 hat Lostr has nol ahd will not rdder ld advica lo Customs, snd bai payrnent olsuchldes is an
administratve 6t 0N IHE oAtE OF THE FIRST SCHEoULED PAYIENT AND THE DATE OF THEFIRST SCHEDULED
PAYMENT AFTERTHE A0DITION 0F ANYEqUIPi/ENt, OUSTOItR SHALL pAYTO LEssoR A D0CUMENTATIoN
FEE, lN THE AI,OUNT oF S{15, To RE|IIEURSE LESSoR FOR llS ADMNISTRATI!E AND REcoRglNc CosTs.
12,INSURAiICE: Custmtr, at ils sole @st4d orpens, shall. during lhe tqm hqeof lrckdirg al renswab ffd
sxtsnsiqs, obtaifl, maintain fld pay fq (a)insurilce againsl0re lm, hefi, q dilag€ to he Equipmenilshefull
r€pleemfltvslus hseof, 4d (b)comtrohssile public labilty and propsty damqsinsuils, Allsuch insurile ihall
provide fr adeduclible notoxceeding 35,000 and be inlm sd ililnl ad lMb cmp{i6s satdactdyto Lossr, Each
insurs p(ovidiog ilch insuee shallnam L€$6 6 addifflal inslred and hs paye and Folide Less 6irty {30} days'
witten nolico beloe bs policy in question shallbo malsially albed or carohd, Customtr shallpay fie premiums lq ssh
insurflco, shallbe rsponslblsior alld€ducliblo por$ons htr@f, ild stralldolivsqtfcates w oher evidenFotinslrace
to LeBw. The p0cEds of slch inswdca, at0ro opi0n ol Lss, shallbe applied to (a)replso or.epak hs Equipmerl, tr
(b)pey Les$he 'Rmaining Leas Balmco,'*ilch $rllbs $B sum oi {i}Jlnounb $en offid by Customd to Lessw
uder hi! Agrs4l ptk (ii)ho pr€eni value of al rsajning Paynents fry he tul tm 0t this Agrsmst plug {ill}fie
'Assei Vatue,'wNch grall b€: {A) fd an Ageilenl wih a t'l.00 Puchas Opttor, $1.00; (B) lor ar Agreemntf,ah a F?k
Mslel VaUe Purohffi opton s no Purchas Oplim slmted, bs Fal i,rrk€l Vafu€ ofhc Equipnmt (s dsfned htrein).
ed {C) lq aD Agoemsnlwih an ohs Pwdr& oplio!, $6 r6sp€c{v8 dollil mdnl of $ch furche 0Ft0t indiBted on
fio fme olfiis Agreemm[ pkf {iv) fly applcablo tsxor, expolss, chrges fld ltrs, Fff p0rposs of detmiiing lrosnt
yabo unds tris Agroonsl Psymmt6 6h€llbo diMunled attlree pHftnt (3%) ps yer, Custontr hseby appdnis Les
as Customs's dttrnoyirfact stolyto md(s claim for, rec€i€paymentof, and oxaule and ildtrs sll docuranls, cheds,
q drans fur any loss s damago undq any $dr irsanre poFcy. lf r;$in ton (10) days afrs Le6sr'srequest, Cusloms
lails to delivff salidaclsy oviderce of $ch insrame to Less, ben Loss6 shall hal,s he dght, butnot fte oblgalion, to
obtain inwanc€ covering Lesso/s intqests in he Equipm€nt, ild add he cod-i oFacquiring ild mainldning sch
insurflc€, and an administelive f€6, to he mounts&e lrom Cuslomundqhis AgrremmL Le$q md ayolils
affliot0s may make a p.ofloa he lsegoing.
,l3, 

LOSS; DAMAGE: Cuslons a$rmes dd shallben he stire risk ol loss, h6n of, fl dfrago to ho Equipmqt ftom
my caus f,haboovs, effaclive upon dsfusy to Cuslmer. No such loss, fiot tr damago shall roleve Custonfr ofany
oblgalion unds his Agr€gmfl|. ln 6e event ofdamage to ey Equipmenl Custms 6hall imnediatsly repalr sch damage
d Customfr's expon$. lf any Equipmdtis bsl stolen, d damaoed boyond repdr, Cust0ns, at the oplion of L€ss, f,ill (a)
rBplffi he sil6 v,ifi lke squiFnsnt in a cmdldon esptablg to L6ssq 8d cmvey clF lide to $ch squipnfltto Les
{and such equipnentwil bsome 'Eq!ipmnf ild bo $bject to tre lms of his Aqreemmt), q (b) pay LNd fie
Romdning loaw Balace, Upon Lew's leceiptolhs Rsmiining Lee BalacB, Le$q shallfasts tre applcable
Eqlipme0l to Cuslomer "AS lS, WHERE lS'without any repregenlalion ur wila.tyehalseve., exeeptltrtil€, and this
Agremst shalltsminals tlih respecl lo such Equlpmmt.

1{. DEFAULtT Any 0the folo*lng 6rmts d conditions shall consttub m Evsntot oelsll undstiis Ag*mont {a)
Customtr delaufis in ha paymont v,ien dre ot any indebledne$ ofCusbms to Losw, niohtr s not aising undfl &is
Agremflt wi$outnodcs s d6mand by Losw;(b)CuSmtr d ily guaantorolCuslombr's oblgdions here!nder
('Gutantod)ceassdoing b{sine$ s a going corcm;{e}CustMs s ay Gtrarls besmss hsofuentsmtkesan
assignmtrt ftr fie bensfl of6edit6s: {d) a letlion d procsedhg is iled by ff again$! Cugoms 6 ay Gtirddtr undq
f,y bslruptcy d irslvency Iil; (e) a rseivs, tustoe, consflatff, s lqukialq ls appoinled ls Cuslomtr sy G{afllor,
d ,ny ottreir propstyi (0 ay statenenl, reFe$nbtim d wnilty fiad€ by CudomF d 4y cursnts to Ls$s is
incffscl in ny nrtsialrossc{i ff ig}Customs s any gtranlorwho is a natiralps$n dies,
'15. REI'iED|ESi Upon he happening of sy ore d nqe Evenls 0l Defallt, Lessq shall have he righl to exscise any mE
s all0f 

'le 
folloting rmedies (which $ailbe cum!lawe), simullrn€ously, fr sialv, and ir any dder: (a)lo requir€

CFS-1015 {01117) Pqezol2

fio iohl
rll'll

ol ruoh

Cralond

ildffidtadlltd
$ C{rbml|.

$l'tm{it, md c$r6o$lE

:i[



ATTACHMENT A

PURCHASE ORDER AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO AND AMERICAN BUSINESS

MACHINES FOR THE LEASE OF COPY MACHINE EQUIPMENT, MAINTENANCE SERVICES, AND

TRAINING SERVICES.

TERM:

FRoM.-S!!IABI-39;!$!!I ro: JANUARY 1 e. 2024

This Attachment A is made part of the purchase order Total Solution Lease Agreement
("Agreement") between American Business Machlnes ("Deale/' or "ABM") and The County of lnyo
("Gounty" or "Custome/'). ln the event of a conflict between this Attachment A and the Agreement,
the express language of this Attachment A shall control.

SCOPE OF WORK:

Project Management & lmplementation

ABM will provide a Project Manager to be the primary point of contact for implementation and

coordination. Project Manager will also manage day-to-day operational aspects including:

r Equipment lmplementation matrix to identifil each machine, location, tasks and timeline for
implementation;

r ldentify, manage and mitigate project risks;

r ldentify and secure required resources for implementation;
r Create a communication plan to disseminate information between lnyo County and ABM, and

adapt if any corrective action is needed;

r ldentifV, track and manage project issues;

r Update and manage action items;

r Coordinate and lead regularly scheduled project status meetings, with follow up emails;

r Prepare engagement reviews and quality assurance checks;

o Ensure accuracy and completeness of project documents including ABM Delivery & Acceptance

forms and Canon Financial Lease Agreements.

Site Survey

ABM will

r ldentify key managers and site contacts;

r ldentify and verify location of equipment for installation;
r VerifV list of equipment to be removed;

r Create equipment removal schedule if applicable;

1



o Collect appropriate fax numbers and lP addresses;

r ldentifypriority installations;

r Verifo power and connectivity are available at each location;

r ldentify specific installation challenges, risks and special circumstances;

r ldentify equipment staging area if required;

r ldentify location for on-site parts and/or consumables storage.

Fleet Management

ABM will

r Provide uniFlow software to help increase productivity, manage the fleet of machines and report

departmental usage

r Provide FM Audit software to allow remote monitoring of the Canon machines, and other print

devices on the network. FM Audit allows for Automatic Supply Replenishment alerts to be sent
-_ -when supply-levels fall-below107o.-lt also-reports-any low toner or'paperlevelsjams or'other errors

occurring on a device.

Monthly Reporting

. Equipment service history
o Fleet management reporting from FM Audit and uniFlow

r ABM will partner with lnyo County for frequent evaluations of productivity and efficiency to identify

opportunities to improve

On Site Training

ABM will

r Provide lnyo County with initial training for all machines which includes, overview of hardware,

scan to email and file, secure print, print to fax and more

e Provide dedicated ongoing training for the term of the contract. Training is unlimited

Service and Support

ABM will

o Out of the Box Support at our fingertips through the machine display panel

. Help Desk Support with expert technicians offering live support via phone or on-site

r Remote Monitoring to proactively monitor devices and keep them running by assessing meter
reads, consumable trackins. maintenance history/needs and serviee alerts

o Rapid response to service calls in four hours or less

r Provide supplies such as toner, parts, maintenance and support

2



TERMINATION:

This Agreement may be canceled by ABM or County with cause, by giving ninety (90) days written notice of
such intent to cancel.

DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION:

ABM shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees and volunteers
from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without limitation costs and

fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with ABM's equipment, performance of
work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the Agreement, except such

loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the County.

FUNDING LIMITATION:

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources. ln the
event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the option to
cancel, reduce, or modifo this Agreement, or any of its terms within ninety (90) days of its notifying ABM of
the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.

IREST OF PAGE tNTENT|ONALLY BTANKI

3



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO AND AMERICAN BUSINESS MACHINES FORTHE LEASE

oF coPY MACHINE EQUIPMENT, MATNTENANCE SERV|CES, AND TRANTNG SERVICES

TERM:

FRoM: JArtlUARY2o.20lg To: JANIJAEL19,-3!&!

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

SEE SCHEDULE A

4



cANON FtNANCTAL S€RVTCES, rNC. ("CFS',)

Remittance address; 14904 Collections Center Drive

Chicago, lllinois 60693 {800} 220-0200

Total Solutions and CPC Rental - Schedule A

cFs - 1104 {021141

Application # 1549548

Agreement #

1

ln witness whereof, the parties have caused the Schedule A to be executed on the same date set forth on lhe Agreement

l1
12

13

t4
15

fb

77

31

32

33

34

35

36

t1

27

29

Equigment Street Address Clty Zip Code
contact /
Phone #

Make Model Monthly Lease
(tvera8e Per

8&W Coov

Per Colot
Coov

Administration Services; 163 May Street Eishoo 93514 760-878-0398 Canon RA C5540i il ;187.00 s0.0092 So.oG
Administration Seruices; 224 North Edwards Street lndeDendence 93526 760-878-0398 Canon RA C5550i It s275,00 So.oo92 s0.06
Annex 2nd Floor Hall; 168 North Edwards Street lndependence 93525 760-878-0398 Canon RA 6ss5i I '240,00 s0.0092 N/n
Agsessors; 168 North Edwards Street lndeaendence 93526 760-878-0398 Canon RA C5540t I ;762,00 s0.0092 So.o6
Auditori 158 North Edwards Street lndependence 93526 760-878-0398 Canon RA C5540i il 182.00 50,0092 s0.05
Sehavioral Health; 152 Grove Street Bishop 93514 760-878-0398 Canon RA C5560i lr S27s.oo s0.0092 So.oE
gishop AirDort; 703 Airport Road Bishoo 93514 760-878-0398 Canon RA 525iFZ fi s79.00 s0.0092 N/A
Social Seruices; 914 North Main Street Bishop 93514 760-878-0398 Canon RA C5s60i l ,275.00 $0.0092 So.o5
Child SuDgort Services; 162 East Line Street Bishop 93514 760-878-0398 Canon RA C5540i I 3162.00 $0.0092 So.o6
lnformation Services; 168 North Edwards Street lndeoendence 93526 750-878-0398 Canon RA C5540i I ,187.00 s0.0092 3o.06
County Servicesi 207 West South Street BishoD 93514 ,50-878-0398 aanon IRA C5560t l 260.00 s0.0092 s0.06
znd Floor Courthouse; 168 North Edwards Street lndependence 93526 760-878-0398 Canon tRA C5560i lt S21s.oo s0.0092 s0.05
DA / Welfare & Fraud; 162 East Line Street Bishoo 93514 ?60-878-0398 :anon IRA C5540i il i182.00 s0.0092 So.o6
DA; 168 North Edwards Street lndeDendence 93526 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C5540i il s182.00 s0.0092 s0.06
Senior Center: 138 Jackson Street Lone Pine 93545 i50-878.0398 Canon iRA C3s30i il S129.oo s0.0092 s0.06
Health DeDartment; 207 A West South Street Bishoo 93514 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C5540i il ,182.00 s0.0092 s0.06
Health Tobacco; 163 MayStreet Bishoo 93514 750-878-0398 Canon iRA C5560i I i260.00 s0.0092 s0.06
HHS: 380 North Mt. Whitnev Lone Pine 93545 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C3530i I Slz9.oo $o.oos2 s0.06
HHS; 162 Grove Street Bishop 93514 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C5550i il ;205.00 30.0092 So.o6
HHS Fiscal; 155 East Market Street lndeoendence 93526 760-a7A-O194 Canon iRA C5560i il i215.00 s0.0092 3o.oE
Library; 408 Tecopa Hot Springs Road Tecopa 92389 760-878-0398 Canon IRA 525iFZ il 79.00 s0.0092 N/A
Jail; 550 South Clav Street lndependence 93526 750-878-0398 Canon iRA C5540i il s162.00 30.0092 $o.oo
iuvenile; 201 Mazourka lndeoendence 93526 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C3530i il 129.00 s0.0092 So.oE
Librarv; 110 Norih Main Street Bie Pine 93513 750-878-0398 Canon iRA 4535i il s115.00 $o.oo92 N/A
Llbraty; 127 North Washington Street Lone Pine 93545 760-878-0398 Canon iRA 525iFZ il g79.oo 9o.oogz N/A
Librarv; 210 Academv Street Bishoo 93514 760-878-0398 Canon IRA C3530i il ,129,00 s0.0092 s0.06
Museum; 155 North Grant lndeDendence 93s26 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C3530i il s129.00 s0.0092 s0.06
Parks & Rec./ HHS: 405 Tecoba HotSorines Road Tecooa 92389 760-878-0398 Canon RA C3530i tl s129.00 30,0092 50.06
PlanninFi 168 North Edwards Street lndeoendence 93526 760-878{398 Cangn iRA C5550i tl 250.00 s0.0092 s0.06
Probation; 914 North Main Street Bishoo 93514 760-878-0398 Canon RA C5550i I 205.00 s0.0092 s0.06
Probationt 914 North Main Street Bishoo 93514 760-878-0398 Canon RA C5550i il 185.00 5o.oB92 s0.06
Roads DeDartment: 158 North Edwards Street lndependence 93525 760-878-0398 Canon RA C5550t l s205.00 So.oo92 5o.so
Sheriff's Department; 301 West Line Street Bishoo 93S14 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C3530i I 129.00 s0.0092 So.o6
Sheriff's Department; 550 Souih clay Street lndependence 93525 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C5540i il s182.00 s0.0092 s0.06
Sheriff's Department; 726 North Main Street Lone Pine 9354s 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C3530i il s129.00 So.oo92 $0.06
Water Deoartment; 135 South Jackson Street lndeoendBnce 93526 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C5550i lt s2s0.00 50.0092 So.o6
Senior Centerl 682 Spruce Street BishoD 93514 760-878"0398 Canon iRA C3530i il s129.00 s0.0092 So.o6
First 5: 568 West Linestreet Bishop 93514 760-878-0398 Canon iRA C3530i il S139.oo So.oo92 50.06
EmerRencv Servicesi 136-4 S. Jackson Street lndeoendence s3.q26 760-878-0398 Can on iRA 525iFZ il 79.00 s0.0092 N/A
HHS; 162 Grove Street Sishoo 93514 750-878-0398 Canon iRA C3530i il 129.00 s0.0092 s0.06
Board Clerk; 224 North Edwards Street lndeoendence 93s26 750-878-0398 Canon LSP-712Cdn s44.00 So.oo92 s0.06
As Commissioner: 207 South Street Bishop 93514 760-878-0398 Canon RA C3S30i il s139.00 30.0092 $0.06

lS Department; 168 North Edwards Street independence 93s26 750-878-0398 Canon
UniFlow

software s2s2.00 N/A N/A

WALBAUM

Name:

American Machines) of

(



Cam{ilr
CANON FINANC|AI SERV|CES, tNC. flcFs)
14904 Collections Center Dr.
Chicago, lllinois 60693

Municipal Fiscal Funding Addendum

THIS ADDENDUM WILL BE OF NO FORCE OR EFFECT IF THE CUSTOMER IS NOT A
STATE OR A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF A STATE WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION
103(C) OF THE TNTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED.

The Customer warrants that it has funds available to pay the lease payments ("Payments")
payable pursuant to the lease agreement (the "Agreement") between Customer and CFS until
the end of its current appropriation period and warrants that it presently intends to make
Payments in each appropriation period from now until the end of the Agreement. The officer of
the Customer responsible for preparation of Customer's annual budget shall request from its
legislative body or funding authority funds to be paid to CFS under the Agreement. lf
notwithstanding the making in good faith of such request in accordance with appropriate
procedures and with the exercise of reasonable care and diligence, such legislative body or
funding authority does not appropriate funds to be paid to CFS for the Equipment, Customer
may, upon prior written notice to CFS, effective upon the exhaustion of the funding authorized
for the then current appropriation period, return the Equipment to CFS, at Custombr's expense
and in accordance with the Agreement, and thereupon, Customer shall be released of its
obligations to make Payments to CFS due thereafter, provided: (1) the Equipment is returned
to CFS as provided for in the Agreement, (2) the above described notice states the failure of
the legislative body or funding authority to appropriate the necessary funds as the reason for
cancellation; and (3) such notice is accompanied by payment of all amounts then due to CFS.
ln the event Customer returns the Equipment pursuant to the terms of this Addendum and the
Agreement, CFS shall retain all sums paid by Customer. Customer's Payment obligations
under this Agreement in any fiscal year shall constitute a current expense of Customer for
such fiscal year, and shall not constitute indebtedness or a multiple fiscal year obligation of
Customer under Customer's state constitution, state law or home rule charter. Nothing in this
Agreement shall constitute a pledge by Customer of any taxes or other monies, other than as
appropriated for a specific fiscal year for this Agreement and the Equipment.

The undersigned represents and warrants to CFS that all action required to authorize the
execution and delivery of this Addendum on behalf of the above referenced Governmental
Entity by the following signatory has been duly taken and remains in full force and effect. CFS
may accept a facsimile copy of this Addendum as an original for all purposes.

ACCEPTED
Canon Financial Services, lnc.

By

Title

Date

Name

Title

Agreement
Number:

Agreement
Date:

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY
Complete Legal Name

County of Inyo

cFs-2020 (06/12)



Darcy Ellis

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Jayme Westervelt
Tuesday, January 22, 2019 1 1:46 AM
Darcy Ellis

Need to get Signed, please
County of lnyo Municipal Fiscal Funding Addendum.pdf

Darcy-

It appears that there was a form left out of the ABM/Canon packet that went to board a couple weeks ago. l've had JC
Vallejo review the form, his response below:

RE: Ganon / ABm Documrntr
J+hn-Garl Vallejo
O !L1u r;lilrd,i l.r thti ndrta.lF an r .,,'-:r.: i!, : j ;j.i ;,1,1

. ,i lur l#lJJ019lS:tl Ahl

' JEymc lttethcrrult

The Fundrng Addendurn is uk ts srg*, The only added lstue rr that we *rould hare l'he er.penre of retunning the equrpment,

tEltq'CErl tratlejo
A,sslstant Cou nty Iounse I

[ouni'1 af lnyo
760. 87:,1L60 [Erslaonl
78ff,&lg, g2l9 

{ lnde perlde n ce }

{:CIf*FlSEhtTlAIITY NOTdCEI Thil e"mail csrflmuniration, including Eny att€chrfiEntrn n for rhe soJF use of the intended recipient{s! an
asnf identiel anddor degeliy pri',r*leged inforrnation- Any unauiharized interrepiiou'r, reuiew, uce, disclos,ure sr distributio* is prohibrle,
t'iolate app[itlbFe lat*s. including the Electronic fsrnmunitattons Privary Act. lf you sre not lhE rn.tended rpEipiefttr piease ronts€t th,
reply e-mail and destroy *ll ropies of the original mersage.

Next time you see Chairman Supervisor Pucci, can you please request that he sign the attached form. lt's one that we,ve
had with our previous ABM contracts. lf you or him, or the board have any questions feel free to ask.

Or if there's a process l'm supposed to go through, please just let me know

Thanksl

J"gre lr/esteruelt
Deputy Director
lnformation Services
lnyo County
(760) 878-0392
jwesterve lt@inyocou ntv. us

1



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Lucy Vincent 
 
SUBJECT:  Approve the Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI) 3-Year Evaluation Report as a supplement to 
the 2018-19 Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Plan Update. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the Prevention Early Intervention (PEI) Three Year Evaluation Report as a supplement 
of the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Plan Update for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 and authorize the HHS Deputy 
Director Behavioral Health Division, as the Mental Health Director, to submit the report to the California Mental 
Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission (MHSOAC).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This is Inyo County’s first PEI evaluation report as required in statute. The PEI Three Year Evaluation Report 
serves as a supplement to the MHSA 18-19 Plan Update. While the MHSA Update addresses some outcome 
measures around the overall plan, this evaluation report is specific to the PEI component of the plan. The PEI 
component has its own reporting requirements, annual report, and evaluation report which must be submitted to 
the California Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission (MHSOAC). Inyo County, along 
with numerous other counties, has been granted an extension for our first submission of the evaluation report, 
which is why it is coming at this off-cycle time. Going forward, the report will be submitted as part of each annual 
MHSA Plan. 

ICHHS-BH approached this first PEI 3-Year Evaluation Plan as a corrective action plan to improve the data 
collection, monitoring, and evaluation of our PEI programs. The 2018-19 Annual Update provides some areas of 
deficiencies and significant changes regarding PEI, but moving forward, this plan will identify the initiatives and 
changes to services that will increase our oversight of PEI services. Ensuring compliance and adherence to PEI 
regulations are the focus of this 3-Year Plan. This plan identifies the systemic changes that will be instituted to 
support the changes and ensure the timely completion of this plan in the coming years. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the Prevention and Early Intervention 3-Year Evaluation Report. This 
would prohibit our further use of these funds until an acceptable report that met MHSA regulations could be 
formulated. MHSA funds currently comprise approximately one third of all funds available for mental health 
services in Inyo.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Mental Health is under the umbrella of Behavioral Health, a division of Health and Human Services. The MHSA 
includes involvement of stakeholders and partners from all interested agencies involved in mental health issues.
 
FINANCING:
State MHSA funds. Funds are deposited into the MHSA trust (505306), and budgeted as revenue in the Mental 
Health budget (045200). MHSA expenses are tracked in the Mental Health Budget and transfers occur from the 
MHSA Trust into Mental Health to cover those expenditures. No County General Funds are used.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. PEI Evaluation Report 
 
APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 9/12/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/12/2019
Lucy Vincent Approved - 9/13/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 9/15/2019
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 9/16/2019
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 9/16/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/17/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/18/2019
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 9/18/2019



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Inyo County Health and Human Services 

Behavioral Health Division 
 

 
Prevention & Early Intervention Evaluation 

FY 2016-2017 to FY 2017-2018 

A Supplemental Report 

to the FY 18-19 MHSA Update 

 



2 
ICHHS-BH: Strengthening Well-Being & Resilience Through Hope, Healing, and Support 

 

 

Introduction 
The following report serves as a supplement to Inyo County Health and Human Services- Behavioral 

Health division’s (ICHHS-BH) Annual Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) 18-19 Plan Update. While the 

MHSA Update addresses the overall plan, this update is specific to the Prevention and Early Intervention 

(PEI) components of the plan and will cover programs in FY 2016-FY 2018, as well as actions and efforts 

for 2018-19 and moving forward. 

This is Inyo County’s first PEI Evaluation. The PEI Evaluation will follow the same protocol as the MHSA 

Update to include a 30-day public comment period, stakeholder input, and Board of Supervisors’ 

approval. 
 

Background & Overview & Overview 
PEI is one of 5 components of the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA). The five components of MHSA 

are: 

1. Community Services and Support (CSS); 

2. Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI); 

3. Capital Facilities and Technology Needs (CFTN); 

4. Workforce Education and Training (WET); and 

5. Innovation (INN) 

 
Each of these five components had their own funding allocation and reporting requirements. 

Stakeholder input shapes the strategies and services rendered by ICHHS-BH, in accordance with the 

regulations that govern the use of MHSA funds. All participation in MHSA funded services must be 

voluntary and thus, use of such funding and programs in restricted, locked facilities, such as hospitals 

and jails, is prohibited. 
 

The PEI component has its own reporting requirements, annual report, and evaluation plan which must 

be submitted to the California Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission 

(MHSOAC) by June 30, 2019. Inyo County, along with numerous other counties, has been granted an 

extension for our first submission of the evaluation plan. PEI is made up of seven categories, they are: 
 

1. Prevention; 

2. Early Intervention; 

3. Outreach for Increasing Recognition of Early Signs of Mental Illness; 

4. Stigma and Discrimination Reduction; 

5. Access and Linkage; 

6. Suicide Prevention; and 

7. Improve Timely Access to Services for Underserved Populations 
 

PEI programs reflect one or more of these categories and identify individuals who are at risk of or who 

are exhibiting early signs of mental illness or emotional disturbance, and link them to treatment and 

https://www.inyocounty.us/MHSA/InyoMHSAFY18_19AnnualUpdate.pdf


3 
ICHHS-BH: Strengthening Well-Being & Resilience Through Hope, Healing, and Support 

 

 

other resources. Prevention programs should include: outreach and education, efforts to increase access 

to underserved populations, improved access to linkage and referrals at the earliest possible onset of 

mental illness, and reduction of stigma and discrimination. Early Intervention programs are intended to 

prevent mental illness from becoming severe, and reduce the duration of untreated severe mental 

illness, allowing people to live fulfilling, productive lives. Prevention of mental illness involves increasing 

protective factors and diminishing an individual’s risk factors for developing mental illness. 
 

The Requirements 
According to Section 3706 of Title 9 California Code of Regulations, 51% or more of PEI funds must be 

allocated to youth services and programs. ICHHS-BH adheres to the reporting requirements which are 

outlined in the Prevention and Early Intervention regulations, as of July 1. 2018. The PEI reports are 

required so that the county can report on how our overall efforts are addressing the negative outcomes 

of untreated mental illness. Counties are required to report to the MHSOAC annually, as well as post the 

reports ad updates on the county website for public access. 
 

The requirements of PEI set forth in CCR Title 9 state that a County with a population under 100,000 has 

different requirements. Inyo County’s total population is slightly over 18,000. As such, the County of 

Inyo may report the demographic information required for the County’s entire Prevention and Early 

Intervention Component instead of by each Program or Strategy. 
 

A County with a population under 100,000, according to the most recent projection by the California 

State Department of Finance, may satisfy the requirements of evaluation for all PEI program types by 

selecting, defining, and measuring appropriate indicators that the County selects to evaluate the 

negative outcomes referenced in WIC Section 5840, subdivision (d), identified in the County’s 3-Year 

Program and Expenditure Plan and/or Annual Update. 
 

PEI Prevention Update 
The listing of PEI programs below identifies the areas of focus for our Prevention strategies to reach our 

underserved populations. 
 

Elder Friendly Visitor Program 

Our community has a large proportion of seniors. This PEI program has been helpful at identifying at-risk 

seniors who begin to exhibit signs of depression, prescription drug abuse, isolation, and other conditions 

related to the aging population. This Older Adult PEI Program has provided outreach and engagement, 

early mental health screening, and prevention services to older adults who had been receiving services 

in the community and utilizing county resources. This program also trains agency partners to recognize 

the signs and symptoms of mental illness in older adults. 
 

The FV program has been implemented to provide prevention services to isolated seniors who have 

evidenced symptoms of depression and are living alone in the community. We have funded two part- 

time Program Services Assistants: one in the northern part of the county and one in the southern part of 

the county. The meal delivery staff identifies seniors who evidence symptoms of depression and/or 

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Document/I17C47F43E1B14C969EA5AE441BE0E2FD?viewType=FullText&amp;originationContext=documenttoc&amp;transitionType=CategoryPageItem&amp;contextData=(sc.Default)
http://mhsoac.ca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2018-08/PEI%20Regulations_As_Of_July%202018.pdf


4 
ICHHS-BH: Strengthening Well-Being & Resilience Through Hope, Healing, and Support 

 

 

anxiety and who might benefit from a visitor. The visitor, who may also be a senior, develops a plan with 

the senior to address the depression and prevent further exacerbation of symptoms. 

In 17/18, the program provided services to 24 seniors at a cost of approximately $1,450 per person 

served. A total of approximately 1565 hours were provided with 49% of these hours provided in south 

county and 28% provided in southeast county, our most underserved areas of the County. A PHQ2 is 

used as an initial screen, with a PHQ9 used to follow up, every 6 months, on those found to be “at risk” 

from the PHQ2 responses. As might be expected, complex medical issues, including pain, fatigue, and 

insomnia were reported by a majority of participants. 
 

Elder Outreach 

PEI also partially funds a mental health nurse to provide screening, referral and linkage, and support 

services to prevent the exacerbation of mental health conditions. The program, utilizing a Behavioral 

Health Nurse, offers comprehensive assessment services to those older adults at risk of developing 

mental health problems that may interfere with their ability to remain independent in the community. 

The Nurse then links these individuals to resources within the community, including County Behavioral 

Health services. This program offers service alternatives for older adults who have been unserved and 

underserved in this community. Services are voluntary and client-directed, strength-based, employ 

wellness and recovery principles, address both immediate and long-term needs of program members, 

and are delivered in a timely manner that is sensitive to the cultural needs of the population served. 
 

The role of the Behavioral Health Nurse is first to provide the initial assessment to potential candidates 

for prevention services, such as the Friendly Visitor Program or Healthy Ideas. A member of the Adult 

Services team will further involve the Behavioral Health Nurse when intervention may be warranted, 

especially if any suicidal ideation is noted. 
 

The Behavioral Health Nurse collaborates closely with other agencies that provide services to this 

population, including In-Home Supportive Services, Adult Protective Services, Eastern Sierra Area Agency 

on Aging, local physicians, Public Health, nursing homes, home health agencies, and the home delivery 

meals program. All agencies receive training to help recognize signs and symptoms of mental illness in 

older adults. 
 

The Behavioral Health Nurse also provides services to older adults in community settings that are the 

natural gathering places for older adults, such as our Senior Center sites in the community sites of 

Bishop, Big Pine, Independence, Lone Pine, and Tecopa. Older adults who need additional services are 

referred to a Friendly Visitor (see above) or to Behavioral Health for ongoing treatment, as appropriate. 
 

In the past year, outreach visits were made to 17 older adults. This strategy again targets the more 

isolated parts of the county. One Native American and one Hispanic older adult have been served with 

the remainder being Caucasian. PEI funding also has allowed us to provide care coordination/case 

management as additional support to the Older Adult PEI program. 



5 
ICHHS-BH: Strengthening Well-Being & Resilience Through Hope, Healing, and Support 

 

 

Prevention Programs- Challenges and Mitigation Efforts 

As reported in earlier plans, we continue to struggle with challenges of finding appropriate transitional 

housing for older adults as they begin to evidence health challenges as well as mental illness. Moving 

forward, we continue to investigate housing alternatives and funding such as No Place Like Home that 

may offer opportunities to assist in funding housing for seniors with mental health and physical health 

challenges. In addition, we will continue to investigate the viability of using a regional approach to 

address residential or other housing needs. We continue to educate the community around the need for 

a community system of care solution to address this need. 
 

PEI Early Intervention Update 
The listing of PEI programs below identifies the areas of focus for our Early Intervention strategies to 

reach our underserved populations. 
 

Parent-Child Interactive Therapy 

Parent-Child Interaction Therapy (PCIT) is an evidence-based intensive parent-training program which 

has been found to be effective for families with aggressive, defiant, and non-compliant children; families 

with parents who have limited parenting skills; and families who have experienced domestic violence 

and/or child abuse. PCIT focuses on promoting positive parent-child relationships and interactions, while 

teaching parents effective parenting skills. PCIT has been shown to be an effective treatment program 

for children ages 2-7 years. This program has been adapted as an intervention for many different types 

of families (child welfare population, at-risk families, adoptive families, foster families, and other 

languages including Spanish). 
 

PCIT teaches families individualized parenting skills that are developed through a process in which 

parents directly receive instruction through an earpiece that is linked to a therapist. The therapist, 

behind a one-way mirror and/or via a live camera feed, observes interactions between the parent and 

child, coaches the development of relationship-enhancing techniques, and gives behavioral 

interventions for responding to difficult parent-child situations. Sessions last about one hour, occur over 

18-20 weekly visits, and show very strong outcomes for both parents and children. PCIT is a highly 

effective program and the families show improved outcomes because of this intensive parenting 

program. In addition, the children and their siblings show improved behavior (positive social 

interactions, following directions, reduction in acting out behavior) as a result of the program. 
 

Due to the retirement of the certified trainer for PCIT in May, 2017 and the turnover of an additional 

therapist, we were concerned regarding our ability to continue with a PCIT strategy. In 17/18, we kept 

the program going minimally by hiring a retired annuitant in the specific role of providing PCIT training 

and supervision to our Child and Family staff as well as interested partners. We have served two 

additional families with this intervention. The approximate cost per family served under PCIT is $6, 5361. 
 

In the past, our Child and Family Program Chief, who retired in May 2017, had been certified to offer 

and train others in PCIT. We have since brought her back as a contracted employee to provide those 

services to our Child and Family Staff and families. We propose to continue our contract with the 



6 
ICHHS-BH: Strengthening Well-Being & Resilience Through Hope, Healing, and Support 

 

 

certified trainer in order to create a robust PCIT program. We currently have 2 psychotherapists being 

trained in PCIT. They each have a family assigned to them and are in the beginning stages of the 

certification process. They must complete two full families. 
 

Spanish-speaking Women’s Educational Group 

A community survey was developed, in coordination with several community groups, to look at whether 

the Latino population was aware of mental health resources and identify the places where this 

population may seek support. As a result of this survey, the LCSW began an early intervention 

psychoeducational series of groups for Spanish-speaking women to increase level of support and 

address issues of anxiety and trauma issues. This service has been offered at our clinic site and has been 

attended by 15 women over the past year. 
 

Inyo County remains committed to providing services to our Spanish-speaking population and will 

pursue a contract with a community provider to deliver Latino outreach services in the future. 
 

Family Intensive Response Strengthening Team 

The Family Intensive Response Strengthening Team (FIRST) is an Inyo County Health & Human Services 

Children’s System of Care Program. The FIRST program employs a wraparound model in working with 

families with youth at risk of placement in a high level of out-of-home placement, as well as families in 

need of intensive services as a means of building protective factors. This approach allowed us to include 

an intervention strategy for our work with “at risk” families and we are able to strengthen these families 

using a child/family team model. Our team consists of a supervisor, who had worked extensively in a 

drug court program who could lead the team encouraging home-based support, a Parent Partner, a 

Social worker, and two HHS Specialists. We also pull in resources from the Behavioral Health Child and 

Family program, our Substance Use Disorder program, First Five program, as well as other agencies to 

intensively support the families. As the result of this expansion, we have served families with younger 

children. We are continuing to look for ways to expand the successful wraparound and home-based 

services as we plan to more fully implement the Continuum of Care Reform. 
 

Due to the blended funding strategy, we served 16 families under the FIRST strategy. Results suggested 

an increase of 61% in Protective Factors as measured on the Family Development Matrix. The largest 

increase was seen on the factors of Child Development Services and Parent Knowledge of Child 

Development. In 18/19, we propose to continue our partial funding of this effective strategy. The MHSA 

portion of the costs was $251,682, for an approximate cost of $15,730 per family. 
 

Early Intervention Programs- Challenges and Mitigation Efforts 

A continuing barrier for Inyo County is the small number of staff and the issues caused when staff 

vacancies occur. In a small county, all vacancies are “key” and have an impact on service delivery and 

strategy implementation. We were able to hire our previously certified trainer in PCIT to provide training 

and supervision in PCIT to interns and HHS Specialists, as well as persons in the FIRST program and 

others from partner agencies. This approach will continue to be used to mitigate the loss of the strategy 

due to staff turnover. 



7 
ICHHS-BH: Strengthening Well-Being & Resilience Through Hope, Healing, and Support 

 

 

The main challenge that we are facing, in practicing PCIT, is keeping families engaged throughout the 

intensive program. Most families stay for 4-6 session and then fail to return. This could be due, in part, 

to the positive impact of the first sessions. We are exploring options in the community to potentially 

train PCIT to students enrolled in our local community college early childhood education program. This 

could help us keep families engaged as these students would provide child care to the families while the 

parents were in one-on-one therapy sessions with our licensed clinicians. The students would gain 

invaluable experience practicing PCIT techniques with the children and our clinicians can work on 

engaging the parents past 4 sessions. 
 

In FY 2018/2019, we propose to address the need for school-based early intervention services through 

the support of the North Star Counseling Center. This strategy will allow North Star to hire an additional 

intern to provide early intervention services, such as one-to-one and group counseling, as well as 

presentations on topics to create increased mental health awareness and decrease stigma. 
 

PEI Outreach/Suicide Prevention/Stigma Reduction Programs 
The listing of PEI programs below identifies the areas of focus for our Early Intervention strategies to 

reach our underserved populations. 
 

Mental Health First Aid 

ICHHS-BH has participated in funding statewide outreach efforts through CalMHSA. In addition, we have 

provided three Mental Health First Aid (MHFA) classes. We have trained an additional 30 community 

members in MHFA. We are proposing a contract with North Star Counseling services to conduct 

outreach efforts in the high schools. 
 

Latino Outreach 

In 17/18, we employed a Spanish-speaking Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW) to provide early 

intervention services to the underserved Latino population. In 17/18, the LCSW position provided 

outreach to several community groups including Team Inyo, a consortium of prevention programs, and 

several school events. As part of this strategy, a community survey was developed to look at whether 

the Latino population was aware of mental health resources and identify the places where this 

population may seek support. 
 

ASSIST Model 

ICHHS-BH has participated in funding statewide suicide prevention efforts through CalMHSA. We also 

employed a retired annuitant to provide suicide prevention training (ASSIST model) in our jail, our 

Juvenile Center, and to our staff as part of crisis intervention. We propose a contract with North Star 

Counseling services to participate in CalMHSA’s Directing Change initiative. 
 

Stigma Reduction 

ICHHS-BH has participated in funding statewide stigma reduction through CalMHSA for events such as 

Directing Change and Each Mind Matters. In addition, we have addressed issues of stigma through 

consumer participation as volunteers in community events, such as health fairs, “trunk or treat,” and fun 



8 
ICHHS-BH: Strengthening Well-Being & Resilience Through Hope, Healing, and Support 

 

 

runs. Wellness Center visitors and Progress House residents have also organized and participated in food 

drives for the local food banks. We held two kite-flying events during Mental Health Awareness month 

in 2018 and 2019. We plan on making the kite flying an annual event in the month of May each year. 
 

Access and Linkages Programs 
ICHHS-BH is meeting this requirement through other MHSA components such as Friendly Visitor, Elder 

Outreach, and FIRST, as described above. These three programs include an assessment and referral 

process. All programs have the ability to refer to mental health services, which help the members of our 

underserved populations gain access to services. In the future we propose to establish a more formal 

referral system that is tracked between divisions and agencies. 
 

Corrective Action Plan 
ICHHS-BH is approaching the PEI 3-Year Evaluation Plan, not as an evaluative report, but rather a 

corrective action plan to improve the data collection, monitoring, and evaluation of our PEI programs. 

The 2018-19 Annual Update provides some areas of deficiencies and significant changes regarding PEI 

but moving forward, this plan will identify the initiatives and changes to services that will increase our 

oversight of PEI services. Ensuring compliance and adherence to PEI regulations are the focus of this 3- 

Year Plan. This plan will also identify the systemic changes that will be instituted to support the changes 

and ensure the timely completion of this plan in the coming years. 
 

Below we have outlined the specific action steps that will be implemented through this plan by ICHHS- 

BH, in order to be fully compliant with the intent and requirements of PEI. 

1. Prior to Oct 1, 2019, all PEI strategies will be clearly defined and classified into a PEI Program 

category. 

a. Prior to Oct 1, 2019, all PEI programs will be clearly defined and classified into a PEI 

Strategy. This process was initiated while developing our 3-Year Evaluation Plan. 

2. Develop a Stakeholder Engagement Plan by Sept 1, 2019 to increase community involvement in 

the planning, monitoring, and evaluation of PEI Programs. 

a. Continue to work on the Stakeholder Engagement Plan. The main components of the 

engagements are key informant interviews, meetings, survey of the month question, 

etc. 

b. ICHHS-BH will also host monthly community stakeholder meetings (with clients and 

their support systems) to enhance stakeholder involvement and include the most 

diverse perspectives throughout the year, not just at annual update time. 

c. ICHHS-BH plans to host two Community-wide Behavioral Health Community Quality 

Improvement Committee Meetings to include all stakeholders; internal, external, and 

clients and their support systems. One of these meetings will be held in South County 

3. Prior to Nov 1, 2019, ICHHS-BH will meet with all divisions running the PEI funded programs to 

develop a data collection method to capture demographics, service information, and outcomes, 

to include both pre and post measures. 



9 
ICHHS-BH: Strengthening Well-Being & Resilience Through Hope, Healing, and Support 

 

 

a. By Nov 2019, the MHSA Coordinator, and assigned Analyst, will meet with the various 

program managers that are using PEI funds. This meeting will decide the data collection 

methods and reporting mechanisms required 

4. Prior to Jan 1, 2020, ICHHS-BH will amend contracts, as necessary, to be informed of the new 

language requiring PEI data collection, specific outcomes reporting, and measuring based on 

the regulatory requirements of the category that the program falls into. 

a. Contract Amendments – All service agreements for PEI programs and services will be 

amended for FY 2020‐2021 and on so all programs and providers can capture all the 

required data,  outcomes, and measures  beginning  on  the  first  day  of  January,  

2020. The Behavioral Health Deputy Director shall develop the specific language needed 

for each of the programs based on the classification in a PEI category and provide that 

language to the Contracts Division, as well as provide any technical assistance on 

specifics related to PEI and/or the regulations. 

5. Develop a referral system, for both internal and external providers that can be tracked 

throughout the system of care. This is in order to collect the appropriate data to be compliant 

with Access and Linkages Programs. 

a. ICHHS-BH is actively working with internal and external partners to develop a referral 

process to include tracking and reporting. The referral tracking will be used to link 

clients across programs. Ex: If we find that most ICHHS-BH clients also seek services 

from our local food pantry, we know that we can increase outreach and engagement 

efforts, and create access and linkages, at that location. We hope to have this fully 

implemented by Oct 2019. 

6. Host meetings and disseminate information to all divisions/providers on PEI data collection and 

specific reporting requirements prior to Dec 1, 2019. 

a. MHSA Coordinator will work with and host trainings for all PEI providers (Friendly 

Visitors, Outreach, etc.) on PEI requirements, a review of current regulations, and 

address specific needs of each of the programs. These shall completed by Jan 2020 to 

allow programs and providers time to implement the requirements for 2020-2021. 

7. By December 1, 2019, ICHHS-BH will establish procedures requiring the PEI Annual Update begin 

by February 1st with the plan being completed in full by May 1st of each year. (This allows for a 

30-day posting period so we can hold the public hearing as soon as each fiscal year begins.) 

a. The development of formal written procedures for MHSA and PEI reviews, plan updates, 

developments and stakeholder input, needs to be established to guide the Division’s 

efforts, provide clear expectations of what needs to be completed to be successful, who 

is responsible for those tasks, and establish timelines for all related activities, such as 

quarterly monitoring, development of reports, community and stakeholder groups, etc. 

The procedure will be part of a larger effort for MHSA oversight, but specific procedures 

will be developed for the PEI component of MHSA as well. 

8. Starting in January 2020, a quarterly review of PEI data shall be conducted by the MHSA 

Coordinator and related staff. The reviews will increase oversight of the requested measures



10 
ICHHS-BH: Strengthening Well-Being & Resilience Through Hope, Healing, and Support 

 

 

and outcomes, and will allow for changes to be made accordingly throughout the year to ensure 

compliance. 
 

Final Summary 
When developing our 3-year Evaluation Plan, ICHHS-BH faced many challenges in collecting the data 

that would meet the regulations of the MHSOAC. As such, we are dedicated to the strategies that we 

have adopted and dedicated to providing services to our community. This Corrective Action Plan 

provides the specific action steps that we will take to ensure compliance in the future. We know that 

ICHHS-BH is doing whatever it takes to meet the needs of our clients and are committed to showing our 

efforts through the data collection mechanisms outlined in this plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment to the August 6, 2019 Minutes and Corresponding Board Order for the Standard 
Agreement between the County of Inyo and California Department of Public Health for HIV care and treatment 
services. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve an amendment to the August 6, 2019 minutes and Board Order regarding Standard 
Agreement No. 18-10869 between the County of Inyo and the California Department of Public Health; and B) 
authorize the HHS Director to sign a current Contract Certification Clause for resubmittal to the State. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On August 6, 2019 your Board approved the Standard Agreement Number 18-10869 between the County of Inyo 
and the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) for HIV care and treatment services under the Ryan 
White HIV/AIDS Program, with the total grant amount not to exceed $401,777 for the period of April 1, 2019 
through March 31, 2024. Unfortunately these dates were incorrectly stated as April 1, 2019 through March 21, 
2024 on the Agenda Request submitted for this item. These dates were the dates that ultimately appeared on the 
agenda and thus became part of the motion recorded in both the minutes and Board Order for this item. The 
error in the Board Order and minutes does not affect the contract itself, as it is a legally and binding document 
that was approved by the Board, however the record still needs to be amended to reflect the correct contract 
date. 

Your Board also authorized the Director of Health and Human Services to sign the Standard Agreement, 
Contractor Certification Claus, Certification Regarding Lobbying, Darfur Contracting Act and the California Civil 
Rights Laws Attachment. Unfortunately the Contractor Certification Claus that was provided was not the most 
current form required by the CDPH. We request at this time that the Board approve the Director of Health and 
Human Services to sign the current Contract Certification Clause in order to resubmit it to the State. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this amendment as requested, but it is not recommended. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 20190806HHS-PublicHealth-RatifyCDPHHIV-AIDSProgramAgreement
2. Contract Certification Clause
 
APPROVALS:
Sharon Wilson Created/Initiated - 9/23/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 9/23/2019
Sharon Wilson Approved - 9/23/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/24/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/24/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/24/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 9/24/2019
Rhiannon Baker Final Approval - 9/24/2019



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

             In the Rooms of the Board of Supervisors 
                           County of Inyo, State of California  
              

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, 

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 6th day of August 2019 an order was duly 

made and entered as follows: 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

HHS-Public Health 
& Prevention – 
CDPH HIV/AIDS 
Program 
Agreement 
Ratification 

Moved by Supervisor Tillemans and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to ratify and approve 
Standard Agreement No. 18-10869 between the County of Inyo and California Department of 
Public Health for HIV care and treatment services under the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program, 
with the total grant amount not to exceed $401,777 for the period of April 1, 2019 through 
March 21, 2024, and authorize the HHS Director to sign the agreement and associated 
documents. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

  

  

  

Routing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CC       
Purchasing   
Personnel   
Auditor    
CAO  
Other: HHS 
 DATE: August 9, 2019 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 6th       
Day of  August, 2019  

 

 
 

CLINT G. QUILTER 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 
 

               
                             By: _____________________________ 



AGENDA REQUEST F'ORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

nconsent X Departmentai l-l corr"rpondence Action Public
Hearing

I s"n"ort"d rime for

FttENMNtr,frbn

3r"

Closed Session ! lnformational

FROM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES-Public Health Division

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: August 6, 2019

SUBJECT: Standard Agreement between the County of Inyo and California Depaftment of Public Health for
HIV care and treatment services.

DEPARTM ENTAL RECO M M E N DATION :
Request your Board ratify the Standard Agreement Number 18-10869 between the County of Inyo and the California
Department of Public Health for HIV care and treatment seruices under the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program, with the total
grant amount not to exceed $40L,777 for the period of April L, 2019 through March 21, 2024 and authorize the Director of
Health and Human Seruices to sign the Standard Agreement, Contractor Certification, Ceftification Regarding Lobbying,
Darfur Contracting Act and the California Civil Rights Laws Attachment.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSIOTT:
The new grant cycle for the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program began April 1, 2019. This agreement is coming to you late
because it was received from California Department of Public Health in May 2019 and was further delayed when
authorized signer information required amendment. Funding under this new S-year cycle has not changed compared to
the previous S-year funding rycle.

The purpose of this grant is to provide HIV care and treatment services under the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program Part B

to low income people living with HIV throughout Inyo County, The goals of this program are (1) to minimize new HIV
infections; (2) to maximize the number of people with HIV who access appropriate care, treatment, support and (3)
reduce HIV/AIDS related disparities.

ALTERNATIVES:
Your Board could choose not to approve this agreement which would mean Inyo County would not be able to provide the
needed seruices to this population.

OTH ER AGENCY INVOLVEM ENT:
Collaboration with other agencies and programs as needed including, Northern Inyo Hospital, Toiyabe Indian Health and
Pioneer Home Health (Hospice of Owens Valley)

FINANCING:
100o/o Federal Funding, passed down through the State, Monies are recognized in the CARES budget (6a1219/20). No
County General Funds.



COUNTY COUNSEL:

q{^aA (},ad^lo-

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (MUSI be
reviewed and approved by Coun$ Counsel prior to submission to the Board Clerk.)

Date: l lnl 11Approved: \t.oD
AU ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be revlewed and approved by the Auditor/Controller pior to

Dale:

submission to the Board Clerk)

7

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNA
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received)

T



State of California - Health and Human Services Agency - California Department of Public Health
9DPH 1229 ('t2t2l17')

California Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program - Part B Program

Awarded By

THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH, hereinafter "Department"

TO

County of lnyo, hereinafter "Grantee"

lmplementing the project, "HlV Care Program", hereinafter "Project"

GRANT AGREEMENT NUMBER 18-10869

The Department awards this Grant and the Grantee accepts and agrees to use the Grant funds
as follows:

AUTHORITY: The Department has authority to grant funds for the Project under Health and
Safety Code, Section 131085.

PURPOSE: The Department shall provide a grant to and for the benefit of the Grantee; the
purpose of the Grant is to provide HIV care and treatment services under the Ryan White
HIV/AIDS Program Part B to low income people living with HIV throughout California.

GRANT AMOUNT: The maximum amount payable under this Grant shall not exceed $401,777

TERM OF GRANT AGREEMENT: The term of the Grant shall begin on April 1, 2Q19 and
terminates on March 31,2024. No funds may be requested or invoiced for services performed
or costs incurred after March 31,2024.

PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES: The Project Representatives during the term of this Grant will
be:

California Department of Public Health County of Inyo
Jessica Heskin, Chief

1616 CapitolAvenue, Suite 616, MS 7700
Sacramento, CA 95814

Telephone: (91 6) 449-581 9
Fax: (916) 449-5959
Email: iessica.heskin@cdph.ca.qov

Anna Scott, HHS Deputy Director

2O7 A South Street
Bishop, CA 93514

Telephone: (760) 873-7868
Fax: (760) 873-7800
Email: ascott@invocounW. us

Page 1 of 3



California Department of Public Health County of lnyo
Patricia Bittle, Care Advisor

1616 CapitolAvenue, Suite 616, MS 7700
Sacramento, CA 95814

Telephone: (91 6) 449-5988
Fax: (916) 449-5959
Email: patricia.bittle@cdph.ca.sov

Anna Scott, HHS Deputy Director

207 A South Street
Bishop, CA 93514

Telephone: (760) 873-7868
Fax: (760) 873-7800
Email: ascott@inyocountv.us

State of California - Health and Human Services Agency - California Department of Public Health
ODPH 1229 ('t2t2l17)

Direct all inquiries to

Either party may change its Project Representative upon written notice to the other party

All payments from CDPH to the Grantee; shall be sent to the following address:

Remittance Address
County of lnyo
Fl$CAL lD: 0000008422

Cashier - Melissa Best-Baker, Senior Management Analyst

P.O. Drawer H
lndependence, CA 93526

Telephone: (760) 873-7868
Fax: (760) 873-7800
Email : mbest-baker@inyocountv. us

STANDARD PROVISIONS: The following exhibits are attached and made a part of this Grant
by this reference:

EXHIBIT A
EXHIBIT AI
EXHIBIT B
EXHIBIT C
EXHIBIT D
EXHIBIT E
EXHIBIT F

LETTER OF INTENT
LIST OF ALLOCATIONS
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS
STANDARD GRANT CONDITIONS*
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS
INFORMATION PRIVACY AND SECURITY REQUIRMENTS
FEDERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

* ln Exhibit C, #15, paragraph 1, the statement "the Request for Applications (Exhibit D) and the
Grant Application (Exhibit A)" shall now read "the Letter of lntent (Exhibit A)."

GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS: The Grantee(s) accept allterms, provisions, and conditions
of this grant, including those stated in the Exhibits incorporated by reference above. The
Grantee(s) shallfulfill all assurances and commitments made in the application, declarations,
other accompanying documents, and written communications (e.9., e-mail, correspondence)
filed in support of the request for grant funding. The Grantee(s) shall comply with and require its
contractors and subcontractors to comply with all applicable laws, polices, and regulations.

Page 2 of 3



Galifornia Department of Public Health County of Inyo
Patricia Bittle, Care Advisor

1616 CapitolAvenue, Suite 616, MS 7700
Sacramento, CA 95814

Telephone: (91 6) 449-5988
Fax: (916) 449-5959
Email: patricia.bittle@cdph.ca.sov

Anna Scott, HHS Deputy Director

207 A South Street
Bishop, CA 93514

Telephone: (760) 873-7868
Fax (760) 873-7800
Email: ascott@invocountv. us

State of California - Health and Human Services Agency - California Department of Public Health
0DPH 1229 (12t2017)

Direct all inquiries to:

Either party may change its Project Representative upon written notice to the other party

AII payments from CDPH to the Grantee; shall be sent to the following address:

Remittance Address
County of lnyo
Fl$CAL lD: 0000008422

Cashier - Melissa Best-Baker, Senior Management Analyst

P.O. Drawer H
lndependence, CA 93526

Telephone: (760) 873-7868
Fax: (760) 873-7800
lqqail : m best-baker@inyocounty. us

STANDARD PROVISIONS: The following exhibits are attached and made a part of this Grant
by this reference:

EXHIBIT A
EXHIBIT AI
EXHIBIT B
EXHIBIT C
EXHIBIT D
EXHIBIT E
EXHIBIT F

LETTER OF INTENT
LIST OF ALLOCATIONS
BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS
STANDARD GRANT CON DITIONS-
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS
INFORMATION PRIVACY AND SECURITY REQUIRMENTS
FEDERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

* ln Exhibit C, #'15, paragraph 1 , the statement "the Request for Applications (Exhibit D) and the
Grant Application (Exhibit A)" shall now read "the Letter of lntent (Exhibit A)."

GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS: The Grantee(s) accept allterms, provisions, and conditions
of this grant, including those stated in the Exhibits incorporated by reference above. The
Grantee(s) shallfulfill all assurances and commitments made in the application, declarations,
other accompanying documents, and written communications (e.g., e-mail, correspondence)
filed in support of the request for grant funding. The Grantee(s) shall comply with and require its
contractors and subcontractors to comply with all applicable laws, polices, and regulations.

Page 2 of 3



State of California - Health and Human Services Agency - California Department of Public Health
0DPH 1229 (12t2017)

lN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Grant on the dates set forth below

Executed By:

Date:
Marilyn Mann
Gounty of lnyo Health and Human
Services
207 A South Street
Bishop, CA 93514

Date:

Marshay Gregory, Chief
Gontracts Management Unit
Galifornia Department of Public
Health 16{6 CapitolAvenue, Suite
74.262 P.O. Box 997377, MS
1 800-1 804 Sacramento, CA
95899-7377

Page 3 of 3



CCC 04/2017 
CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly 
authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This 
certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with
the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2,
Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with the
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free
workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying
actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:
1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,
4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:
1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,
2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment
on the Agreement.
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under 
the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible 
for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the 
following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 



certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et 
seq.)  

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies 
that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal 
court has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year 
period because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which 
orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. 
Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the 
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 
2003.   

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of 
pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 
multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the 
number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full 
year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for 
legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future 
contracts with the State for legal services. 

5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an 
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of 
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the 
State of California. 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other 
than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that 
no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies 
furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced in whole 
or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or 
with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop 
labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the 
Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial 
Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the 
contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required 
by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with the 
requirements under paragraph (a). 

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts  of $100,000 or more,  Contractor certifies 
that Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

8. GENDER IDENTITY:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of 
California. 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions 
regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has any questions on the 
status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from 
which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and 
which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent 
contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state 
officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the 
negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making 
process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former 
state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was 
employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject 
area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall 
render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive 
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for 
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e)) 



2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the 
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and 
Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance 
of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and 
guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the 
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of 
the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented 
with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting 
agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in 
California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any 
transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are 
some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing 
within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must 
be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will 
determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary 
of State. 

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the 
State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body 
which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the 
agreement. 
7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor 
shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated 
by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease 
and desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water 
Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) 
finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 
 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all 
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Plans and Specifications for the Mazourka Shop Fencing Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve the plans and specifications for the Mazourka Shop Fencing Project; and B) 
authorize the Public Works Director to advertise and bid the project.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Road Department currently has a road yard at the corner of Mazourka Canyon Road and Clay Street in 
Independence. We currently store fuel, materials and equipment outside and are proposing to install a fence 
around the road yard for security purposes.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the plans, specifications, and advertisement of the project. This is not recommended as currently 
there are no security devices at our property
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
This project is funded by the Road Department Budget 034600, Object Code 5265 Professional and Special Services 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Mazourka Shop Fencing Project Bid Package
2. Mazourka Shop Fence Plans
 
APPROVALS:
Travis Dean Created/Initiated - 9/10/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/10/2019
Travis Dean Approved - 9/10/2019
Breanne Nelums Approved - 9/16/2019



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Michael Errante Approved - 9/16/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/16/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/16/2019
Michael Errante Final Approval - 9/16/2019







































































































































































County of Inyo

Public Works - Road Dept.
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Request authorization to purchase one Caterpillar Inc. Model 918M Wheel Loader 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the purchase of one Caterpillar Inc. Model 918M Wheel Loader from Quinn Company of 
City of Industry, CA in an amount not to exceed $157,322.00.

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Road Department is requesting approval to purchase a 2018 Caterpillar Inc. 918M Wheel Loader to replace 
the 1973 Caterpillar 920 Front End Loader that was damaged in an accident on Horseshoe Meadows on April 
17th, 2019.  An insurance claim was submitted by the Risk Department for replacement of the destroyed Front 
End Loader based on the attached quote for a directly comparable model available from Quinn Company.  The 
claim was approved and a check from the insurance provider has been received and deposited in an amount of 
$159,418.38 to cover the cost of the replacement.

The quote provided by Quinn Company utilizes Sourcewell, a cooperative purchasing program that provides 
nationally leveraged discount pricing for Caterpillar equipment (Sourcewell Contract #032119-CAT).  The pricing 
offered through this Sourcewell contract provides the County with a discount of $45,326.28, which makes the 
pricing highly competitive to comparable products offered in the market.  Pursuant to Inyo County Purchasing 
Manual Section III(B)(5), the Road Department may purchase this equipment via the Sourcewell Contract 
through Quinn Company without soliciting bids.

The Road Department is recommending your Board authorize the purchase of one Caterpillar Inc. Model 918M 
Wheel Loader from Quinn Company, to be delivered to the Road Department Maintenance Yard in Bishop.  The 
new equipment will meet all California Air Resources Board (CARB) Tier 4 emission laws and requirements.  The 
total expense, including delivery and taxes, is not to exceed $157,322.00.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Risk Manager Aaron Holmberg delivered a report to the Board regarding the approved insurance claim during 
the August 6th, 2019 Board meeting.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended, as the insurance claim was 
based upon a quote for this model, and this model has been deemed an acceptable replacement for the front end 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

loader that was damaged in mid-April 2019.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
Auditor's Office
 
FINANCING:
The funding for the backhoe loader has been approved in the FY 19/20 Road Department Budget 034600, Object 
Code 5650, Equipment.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. QUOTE Inyo Co Road 918M_rev2
2. 918M
 
APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 9/11/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/11/2019
Trevor Taylor Approved - 9/12/2019
Breanne Nelums Approved - 9/12/2019
Chris Cash Approved - 9/16/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/16/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/16/2019
Michael Errante Final Approval - 9/16/2019



Page 1 of 4 

 
 
Quote 135026-02 

 

 
September 10, 2019 
 

 

 
INYO COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT 
PO BOX Q 
INDEPENDENCE 
California 
93526-0616 
 

 

 
Dear Sir, 
 
We would like to thank you for your interest in our company and our products, and are pleased to quote the following 
for your consideration. 
 

 

 
CATERPILLAR INC. Model: 918M Wheel Loader 

 
SERIAL NUMBER: H2600699          YEAR: 2018           
 
 

We wish to thank you for the opportunity of quoting on your equipment needs. This quotation is valid for 30 days, 
after which time we reserve the right to re-quote. If there are any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 

Tree Ferrell 
208-390-2310 
Machine Sales Representative 
 
 
 



Quinn Group   Quote 135026-02  

Page 2 of 4 

CATERPILLAR INC. Model: 918M Wheel Loader 

 

 
STANDARD EQUIPMENT 
 
POWERTRAIN 

 Cat C4.4 ACERT Engine  Hydrostatic transmission, 
  -Common rail fuel injection  20 km/h (12.5mpr/h 
  -U.S. EPA Tier 4 Final/ EU Stage 4  Lube for life universal joints 
 Caterpillar NOx Reduction System  Forward - Neutral - Reverse on joystick 
 Fuel: Ultra Low Sulphur Diesel @ <15ppm  100% locking differentials, whilst 
 Engine Oil: Cj-4  moving 
 Electric fuel pump with 4 micron  Air cleaner, radial seal, dual filters 
 filtration  Cooling fan, hydraulic on demand 
 S.O.S port, transmission oil  Intergrated Cyclone pre-cleaner 
 
HYDRAULICS 

 Two valve, single lever joystick  SOS port, hydraulic oil 
 Diagnostic pressure taps  Variable displacement piston pump 
 
ELECTRICAL 

 150 Amp alternator  12 volt direct electric starting 
 One 850 CCA maintenance free battery  Battery disconnect switch 

 Roading lights  
 
OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT 

 ROPS/FOPS cab, pressurised and sound   - Hydraulic oil filter bypass 
 suppressed   - Action indicator 
 Hydraulic control lever lockout  Seat 
 Electrohydraulic implement controls   - Fabric or Vinyl 
 Gauges   - adjustable height, backrest, armrest 
  - Engine coolant temperature   - Seat belt, retractable 
  - Hydraulic oil temperature  Heater/defroster 
  - Fuel level  Wiper/washer (front  and  rear) 
  - Speedometer  Tinted front glass,laminated 
  - Digital Hour meter  Adjustable steering column 
  - DEF  Rear window defrost 
 Operator warning system indicators:  Lockable Storage box with cup holder 
  - Brake charge pressure low  Internal 12V power source 
  - Engine malfunction  External 12V power source 
  - Park brake applied  Product Link 

  - Electrical system voltage flow  
 
FLUIDS 

 Extended life coolant antifreeze  Cat advanced Hydo 10 

 Protected to -36C (-33F) hydraulic oil  
 
OTHER STANDARD EQUIPMENT 

 Parallel lift, Optimised Z-Bar loader  Recovery hitch 
 Fenders, front and rear  Vandalism protection - locked service points 

 Engine enclosure - lockable  
 
 



Quinn Group   Quote 135026-02  

Page 3 of 4 

 
MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS 
 

Description Reference No List Amount 

918M WHEEL LOADER 457-1488 $141,410.00 

Standard machine with top speed of 24 mph (40 kph)   

SEAT BELT, RETRACTABLE 3'' 236-8015 $244.00 

VALVE, DRAIN, ECO 308-0189 $155.00 

TIRES, 17.5 R25, MX, L2 XTLA 385-5822 $2,110.00 

BUCKET, GP, 2.2 YD3, IT, BOCE 390-8219 $6,163.00 

POWERTRAIN, HI RIMPULL, 24MPH 396-2519 $4,875.00 

LIGHTS, ROADING, RH DIP 423-5544 $745.00 

SECURITY SYSTEM, NONE 433-3258  

LIGHTS, CAB, WORKING HALOGEN 448-9539 $600.00 

HYDRAULIC OIL, STANDARD 450-5405 $1,135.00 

ENGINE COOLANT, STANDARD 450-5406 $208.00 

HYDRAULICS, 3V/1L, STD LIFT 451-4344 $3,190.00 

HEATER AND AIR CONDITIONER 462-7111 $4,175.00 

BATTERY, HEAVY DUTY 462-7340 $209.00 

ENGINE, C4.4, T4F, HRC 462-7421  

CAB, DELUXE, SINGLE BRAKE 463-2090 $7,580.00 

STEERING, STANDARD 464-9682  

FENDERS, EXTENDED COVER 469-5852 $418.00 

WORKTOOL, WIRING 471-6212 $360.00 

FEATURE PACKAGE,ROAD  and  LOAD,SL 471-6764 $3,680.00 

LOADER ARR, STD CPLR, STD LIFT 472-2513 $2,060.00 

ALARM, BACK-UP 474-1980 $197.00 

INSTRUCTIONS, ANSI 476-2741  

3V QUICK DISCONNECT SCREW FIT 486-3774 $302.00 

CAMERA, REAR VIEW 504-4835 $1,535.00 

PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR, PL240 508-0797  

PREP PACK, EMC 519-5211  

FUEL, STANDARD 524-5098  

SEAT, DELUXE 539-7204 $775.00 

RADIO, AM/FM BLUETOOTH 541-4413 $550.00 

RORO W/RIMS W/TIRES. 0G-3117 $315.00 

RUST PREVENTATIVE APPLICATOR 0G-3273 $110.00 

LANE 3 ORDER 0P-9003  

SERIALIZED TECHNICAL MEDIA KIT 421-8926  

 



Quinn Group   Quote 135026-02  

Page 4 of 4 

 

 
Sell Price $183,266.28 
Ext Warranty $8,060.00 
Sourcewell (formerly NJPA) Contract #032119-CAT ($45,326.28) 
Net Balance Due $146,000.00 
State/Inyo Co (7.75%) $11,315.00 
CA Tire Fee 4 @ 1.75 $7.00 
After Tax Balance $157,322.00 

 
 
  
 
 

WARRANTY 

Standard Warranty: 12 Months Full Machine 

Extended Warranty: Powertrain & Hydraulic, 84 Months or 5000 Hours  

 

F.O.B/TERMS 

Bishop CA, terms available upon request 
 

FINANCING 

Finance terms and conditions subject to credit approval by Caterpillar Financial Services Inc.(CFSC). Payment 
amounts, down payments, and terms are estimates only, final amounts must be determined by CFSC. 
 
 

ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

 Delivery is 2-3 weeks 

 Travel time and mileage not included during warranty period 
 
 

Accepted by   _________________________________________  on  _____________________ 
 
 
                            _____________________________________________________________ 
                                                                     Signature 



FEATURES:
  Cat® Optimized Z-bar Loader Linkage – The Cat Optimized Z-bar Loader 
linkage combines the digging efficiency of a traditional Z-bar with tool 
carrier capabilities for great performance and versatility. With parallel 
lift and high tilt forces throughout the working range you can safely 
and confidently handle loads with precise control.
  Work Tools – The 918M features the Cat exclusive, Performance 
Series Buckets, as well as high visibility pallet forks. These tools 
enhance productivity and are available with either an Integrated 
Toolcarrier (IT) or ISO (wide) coupler style. Legacy coupler tools 
such as brooms, grapple buckets, multi-purpose buckets and 
other work tools remain compatible.
  Hydraulics and Controls – State of the art electro-hydraulic system 
provides low effort, fine control with fast cycle times. All-in-one 
joystick helps keep eyes on the work. Operator can adjust machine 
responsiveness with the push of a button, which allows the operator 
to set up the machine exactly the way they want it based on the 
application. High Flow option allows for the use of even the most 
demanding work tools.

  Tuned Drivetrain – Smooth shifting and powerful acceleration is 
matched with modulated hydrostatic braking in the inching/braking 
pedal, creating a rhythm for material moving. Creeper and electronic 
engine speed control makes broom and snow blower work easy. 
Operator tunes between smooth or aggressive shifting with the 
push of a button.
  Cab – All around visibility is further enhanced with the availability 
of a rearview camera. The deluxe cab ensures operator comfort 
with a heated, air suspension seat and easy to use controls. Available 
features such as Implement and Hystat Aggressiveness, Ride Control, 
Lift and Tilt Kickouts, Engine Speed Control and Rimpull Control allow 
the operator to customize the machine via a soft touch keypad.
  Serviceability – Extended service intervals and excellent service access 
make daily checks quick and easy allowing you to get to work sooner.
  Efficiently Powerful with its high full turn tipping loads, powerful 
breakout forces and increased engine power the M Series delivers 
a balanced solution for all customer applications.
  Standard Fuel Savings Features such as Eco Mode, On Demand Cooling 
Fan, and Auto Engine Idle Shutdown make the 918M both powerful and 
fuel efficient.

Engine
Engine Model Cat C4.4 ACERT™
Maximum Gross Power:
 Maximum Engine Speed 2,350 RPM
 SAE J1995 87 kW 117 hp
 ISO 14396 86 kW 115 hp
 ISO 14396 (DIN) 86 kW 117 hp
Rated Net Power:
 Rated Engine Speed 2,200 RPM
 SAE J1349 83 kW 112 hp
 ISO 9249 84 kW 113 hp
 ISO 9249 (DIN) 84 kW 114 hp
Displacement 4.4 L 268 in3
Bore 105 mm 4.13 in
Stroke 127 mm 5.00 in

Engine (continued)
Maximum Gross Torque:
 SAE J1995 504 N·m 372 lbf-ft
 ISO 14396 500 N·m 369 lbf-ft
Maximum Net Torque:
 SAE J1349 490 N·m 361 lbf-ft
 ISO 9249 495 N·m 365 lbf-ft

•  Engine meets U.S. EPA Tier 4 Final/EU Stage IV emission standards.
•  Net power advertised is the power available at the flywheel plus 

front drive implement pump when the engine is equipped with fan, 
air cleaner, muffler and alternator.

Specifications

Cat®

918M
COMPACT WHEEL LOADER



Buckets
Bucket Capacities – General Purpose 1.3-1.9 m3 1.7-2.5 yd3

Steering
Steering Articulation Angle (each direction) 40 degrees
Maximum Flow – Steering Pump 82 L/min 21.7 gal/min
Maximum Working Pressure –
 Steering Pump 22 000 kPa 3,190 psi
Steering Cycle Times (full left to full right):
 At 2,350 RPM: 90 RPM
 steering wheel speed 2.3 seconds
Number of Steering Wheel Turns – full left
 to full right or full right to full left 3.4 turns

Loader Hydraulic System
Maximum Flow – Implement Pump 165 L/min 43.6 gal/min
 3rd Function, Maximum Flow, Standard 95 L/min 25 gal/min
 3rd Function, Maximum Flow, High 150 L/min 40 gal/min
 4rd Function, Maximum Flow 95 L/min 25 gal/min
Maximum Working Pressure –
 Implement Pump 28 000 kPa 4,061 psi
Relief Pressure – Tilt Cylinder 32 000 kPa 4,641 psi
 3rd Function Relief Pressure 32 000 kPa 4,641 psi
 4th Function Relief Pressure 32 000 kPa 4,641 psi

Hydraulic Cycle Times:
 Raise (ground level to maximum lift) 4.8 seconds
 Dump (at maximum reach) 1.8 seconds
 Rack Back 2.2 seconds
 Float Down (maximum lift to ground level) 2.7 seconds
 Total Cycle Time 11.5 seconds

Note: All cycle times listed are with cylinder snubbing turned off. 

Service Refill Capacities
Fuel Tank 154.0 L 40.7 gal
Cooling System 21.5 L 5.7 gal
Engine Crankcase 8.8 L 2.3 gal
Axles:
 Front 17 L 4.5 gal
 Rear 17 L 4.5 gal
Hydraulic System (including tank) 98.0 L 25.9 gal
Hydraulic Tank 55.0 L 14.5 gal
Transmission 3.4 L 0.9 gal
Diesel Exhaust Fluid (DEF) Tank 18.9 L 5.0 gal

•  DEF used in Cat SCR systems must meet the requirements outlined in the 
International Organization for Standardization (ISO) standard 22241-1.

Transmission
Forward and Reverse:
 Low Range, Speed Range 1* 10 km/h 6.3 mph
 Low Range, Speed Range 2 20 km/h 12.5 mph
 High Range 40 km/h 25 mph

* Creeper Control allows speed control from a stand still up to 10 km/h 
(6.3 mph). The Creeper Control will only work in Range 1.

Tires
Standard Size 17.5-25 12PR
Other Choices Include: 17.5-25 12PR L2
  17.5-R25 XHA * L3
  17.5-R25 * L2/L3 PC RM
  17.5-25 16PR L3, 3PC Rim
  17.5-25 GY L2/L3
  17.5-25 12PR L2, SNOW
  Flexport™
•  Other tire choices are available. Contact your Cat dealer for details.
•  In certain applications, the loader’s productive capabilities may exceed 

the tire’s tonnes-km/h (ton-mph) capabilities.
•  Caterpillar recommends that you consult a tire supplier to evaluate all 

conditions before selecting a tire model.

Cab
ROPS  SAE J1040 MAY94, ISO 3471-1994
FOPS  SAE J/ISO 3449 APR98, Level II, 

ISO 3449 1992 Level II

•  Cab and Rollover Protective Structures (ROPS) are standard in 
North America and Europe.

•  The declared dynamic operator sound pressure levels per 
ISO 6396:2008*, when properly installed and maintained, is 77 dB(A).

•  The labelled sound power level for the CE marked configurations when 
measured according to the test procedure and conditions specified in 
2000/14/EC is 103 dB(A).

* The measurements were conducted with the cab doors and windows 
closed.

Axles
Front Fixed
   Locking differential (standard)
Rear Oscillating ±11 degrees
  Locking differential (standard)

2

918M Compact Wheel Loader



3

918M Compact Wheel Loader

Dimensions and Operating Specifications (All dimensions are approximate. Dimensions vary with bucket and tire choice.)

*Vary with bucket. **Vary with tire. Standard Lift – IT Standard Lift – ISO Standard Lift – PO

** 1 Height: Ground to Cab 3110 mm 10'2" 3110 mm 10'2" 3110 mm 10'2"

** 2 Height: Ground to Beacon 3300 mm 10'9" 3300 mm 10'9" 3300 mm 10'9"

** 3 Height: Ground Axle Center 640 mm 2'1" 640 mm 2'1" 640 mm 2'1"

** 4 Height: Ground Clearance 438 mm 1'5" 438 mm 1'5" 438 mm 1'5"

* 5 Length: Overall 6652 mm 21'9" 6708 mm 22'0" 6583 mm 21'7"

6 Length: Rear Axle to Bumper 1615 mm 5'3" 1615 mm 5'3" 1615 mm 5'3"

7 Length: Hitch to Front Axle 1350 mm 4'5" 1350 mm 4'5" 1350 mm 4'5"

8 Length: Wheel Base 2700 mm 8'10" 2700 mm 8'10" 2700 mm 8'10"

* 9 Clearance: Bucket at 45 degrees 2838 mm 9'3" 2800 mm 9'2" 2882 mm 9'5"

** 10 Clearance: Load over Height 3381 mm 11'1" 3381 mm 11'1" 3381 mm 11'1"

** 11 Clearance: Level Bucket 3562 mm 11'8" 3562 mm 11'8" 3563 mm 11'8"

** 12 Height: Bucket Pin 3818 mm 12'6" 3818 mm 12'6" 3818 mm 12'6"

** 13 Height: Overall 4847 mm 15'10" 4882 mm 16'0" 4825 mm 15'9"

* 14 Reach: Bucket at 45 degrees 933 mm 3'0" 974 mm 3'2" 881 mm 2'10"

15 Carry Height: Bucket Pin 353 mm 1'1" 345 mm 1'1" 353 mm 1'1"

** 16 Dig Depth 61 mm 2.4" 61 mm 2.4" 60 mm 2.3"

17 Width: Bucket 2401 mm 7'10" 2401 mm 7'10" 2401 mm 7'10"

18 Width: Tread Center 1800 mm 5'10" 1800 mm 5'10" 1800 mm 5'10"

19 Turning Radius: Over Bucket 5410 mm 17'8" 5425 mm 17'9" 5390 mm 17'8"

20 Width: Over Tires 2259 mm 7'4" 2259 mm 7'4" 2259 mm 7'4"

21 Turning Radius: Outside of Tires 4877 mm 16'0" 4877 mm 16'0" 4877 mm 16'0"

22 Turning Radius: Inside of Tires 2563 mm 8'5" 2563 mm 8'5" 2563 mm 8'5"

23 Rack Angle at Full Lift 55 degrees 55 degrees 55 degrees

24 Dump Angle at Full Lift 47 degrees 47 degrees 47 degrees

25 Rack Angle at Carry 44 degrees 44 degrees 44 degrees

26 Departure Angle 33 degrees 33 degrees 33 degrees

27 Articulation Angle 40 degrees 40 degrees 40 degrees

*Tipping Load – Straight (ISO 14397-1) 6903 kg 15,219 lb 6740 kg 14,859 lb 7272 kg 16,032 lb

*Tipping Load – Full Turn (ISO 14397-1) 5825 kg 12,837 lb 5681 kg 12,524 lb 6157 kg 13,574 lb

*Breakout Force 8480 kg 18,695 lb 7933 kg 17,489 lb 9113 kg 20,091 lb

*Operating Weight 9469 kg 20,876 lb 9491 kg 20,924 lb 9282 kg 20,463 lb

Dimensions listed are for a machine configured with general purpose bucket, bolt-on cutting edges, 80 kg (176 lb) operator, and 17.5 R25 (L2) tires.

16 

1 
2 

3 

6 

4 

5 

7 

8 

15 

9 
10 

11 
12 

13 
14 

23 

24 

26 

25 

17 

18 

20 

22 

21 

19 

27 



918M Compact Wheel Loader

AEHQ7803-01 (05-2016)
Replaces AEHQ7803

(EU, NACD)

For more complete information on Cat products, dealer services, and industry solutions, visit us on the web at www.cat.com

© 2016 Caterpillar
All rights reserved

Materials and specifications are subject to change without notice. Featured machines in photos may include additional 
equipment. See your Cat dealer for available options.

CAT, CATERPILLAR, SAFETY.CAT.COM, their respective logos, “Caterpillar Yellow” and the “Power Edge” trade dress, as well 
as corporate and product identity used herein, are trademarks of Caterpillar and may not be used without permission.

STANDARD EQUIPMENT

POWER TRAIN
 Cat C4.4 ACERT engine:

• Common rail fuel injection
• Tier 4 Final/Stage IV
 Caterpillar NOx reduction system
 Fuel: Ultra Low Sulphur Diesel @ 
<15 ppm EPA/<10 ppm EU
 Engine oil: CJ-4
 Electric fuel pump with 4 micron filtration
 S·O·SSM port, transmission oil
 Hydrostatic transmission, 20 km/h (12.5 mph)
 Lube for life universal joints
 Forward – Neutral – Reverse on joystick
 100% locking differentials
 Air cleaner, radial seal, dual filters
 Cooling fan, on demand
 Tires 17.5-25 12PR
 Integrated cyclone precleaner

LOADER END
 Parallel lift, optimized Z-bar loader

REGIONAL STANDARDS (as required)
 Back-up alarm
 Chocks, bucket tooth or edge
 Decals, roading speed
 Beacon
 Reflectors, roading
 Camera, rearview

HYDRAULICS
 Two valve, single lever joystick
 Diagnostic pressure taps
 S·O·S port, hydraulic oil
 Variable displacement piston pump
 Cylinder damping at kickout and end stops

ELECTRICAL
 150 amp alternator
 Single 850 CCA maintenance free battery
 Roading lights
 Battery disconnect switch

FLUIDS
 Extended life coolant antifreeze, protected 
to –36° C (–33° F)
 Cat Advanced HYDO 10 hydraulic oil

CHASSIS
 Front and rear fenders
 Lockable engine enclosure
 Recovery hitch
 Vandalism protection – locked service points

OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT
 ROPS/FOPS cab, pressurised and sound 
suppressed
 Implement lockout
 Electro-hydraulic implement controls
 Gauges:

• Engine coolant temperature
• Hydraulic oil temperature
• Fuel level
• Speedometer
• Digital hour meter
• DEF level indicator
 Warning system indicators:

• Emission malfunction
• Air filter restriction
• Brake charge pressure low
• Engine malfunction
• Park brake applied
• Electrical system voltage flow
• Hydraulic oil filter bypass
• Action indicator 
 Seat:

• Fabric or vinyl
• Adjustable height, backrest, armrest
 Heater/defroster
 Tinted front glass, laminated
 Adjustable steering column
 Rear window defrost
 Lockable storage box
 Internal 12V power source
 External 12V power source

OPTIONAL EQUIPMENT

POWER TRAIN
 Secondary steering
 Sound suppression, EU Prep Package
 Extreme temperature engine coolant
 High speed option 40 km/h (25 mph)
 918M tire options:

• 17.5-25 12PR L2
• 17.5-R25 XHA * L3
• 17.5-R25 * L2/L3 PC RM
• 17.5-25 16PR L3, 3PC Rim
• 17.5-25 GY L2/L3
• 17.5-25 12PR L2, SNOW
• Flexport™

LOADER END
 Integrated tool carrier coupler
 Wide (ISO) coupler

HYDRAULICS
 Three valve, single lever joystick
 Four valve, single lever joystick
 High flow, third valve

ELECTRICAL
 Halogen lights, front and rear
 LED work lights, front and rear
 Heavy duty battery package
 Work tool wiring harness

FLUIDS
 Biodegradable hydraulic oil

CHASSIS
 Lockable toolbox
 Fenders, mud flaps

OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT
 ROPS/FOPS canopy or cab
 Premium heated, air suspension seat
 Heater and air conditioner
 Feature Package: Road/Load/Road & Load. 
Dependent on package selection, features 
included are:
• Adjustable Rimpull
• Ride Control
• Adjustable Ground Speed Control
• Implement Modulation
• Hystat Aggressiveness
• Throttle Lock and Adjust
• Automatic Loader lift and bucket kickouts 

adjustable in cab
 Cat radio (Bluetooth)
 Rear blind
 Security system
 Retractable seat belt 75 mm (3")
 Rearview camera and screen (standard in EU)
 Product Link™



County of Inyo

Public Works - Road Dept.
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Road Closure on Line Street in Lone Pine on October 2, 2019, between the hours of 12:30 p.m. and 
1:30 p.m. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the closure of a portion of Line Street in Lone Pine on Wednesday, October 2, 2019 
between the hours of 12:30 p.m. and 1:30 p.m.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Inyo County Probation Department has submitted an application for a special event permit and is requesting 
permission to close a portion of Line Street in Lone Pine between the hours of 12:30 p.m. and 1:30 p.m. on 
October 2, 2019 for the purpose of a mock simulation of an alcohol involved motor vehicle accident. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the closure and the Probation Department and other participating 
agencies would need to hold the event in a different location or reschedule the simulation.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Various emergency agencies
Healthy Communities of Southern Inyo
Southern Inyo Hospital
Inyo County Probation Department
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Event Map
 
APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 9/9/2019



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/10/2019
Trevor Taylor Approved - 9/23/2019
Chris Cash Final Approval - 9/23/2019







County of Inyo

Public Works - Road Dept.
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Road Closure on School Street between Baker Creek Road and Blake Road in Big Pine on October 
12, 2019, between the hours of 8:45 a.m. and 10:00 a.m. for the Big Pine Homecoming Parade. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the closure of a portion of School Street in Big Pine from 8:45 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. on 
October 12, 2019 for the purpose of the Big Pine Homecoming Parade. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Big Pine Unified School District (USD) has submitted a Special Event Permit Application and is requesting 
permission to close School Street as depicted in the attached map for the annual Big Pine Homecoming Parade.

In the past, a Board Resolution was passed to allow for the annual event to take place each year without 
additional Board action via a parade route along Highway 395.  The Big Pine USD has been utilizing School 
Street for the parade route instead of Highway 395 since 2013 in order to avoid closure of the highway.

The Big Pine Unified School District will be required to send notices of road closure to all residents on School 
Street, Crocker Street, and Cornell Street at least 48 hours prior to the closure as well as posting notices 
throughout the community. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the road closure and Big Pine USD would have to then request 
permission from Caltrans to close Highway 395 for the parade, using School Street as a detour for the diverted 
traffic.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Sheriff Office
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Parade Route
 
APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 9/10/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/11/2019
Trevor Taylor Approved - 9/13/2019
Chris Cash Final Approval - 9/16/2019



£¤395

£¤395

WE
ST

 S
T

COUNTY RD

S M
AI

N 
ST

HWY 168

HOME ST

S S
CH

OO
L S

T
BAKER CREEK RD

NORTH ST

EA
ST

 ST

SIERRA ST

US HWY 395

S P
IPE

R 
ST

BARTELL RD

N 
PIN

E 
ST

N 
PIP

ER
 S

T

BROWN AVE

CA
NA

L S
T

CENTER ST

POPLAR AVE

BIG PINE CANAL

S C
RA

TE
R 

ST

N 
SC

HO
OL

 ST

N 
CR

AT
ER

 ST

S N
EW

MA
N 

ST

HI
LL

 ST

S R
IC

HA
RD

S S
T

N 
RI

CH
AR

DS
 S

T

LOCUST AVE

W CROCKER AVEGLACIER LODGE RD

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON
 ST

BLAKE RD

N 
MA

IN
 ST

HA
RR

Y S
T

DEWEY ST

CA
LL

IN
A S

T

WALNUT ST

WA
TS

ON
 ST

BUTCHER LN

CORNELL ST

W SEPSEY ST

CHESTNUT ST
S B

OW
ER

S S
T

RO
SS

I L
N

BAKER LN

HA
LL

 ST

E SEPSEY LN

N 
BO

W
ER

S S
T

S P
IN

E S
T

MA
IN

 ST

NANCY LN

BIG PINE CANAL

LOCUST AVE

US HWY 395

BIG PINE HIGH SCHOOL HOMECOMING  PARADE
ROAD CLOSURE

BIG PINE

SPECIAL EVENT DETOUR ROUTES
CLOSURE

/
0 730 1,460

Feet

£¤168

18       28" CONES
 9        BARRICADES                                

BARRICADE
28" CONE

SE14-21 Page 5

Attachment A



County of Inyo

Public Works - Road Dept.
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Road Closure on Bartell Road between Hill Street and Richards Street in Big Pine on October 5, 
2019, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the closure of a portion of Bartell Road on October 5, 2019 between the hours of 8:00 
a.m. and 12:00 p.m. for the purpose of the Big Pine Paiute Tribe's Fall Fandango.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Big Pine Paiute Tribe has submitted an application for a special event permit and is requesting permission to 
close Bartell Road as depicted in the attached map for the annual Fall Fandango parade and event.  The parade 
will take place on Hill Street, Bartell Road, and Richards Road.  Bartell is the only road involved that is under 
County jurisdiction.  

The Big Pine Paiute Tribe will be required to send notices of road closure to residents whose access will be 
affected by the closure at least 48 hours prior to the event.  Notices should also be posted throughout the 
community and in the Post Office and Tribal Offices.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the closure and the Big Pine Paiute Tribe would have to hold the event 
on non-County roads.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo County Sheriffs Office
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2019 Event Map
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 9/19/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/19/2019
Trevor Taylor Approved - 9/23/2019
Chris Cash Final Approval - 9/23/2019



ahelms
Text Box
2019



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Sharon Wilson 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Agreement between the County of Inyo and California Department of Public Health for 
HIV/AIDS Surveillance. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve Standard Agreement Number 19-10419 between the County of Inyo and the 
California Department of Public Health for the provision of HIV surveillance services for a total grant amount of 
$23,340 from the period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Standard Agreement, Contractor Certification, Civil Rights 
Form, and the Darfur Contracting Act Certification.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This contract is coming before your board late because it was not provided to Inyo County until August, 2019 and 
was routed upon confirmation that all relevant contract documents were completed.

The HIV Surveillance Program is designed to assure the timeliness, accuracy and reliability of HIV and AIDS 
reporting and case findings. Program activities include: investigation of reported cases, ongoing updated reports 
to State on client labs especially those labs indicating transition from HIV to AIDS, surveillance visits or contacts 
to potential reporters such as physicians and clinics and dissemination of local information related to disease rate 
and trends.

Federal funding for this contract has decreased by 6% from the prior year due to the number of HIV cases 
diagnosed in Inyo County between years 2013-2017 and cumulative HIV cases in the county through 
12/31/2017. Inyo County was one of 27 counties to receive this decrease in funding. This reduction will be 
covered by Health Realignment funds

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Non-acceptance of this funding would mean that Inyo County would not be able to conduct active surveillance 
services for HIV/AIDS.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Public Health, Hospital laboratories, private laboratories and health care providers.  
 
FINANCING:
Total funding for this program is $23,340 over a five year period; $4,668.00 in FY 19/20, $4,668.00 in FY 20/21, 
$4,668.00 in FY 21/22, $4668.00 in FY 22/23 and $4668.00 in FY 23/24 and is recognized as revenue in the 
Health Budget (045100)
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Grant w Exhibits
2. Contract Certification Clause
3. Darfur Contracting Act Certification
4. CIVIL RIGHTS FORM
5. HIV Surveillance submittal information
 
APPROVALS:
Sharon Wilson Created/Initiated - 9/23/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 9/23/2019
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 9/23/2019
Sharon Wilson Approved - 9/24/2019
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 9/24/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/25/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/25/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/25/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 9/25/2019
Rhiannon Baker Final Approval - 9/25/2019



State of California – Health and Human Services Agency – California Department of Public Health 
CDPH 1229 (5/2019) 

Page 1 of 3 

California HIV Surveillance Program 

Awarded By 

THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH (CDPH), hereinafter “Department” 

TO 

County of Inyo, hereinafter “Grantee” 

Implementing the project, HIV Surveillance, hereinafter “Project” 

GRANT AGREEMENT NUMBER 19-10419 

 
The Department awards this Grant and the Grantee accepts and agrees to use the Grant funds 
as follows: 
 
AUTHORITY: The Department has authority to grant funds for this project under the California 
Health and Safety Code (HSC). Legislature authorized in HSC Section 131019 the CDPH, 
Office of AIDS (OA) as the lead agency within the State responsible for coordinating state 
programs, services and activities related to Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) and Acquired 
Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS). HSC 131085 (a) and (b) authorize the Department to 
enter into grants to perform public health activities. 
 
PURPOSE: The Department shall provide a grant to and for the benefit of the Grantee.  The 
Grantee agrees to administer the HIV Surveillance Program (HSP) and to ensure the 
implementation of HIV surveillance activities. The Grantee will plan, develop, and implement all 
aspects of HIV surveillance in their jurisdiction. 
 
GRANT AMOUNT:  The maximum amount payable under this Grant shall not exceed $23,340. 
 
TERM OF GRANT AGREEMENT:  The term of the Grant shall begin on July 1, 2019, and 
terminates on June 30, 2024.  No funds may be requested or invoiced for services performed or 
costs incurred after June 30, 2024. 
 
PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES: The Project Representatives during the term of this Grant will 
be: 
 
California Department of Public Health County of Inyo 
Kimberly Ferreira, Assistant Chief 
 
1616 Capitol Avenue, Suite 616, MS 7700 
Sacramento, CA, 95814 
 
Telephone: (916) 449-5262 
Email: kimberly.ferreira@cdph.ca.gov 

Anna Scott, Deputy Director  
 
207 A South Street 
Bishop, CA 93514 
 
Telephone: (760) 873-7868 
Email: ascott@inyocounty.us 

 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:kimberly.ferreira@cdph.ca.gov


State of California – Health and Human Services Agency – California Department of Public Health 
CDPH 1229 (5/2019) 

Page 2 of 3 

Direct all inquiries to: 
 
California Department of Public Health County of Inyo 
Kimberly Ferreira, Assistant Chief 
 
1616 Capitol Avenue, Suite 616, MS 7700 
Sacramento, CA, 95814 
 
Telephone: (916) 449-5262 
Email: kimberly.ferreira@cdph.ca.gov 

Anna Scott, Deputy Director  
 
207 A South Street 
Bishop, CA 93514 
 
Telephone: (760) 873-7868 
Email: ascott@inyocounty.us 

 
 
All payments from CDPH to the Grantee; shall be sent to the following address: 
 

Remittance Address 
Contractor:  County of Inyo 
FI$CAL ID:  0000008422 
 
Cashier – Melissa Best- Baker, Senior Management Analyst 
 
PO Drawer H 
Independence, CA 93526 
 
Telephone: (760) 878-0232 
Email: mbestbaker@inyocounty.us 

 
• Either party may make changes to the information above by giving written notice to the 

other party.  Said changes shall not require an amendment to the agreement, but the 
Grantee will be required to submit a new completed CDPH 9083 Governmental Entity 
Taxpayer ID Form or STD 204 Payee Data Record form to the Project Representative 
for processing. 
 

STANDARD PROVISIONS: The following exhibits are attached and made a part of this Grant 
by this reference: 
 
EXHIBIT A LETTER OF AWARD    
EXHIBIT A1 LIST OF ALLOCATIONS 
EXHIBIT A2 FUNDING ALLOCATION PROCESS 
EXHIBIT B BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
EXHIBIT C STANDARD GRANT CONDITIONS 
EXHIBIT D ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 
EXHIBIT E INFORMATION PRIVACY AND SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 
 
GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS:  The Grantee(s) accept all terms, provisions, and conditions 
of this grant, including those stated in the Exhibits incorporated by reference above.  The 
Grantee(s) shall fulfill all assurances and commitments made in the application, declarations, 
other accompanying documents, and written communications (e.g., e-mail, correspondence) 
filed in support of the request for grant funding.  The Grantee(s) shall comply with and require its 
contractors and subcontractors to comply with all applicable laws, polices, and regulations. 
 

mailto:kimberly.ferreira@cdph.ca.gov


State of California – Health and Human Services Agency – California Department of Public Health 
CDPH 1229 (5/2019) 

Page 3 of 3 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Grant on the dates set forth below. 
 
Executed By: 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: ___________________  ______________________________ 
      Rick Pucci, Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
      County of Inyo 
      PO Drawer H 
      Independence, CA 93526 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: ___________________  ______________________________ 
      Joseph Torrez, Chief 
      Contracts Management Unit 
      California Department of Public Health 
      1616 Capitol Avenue, Suite 74.262 
      P.O. Box 997377, MS 1800-1804 
      Sacramento, CA 95899-7377 
 



Exhibit A
Letter of Award





Exhibit A1
List of Allocation

County/City
Summary 

Action

FINAL
FY 19/20 
Adjusted 
Allocation

FINAL
FY 20/21 
Adjusted 
Allocation

FINAL
FY 21/22 
Adjusted 
Allocation

FINAL
FY 22/23 
Adjusted 
Allocation

FINAL
FY 23/24 
Adjusted 
Allocation

TOTAL 
Five (5) Year 
Allocation

Alameda Formula 285,286$   285,286$   285,286$   285,286$   285,286$   1,426,430$   
Alpine No Case -$   -$   -$   -$   -$   -$   
Amador Cap 6,015$   6,015$   6,015$   6,015$   6,015$   30,075$   
Berkeley HH 27,342$   27,342$   27,342$   27,342$   27,342$   136,710$   
Butte HH 25,343$   25,343$   25,343$   25,343$   25,343$   126,715$   
Calaveras HH 5,334$   5,334$   5,334$   5,334$   5,334$   26,670$   
Colusa Minimum 3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   15,000$   
Contra Costa HH 172,681$   172,681$   172,681$   172,681$   172,681$   863,405$   
Del Norte HH 3,334$   3,334$   3,334$   3,334$   3,334$   16,670$   
El Dorado Formula 12,561$   12,561$   12,561$   12,561$   12,561$   62,805$   
Fresno Cap 90,643$   90,643$   90,643$   90,643$   90,643$   453,215$   
Glenn Minimum 3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   15,000$   
Humboldt HH 12,004$   12,004$   12,004$   12,004$   12,004$   60,020$   
Imperial Cap 19,193$   19,193$   19,193$   19,193$   19,193$   95,965$   
Inyo HH 4,668$   4,668$   4,668$   4,668$   4,668$   23,340$   
Kern Cap 122,859$   122,859$   122,859$   122,859$   122,859$   614,295$   
Kings HH 18,007$   18,007$   18,007$   18,007$   18,007$   90,035$   
Lake HH 10,003$   10,003$   10,003$   10,003$   10,003$   50,015$   
Lassen HH 5,334$   5,334$   5,334$   5,334$   5,334$   26,670$   
Long Beach HH 243,065$   243,065$   243,065$   243,065$   243,065$   1,215,325$   
Los Angeles Cap 1,972,378$   1,972,378$   1,972,378$   1,972,378$   1,972,378$   9,861,890$   
Madera HH 16,006$   16,006$   16,006$   16,006$   16,006$   80,030$   
Marin HH 51,353$   51,353$   51,353$   51,353$   51,353$   256,765$   
Mariposa Minimum 3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   15,000$   
Mendocino HH 13,337$   13,337$   13,337$   13,337$   13,337$   66,685$   
Merced Cap 18,049$   18,049$   18,049$   18,049$   18,049$   90,245$   
Modoc HH 2,820$   2,820$   2,820$   2,820$   2,820$   14,100$   
Mono Minimum 3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   15,000$   
Monterey Formula 47,999$   47,999$   47,999$   47,999$   47,999$   239,995$   
Napa Formula 13,251$   13,251$   13,251$   13,251$   13,251$   66,255$   
Nevada HH 6,669$   6,669$   6,669$   6,669$   6,669$   33,345$   
Orange Formula 425,502$   425,502$   425,502$   425,502$   425,502$   2,127,510$   
Pasadena Cap 26,792$   26,792$   26,792$   26,792$   26,792$   133,960$   
Placer Cap 15,040$   15,040$   15,040$   15,040$   15,040$   75,200$   
Plumas Minimum 3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   15,000$   
Riverside Cap 293,218$   293,218$   293,218$   293,218$   293,218$   1,466,090$   
Sacramento Cap 218,266$   218,266$   218,266$   218,266$   218,266$   1,091,330$   
San Benito Cap 3,180$   3,180$   3,180$   3,180$   3,180$   15,900$   
San Bernardino Cap 256,250$   256,250$   256,250$   256,250$   256,250$   1,281,250$   
San Diego Formula 660,768$   660,768$   660,768$   660,768$   660,768$   3,303,840$   
San Francisco HH 715,084$   715,084$   715,084$   715,084$   715,084$   3,575,420$   
San Joaquin Formula 83,479$   83,479$   83,479$   83,479$   83,479$   417,395$   
San Luis Obispo HH 33,345$   33,345$   33,345$   33,345$   33,345$   166,725$   
San Mateo HH 89,634$   89,634$   89,634$   89,634$   89,634$   448,170$   
Santa Barbara HH 34,678$   34,678$   34,678$   34,678$   34,678$   173,390$   
Santa Clara HH 232,038$   232,038$   232,038$   232,038$   232,038$   1,160,190$   
Santa Cruz HH 28,010$   28,010$   28,010$   28,010$   28,010$   140,050$   
Shasta Formula 13,985$   13,985$   13,985$   13,985$   13,985$   69,925$   
Sierra Minimum 3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   15,000$   
Siskiyou HH 4,668$   4,668$   4,668$   4,668$   4,668$   23,340$   
Solano HH 63,257$   63,257$   63,257$   63,257$   63,257$   316,285$   
Sonoma HH 74,029$   74,029$   74,029$   74,029$   74,029$   370,145$   
Stanislaus Cap 45,123$   45,123$   45,123$   45,123$   45,123$   225,615$   
Sutter Cap 7,520$   7,520$   7,520$   7,520$   7,520$   37,600$   
Tehama Minimum 3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   15,000$   
Trinity Minimum 3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   3,000$   15,000$   
Tulare Cap 30,081$   30,081$   30,081$   30,081$   30,081$   150,405$   
Tuolumne HH 4,668$   4,668$   4,668$   4,668$   4,668$   23,340$   
Ventura Formula 65,776$   65,776$   65,776$   65,776$   65,776$   328,880$   
Yolo HH 14,672$   14,672$   14,672$   14,672$   14,672$   73,360$   
Yuba Cap 6,015$   6,015$   6,015$   6,015$   6,015$   30,075$   
Total 6,674,612$   6,674,612$   6,674,612$   6,674,612$   6,674,612$   33,373,060$   



Fiscal Year 2019-2020 HIV Surveillance Program 

The Office of AIDS (OA) will allocate $6.67 million in Fiscal Year (FY) 2019-20 State 
General Fund to local health jurisdictions (LHJs) for local HIV Surveillance Programs.  
OA will use the FY 2016-17 formula, with updated data, for allocating these funds and 
will implement provisions to provide equity and stability of funding across all regions of 
California.  

The allocation formula is based upon the following factors: 

 New HIV/AIDS cases diagnosed 2013 – 2017; and

 Cumulative HIV (non AIDS cases) through December 31, 2017

No Case LHJs: 
The following LHJ, with no reported HIV or AIDS cases during the periods indicated 
above, will not receive an allocation of HIV Surveillance Program funding: Alpine. 

Funding Minimum: 
OA will implement a minimum allocation of $3,000 for the rest of the LHJs.  The eight 
LHJs receiving the minimum allocation: Colusa, Glenn, Mariposa, Mono, Plumas, 
Sierra, Tehama, and Trinity. 

OA will apply the following stabilization measures: 

1. Funding Cap (CAP): OA will implement a funding cap, which is a maximum funding
level placed on each LHJ, set at 106 percent of the FY 2016-17 allocation. The
sixteen LHJs impacted by the funding cap: Amador, Fresno, Imperial, Kern, Los
Angeles, Merced, Pasadena, Placer, Riverside, Sacramento, San Benito, San
Bernardino, Stanislaus, Sutter, Tulare and Yuba.

2. Hold Harmless Provision:
OA will distribute funds to other LHJs so that the minimum funding level is 94
percent of the FY 2016-17 allocation.  Twenty-seven LHJs are allocated funds due
to the hold harmless provision.

Nine LHJs receive their unadjusted formula amount: Alameda, El Dorado, Monterey, 
Napa, Orange, San Diego, San Joaquin, Shasta, and Ventura. 

Exhibit A2
Funding Allocation Process  

1



FY 2019/20 HIV Surveillance Program Funding Allocation

County/City

FY 16/17 

Allocation

FY 19/ 20 

Unadjusted 

Allocation

Unadjusted 

Allocation % 

of FY 16/17 

Allocation

FINAL

FY 19/20 

Adjusted 

Allocation

FINAL

Adjusted 

Allocation % 

of Unadjusted

FINAL

Adjusted Allocation 

% of FY 16/17 

Allocation

Summary 

Action

Alameda 289,225$    286,135$    98.9% 285,286$       99.7% 98.6% Formula

Alpine -$       -$       - -$          - - No Case

Amador 5,675$        6,464$        113.9% 6,015$           93.1% 106.0% Cap

Berkeley 29,088$      21,468$      73.8% 27,342$         127.4% 94.0% HH

Butte 26,961$      16,162$      59.9% 25,343$         156.8% 94.0% HH

Calaveras 5,675$        3,803$        67.0% 5,334$           140.3% 94.0% HH

Colusa 3,000$        932$           31.1% 3,000$           321.9% 100.0% Minimum

Contra Costa 183,704$    123,340$    67.1% 172,681$       140.0% 94.0% HH

Del Norte 3,547$        1,954$        55.1% 3,334$           170.6% 94.0% HH

El Dorado 12,416$      12,599$      101.5% 12,561$         99.7% 101.2% Formula

Fresno 85,513$      144,080$    168.5% 90,643$         62.9% 106.0% Cap

Glenn 3,000$        2,300$        76.7% 3,000$           130.4% 100.0% Minimum

Humboldt 12,771$      11,200$      87.7% 12,004$         107.2% 94.0% HH

Imperial 18,107$      25,860$      142.8% 19,193$         74.2% 106.0% Cap

Inyo 4,966$        3,353$        67.5% 4,668$           139.2% 94.0% HH

Kern 115,905$    123,994$    107.0% 122,859$       99.1% 106.0% Cap

Kings 19,157$      15,892$      83.0% 18,007$         113.3% 94.0% HH

Lake 10,642$      5,743$        54.0% 10,003$         174.2% 94.0% HH

Lassen 5,675$        811$           14.3% 5,334$           657.7% 94.0% HH

Long Beach 258,580$    181,323$    70.1% 243,065$       134.1% 94.0% HH

Los Angeles 1,860,734$ 2,217,159$ 119.2% 1,972,378$         89.0% 106.0% Cap

Madera 17,028$      9,742$        57.2% 16,006$         164.3% 94.0% HH

Marin 54,631$      33,255$      60.9% 51,353$         154.4% 94.0% HH

Mariposa 3,000$        841$           28.0% 3,000$           356.7% 100.0% Minimum

Mendocino 14,189$      7,261$        51.2% 13,337$         183.7% 94.0% HH

Merced 17,028$      22,462$      131.9% 18,049$         80.4% 106.0% Cap

Modoc 3,000$        -$       0.0% 2,820$           - 94.0% HH

Mono 3,000$        706$           23.5% 3,000$           424.9% 100.0% Minimum

Monterey 46,116$      48,142$      104.4% 47,999$         99.7% 104.1% Formula

Napa 13,203$      13,290$      100.7% 13,251$         99.7% 100.4% Formula

Nevada 7,095$        5,201$        73.3% 6,669$           128.2% 94.0% HH

Orange 422,925$    426,768$    100.9% 425,502$       99.7% 100.6% Formula

Pasadena 25,276$      33,557$      132.8% 26,792$         79.8% 106.0% Cap

Placer 14,189$      19,063$      134.4% 15,040$         78.9% 106.0% Cap

Plumas 3,000$        496$           16.5% 3,000$           604.8% 100.0% Minimum

Riverside 276,621$    413,031$    149.3% 293,218$       71.0% 106.0% Cap

Sacramento 205,912$    227,691$    110.6% 218,266$       95.9% 106.0% Cap

San Benito 3,000$        4,420$        147.3% 3,180$           71.9% 106.0% Cap

San Bernardino 241,746$    271,540$    112.3% 256,250$       94.4% 106.0% Cap

San Diego 691,677$    662,735$    95.8% 660,768$       99.7% 95.5% Formula

San Francisco 760,728$    499,451$    65.7% 715,084$       143.2% 94.0% HH

San Joaquin 80,906$      83,728$      103.5% 83,479$         99.7% 103.2% Formula

San Luis Obispo 35,474$      23,799$      67.1% 33,345$         140.1% 94.0% HH

San Mateo 95,356$      80,688$      84.6% 89,634$         111.1% 94.0% HH

Santa Barbara 36,892$      32,023$      86.8% 34,678$         108.3% 94.0% HH

Santa Clara 246,849$    189,557$    76.8% 232,038$       122.4% 94.0% HH

Santa Cruz 29,798$      22,205$      74.5% 28,010$         126.1% 94.0% HH

Shasta 14,189$      14,027$      98.9% 13,985$         99.7% 98.6% Formula

Sierra 3,000$        180$           6.0% 3,000$           1666.7% 100.0% Minimum

Siskiyou 4,966$        4,029$        81.1% 4,668$           115.9% 94.0% HH

Solano 67,295$      56,814$      84.4% 63,257$         111.3% 94.0% HH

Sonoma 78,755$      45,536$      57.8% 74,029$         162.6% 94.0% HH

Stanislaus 42,569$      55,600$      130.6% 45,123$         81.2% 106.0% Cap

Sutter 7,095$        7,878$        111.0% 7,520$           95.5% 106.0% Cap

Tehama 3,000$        2,976$        99.2% 3,000$           100.8% 100.0% Minimum

Trinity 3,000$        405$           13.5% 3,000$           740.7% 100.0% Minimum

Tulare 28,379$      41,602$      146.6% 30,081$         72.3% 106.0% Cap

Tuolumne 4,966$        1,698$        34.2% 4,668$           274.9% 94.0% HH

Ventura 69,530$      65,971$      94.9% 65,776$         99.7% 94.6% Formula

Yolo 15,609$      11,786$      75.5% 14,672$         124.5% 94.0% HH

Yuba 5,675$        6,254$        110.2% 6,015$           96.2% 106.0% Cap

Total 6,649,342$ 6,650,980$ 6,674,612$         

1 No Case County/City

9 Unadjusted Formula County/City

16 Funding Cap County/City

8 Minimum Allocation County/City

27 Hold Harmless County/City 

61 Total Counties/Cities

 2



County of Inyo 
19-10419 

Page 1 of 2 
Exhibit B 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
 

 

1. Invoicing and Payment  
 
A. Upon completion of project activities as provided in the Grant Application, and upon receipt and 

approval of the invoices, the State agrees to reimburse the Grantee for activities performed and 
expenditures incurred in accordance with the costs specified herein. 

 
B. Invoices shall include the Grant Number and shall be submitted in triplicate not more frequently 

than monthly in arrears to:  
 
Invoice Desk 
California Department of Public Health 
Prevention Program 
MS 7700 
1616 Capitol Avenue, Suite 616 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 

C. Invoices shall: 
 
1) Be prepared on Grantee letterhead.  If invoices are not on produced letterhead invoices 

must be signed by an authorized official, employee or agent certifying that the expenditures 
claimed represent activities performed and are in accordance with the Grant Application 
under this Grant. 

2) Bear the Grantee’s name as shown on the Grant. 
3) Identify the billing and/or performance period covered by the invoice. 
4) Itemize costs for the billing period in the same or greater level of detail as indicated in this 

Grant.  Subject to the terms of this Grant, reimbursement may only be sought for those costs 
and/or cost categories expressly identified as allowable and approved by CDPH.  
 

2. Budget Contingency Clause 
 
A. It is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act of the current year and/or any subsequent years 

covered under this Agreement does not appropriate sufficient funds for the program, this 
Agreement shall be of no further force and effect.  In this event, the State shall have no liability 
to pay any funds whatsoever to Grantee or to furnish any other considerations under this 
Agreement and Grantee shall not be obligated to fulfill any provisions of this Agreement. 

 
B. If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for purposes of this 

program, the State shall have the option to either cancel this Agreement with no liability 
occurring to the State, or offer an agreement amendment to Grantee to reflect the reduced 
amount. 

 
3. Prompt Payment Clause  

 
Payment will be made in accordance with, and within the time specified in, Government Code 
Chapter 4.5, commencing with Section 927. 

 
4. Amounts Payable  

 
A. The amounts payable under this Grant shall not exceed: 

 
1) $23,340 for the budget period of 07/01/2019 through 06/30/2024. 

 



County of Inyo 
19-10419 

Page 2 of 2 
Exhibit B 

Budget Detail and Payment Provisions 
 

 

B. Payment allocations shall be made for allowable expenses up to the amount annually 
encumbered commensurate with the state fiscal year in which services are fulfilled and/or goods 
are received. 

 
5.  Timely Submission of Final Invoice 

 
A. A final undisputed invoice shall be submitted for payment no more than forty-five (45) calendar 

days following the expiration or termination date of this Grant, unless a later or alternate 
deadline is agreed to in writing by the program grant manager.  Said invoice should be clearly 
marked “Final Invoice”, indicating that all payment obligations of the State under this Grant have 
ceased and that no further payments are due or outstanding. 

 
B. The State may, at its discretion, choose not to honor any delinquent final invoice if the Grantee 

fails to obtain prior written State approval of an alternate final invoice submission deadline.   
 

6. Travel and Per Diem Reimbursement 
 
Any reimbursement for necessary travel and per diem shall be at the rates currently in effect as 
established by the California Department of Human Resources (CalHR). 
 
 



County of Inyo 
19-10419

 Page 1 of 4 

EXHIBIT C 

STANDARD GRANT CONDITIONS 

1. APPROVAL:  This Grant is of no force or effect until signed by both parties and approved by
the Department of General Services, if required.  The Grantee may not commence
performance until such approval has been obtained

2. AMENDMENT:  No amendment or variation of the terms of this Grant shall be valid unless
made in writing, signed by the parties, and approved as required.  No oral understanding or
Agreement not incorporated in the Grant is binding on any of the parties.  In no case shall
the Department materially alter the scope of the Project set forth in Exhibit A.

3. ASSIGNMENT:  This Grant is not assignable by the Grantee, either in whole or in part,
without the written consent of the Grant Manager in the form of a written amendment to the
Grant.

4. AUDIT: Grantee agrees that the Department, the Bureau of State Audits, or their designated
representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting
documentation pertaining to this Grant.  Grantee agrees to maintain such records for a
possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment or completion of the
project funded with this Grant, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated.
Grantee agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours
and to allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to
such records.  Further, Grantee agrees to include a similar right of the State to audit records
and interview staff in any subcontract related to the project.

5. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  Grantee certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable state
and/or federal conflict of interest laws.

6. INDEMNIFICATION:  Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless the State, its
officers, agents and employees from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to
any and all contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and any other person, firm or
corporation furnishing or supplying work services, materials, or supplies in connection with
the project, and from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm
or corporation who may be injured or damaged by Grantee in the performance of any
activities related to the Project.

7. FISCAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS AND ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:  Grantee agrees
that, at a minimum, its fiscal control and accounting procedures will be sufficient to permit
tracing of all grant funds to a level of expenditure adequate to establish that such funds have
not been used in violation of any applicable state or federal law, or the provisions of this
Grant.  Grantee further agrees that it will maintain separate Project accounts in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

8. GOVERNING LAW:  This Grant is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with
the laws of the State of California.



 Page 2 of 4 

9. INCOME RESTRICTIONS:  Grantee agrees that any refunds, rebates, credits, or other
amounts (including any interest thereon) accruing to or received by the Grantee under this
Grant shall be paid by the Grantee to the Department, to the extent that they are properly
allocable to costs for which the Grantee has been reimbursed by the Department under this
Grant.

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  Grantee, and its agents and employees of Grantee, in the
performance of the Project, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers, employees
or agents of the Department.

11. MEDIA EVENTS:  Grantee shall notify the Department’s Grant Manager in writing at least
twenty (20) working days before any public or media event publicizing the accomplishments
and/or results of the Project and provide the opportunity for attendance and participation by
Department’s representatives.

12. NO THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS:  The Department and Grantee do not intend to create any rights
or remedies for any third- party as a beneficiary of this Grant or the project.

13. NOTICE:  Grantee shall promptly notify the Department’s Grant Manager in writing of any
events, developments or changes that could affect the completion of the project or the budget
approved for this Grant.

14. PROFESSIONALS: Grantee agrees that only licensed professionals will be used to perform
services under this Grant where such services are called for.

15. RECORDS:  Grantee certifies that it will maintain Project accounts in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.  Grantee further certifies that it will comply with the
following conditions for a grant award as set forth in the Request for Applications and the
Grant Application.

A. Establish an official file for the Project which shall adequately document all
significant actions relative to the Project;

B. Establish separate accounts which will adequately and accurately depict all
amounts received and expended on this Project, including all grant funds received under
this Grant;

C. Establish separate accounts which will adequately depict all income received which
is attributable to the Project, especially including any income attributable to grant
funds disbursed under this Grant;

D. Establish an accounting system which will adequately depict final total costs of the
Project, including both direct and indirect costs; and,

E. Establish such accounts and maintain such records as may be necessary for the
state to fulfill federal reporting requirements, including any and all reporting requirements
under federal tax statutes or regulations.

16. RELATED LITIGATION:  Under no circumstances may Grantee use funds from any
disbursement under this Grant to pay for costs associated with any litigation between the
Grantee and the Department.



Page 3 of 4 

17. RIGHTS IN DATA:  Grantee and the Department agree that all data, plans, drawings,
specifications, reports, computer programs, operating manuals, notes, and other written or
graphic work submitted under Exhibit A in the performance of the Project funded by this Grant
shall be in the public domain.  Grantee may disclose, disseminate and use in whole or in part,
any final form data and information received, collected, and developed under this Project,
subject to appropriate acknowledgment of credit to the Department for financial support.
Grantee shall not utilize the materials submitted to the Department (except data) for any profit
making venture or sell or grant rights to a third-party who intends to do so.  The Department
has the right to use submitted data for all governmental purposes.

18. VENUE:  The Department and Grantee agree that any action arising out of this Grant shall be
filed and maintained in the Superior Court, California.  Grantee waives any existing sovereign
immunity for the purposes of this Grant, if applicable.

19. STATE-FUNDED RESEARCH GRANTS:

A. Grantee shall provide for free public access to any publication of a department-funded
invention or department-funded technology.  Grantee further agrees to all terms and
conditions required by the California Taxpayer Access to Publicly Funded Research Act
(Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 13989) of Part 4.5 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the
Government Code).

B. As a condition of receiving the research grant, Grantee agrees to the following terms and
conditions which are set forth in Government Code section 13989.6 (“Section 13989.6”):

1) Grantee is responsible for ensuring that any publishing or copyright agreements
concerning submitted manuscripts fully comply with Section 13989.6.

2) Grantees shall report to the Department the final disposition of the research grant,
including, but not limited to, if it was published, when it was published, where it was
published, when the 12-month time period expires, and where the manuscript will be
available for open access.

3) For a manuscript that is accepted for publication in a peer-reviewed journal, the
Grantee shall ensure that an electronic version of the peer-reviewed manuscript is
available to the department and on an appropriate publicly accessible database
approved by the Department, including, but not limited to, the University of California’s
eScholarship Repository at the California Digital Library, PubMed Central, or the
California Digital Open Source Library, to be made publicly available not later than 12
months after the official date of publication. Manuscripts submitted to the California
Digital Open Source Library shall be exempt from the requirements in subdivision (b)
of Section 66408 of the Education Code.  Grantee shall make reasonable efforts to
comply with this requirement by ensuring that their manuscript is accessible on an
approved publicly accessible database, and notifying the Department that the
manuscript is available on a department-approved database.  If Grantee is unable to
ensure that their manuscript is accessible on an approved publicly accessible
database, Grantee may comply by providing the manuscript to the Department not
later than 12 months after the official date of publication.



 Page 4 of 4 

4) For publications other than those described in paragraph B.3 above, including meeting
abstracts, Grantee shall comply by providing the manuscript to the Department not later
than 12 months after the official date of publication.

5) Grantee is authorized to use grant money for publication costs, including fees charged
by a publisher for color and page charges, or fees for digital distribution.



County of Inyo 
19-10419 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Exhibit D 
Additional Provisions 

 
1. Cancellation / Termination 

 
A. This Grant may be cancelled by CDPH without cause upon thirty (30) calendar days 

advance written notice to the Grantee. 
 
B. CDPH reserves the right to cancel or terminate this Grant immediately for cause.  The 

Grantee may submit a written request to terminate this Grant only if CDPH substantially fails 
to perform its responsibilities as provided herein. 

 
C. The term “for cause” shall mean that the Grantee fails to meet the terms, conditions, and/or 

responsibilities of this agreement.  Causes for termination include, but are not limited to the 
following occurrences:   

 
1) If the Grantee knowingly furnishes any statement, representation, warranty, or 

certification in connection with the agreement, which representation is materially false, 
deceptive, incorrect, or incomplete. 

 
2) If the Grantee fails to perform any material requirement of this Grant or defaults in 

performance of this agreement. 
 

3) If the Grantee files for bankruptcy, or if CDPH determines that the Grantee becomes 
financially incapable of completing this agreement. 

 
D. Grant termination or cancellation shall be effective as of the date indicated in CDPH’s 

notification to the Grantee.  The notice shall stipulate any final performance, invoicing or 
payment requirements. 

 
E. In the event of early termination or cancellation, the Grantee shall be entitled to 

compensation for services performed satisfactorily under this agreement and expenses 
incurred up to the date of cancellation and any non-cancelable obligations incurred in 
support of this Grant. 

 
F. In the event of termination, and at the request of CDPH, the Grantee shall furnish copies of 

all proposals, specifications, designs, procedures, layouts, copy, and other materials related 
to the services or deliverables provided under this Grant, whether finished or in progress on 
the termination date. 

 
G. The Grantee will not be entitled to reimbursement for any expenses incurred for services 

and deliverables pursuant to this agreement after the effective date of termination. 
 
H. Upon receipt of notification of termination of this Grant, and except as otherwise specified by 

CDPH, the Grantee shall: 
 
1) Place no further order or subgrants for materials, services, or facilities. 

 
2) Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders 

and subgrants. 
  



County of Inyo 
19-10419 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Exhibit D 
Additional Provisions 

 
3) Upon the effective date of termination of the Grant and the payment by CDPH of all 

items properly changeable to CDPH hereunder, Grantee shall transfer, assign and make 
available to CDPH all property and materials belonging to CDPH, all rights and claims to 
any and all reservations, grants, and arrangements with owners of media/PR materials, 
or others, and shall make available to CDPH all written information regarding CDPH’s 
media/PR materials, and no extra compensation is to be paid to Grantee for its services. 
 

4) Take such action as may be necessary, or as CDPH may specify, to protect and 
preserve any property related to this agreement which is in the possession of the 
Grantee and in which CDPH has or may acquire an interest. 

 
I. CDPH may, at its discretion, require the Grantee to cease performance of certain 

components of the Scope of Work as designated by CDPH and complete performance of 
other components prior to the termination date of the Grant. 

 
2. Avoidance of Conflicts of Interest by Grantee  
 

A. CDPH intends to avoid any real or apparent conflict of interest on the part of the Grantee, 
subgrants, or employees, officers and directors of the Grantee or subgrants.  Thus, CDPH 
reserves the right to determine, at its sole discretion, whether any information, assertion or 
claim received from any source indicates the existence of a real or apparent conflict of 
interest; and, if a conflict is found to exist, to require the Grantee to submit additional 
information or a plan for resolving the conflict, subject to CDPH review and prior approval. 

 
B. Conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to: 
 

1) An instance where the Grantee or any of its subgrants, or any employee, officer, or 
director of the Grantee or any subgrant or has an interest, financial or otherwise, 
whereby the use or disclosure of information obtained while performing services under 
the grant would allow for private or personal benefit or for any purpose that is contrary to 
the goals and objectives of the grant. 
 

2) An instance where the Grantee’s or any subgrant’s employees, officers, or directors use 
their positions for purposes that are, or give the appearance of being, motivated by a 
desire for private gain for themselves or others, such as those with whom they have 
family, business or other ties. 

 
C. If CDPH is or becomes aware of a known or suspected conflict of interest, the Grantee will 

be given an opportunity to submit additional information or to resolve the conflict.  A Grantee 
with a suspected conflict of interest will have five (5) working days from the date of 
notification of the conflict by CDPH to provide complete information regarding the suspected 
conflict.  If a conflict of interest is determined to exist by CDPH and cannot be resolved to 
the satisfaction of CDPH, the conflict will be grounds for terminating the grant.  CDPH may, 
at its discretion upon receipt of a written request from the Grantee, authorize an extension of 
the timeline indicated herein. 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo 
19-10419 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Exhibit D 
Additional Provisions 

 
3. Dispute Resolution Process 
 

A. A Grantee grievance exists whenever there is a dispute arising from CDPH’s action in the 
administration of an agreement.  If there is a dispute or grievance between the Grantee and 
CDPH, the Grantee must seek resolution using the procedure outlined below. 

 
1) The Grantee should first informally discuss the problem with the CDPH Program Grant 

Manager. If the problem cannot be resolved informally, the Grantee shall direct its 
grievance together with any evidence, in writing, to the program Branch Chief.  The 
grievance shall state the issues in dispute, the legal authority or other basis for the 
Grantee's position and the remedy sought.  The Branch Chief shall render a decision 
within ten (10) working days after receipt of the written grievance from the Grantee.  The 
Branch Chief shall respond in writing to the Grantee indicating the decision and reasons 
therefore.  If the Grantee disagrees with the Branch Chief’s decision, the Grantee may 
appeal to the second level. 

 
2) When appealing to the second level, the Grantee must prepare an appeal indicating the 

reasons for disagreement with Branch Chief’s decision.  The Grantee shall include with 
the appeal a copy of the Grantee's original statement of dispute along with any 
supporting evidence and a copy of the Branch Chief’s decision.  The appeal shall be 
addressed to the Deputy Director of the division in which the branch is organized within 
ten (10) working days from receipt of the Branch Chief’s decision.  The Deputy Director 
of the division in which the branch is organized or his/her designee shall meet with the 
Grantee to review the issues raised.  A written decision signed by the Deputy Director of 
the division in which the branch is organized or his/her designee shall be directed to the 
Grantee within twenty (20) working days of receipt of the Grantee's second level appeal. 

 
B. If the Grantee wishes to appeal the decision of the Deputy Director of the division in which 

the branch is organized or his/her designee, the Grantee shall follow the procedures set 
forth in Division 25.1 (commencing with Section 38050) of the Health and Safety Code and 
the regulations adopted thereunder.  (Title 1, Division 2, Chapter 2, Article 3 (commencing 
with Section 1140) of the California Code of Regulations). 

 
C. Disputes arising out of an audit, examination of an agreement or other action not covered by 

subdivision (a) of Section 20204, of Chapter 2.1, Title 22, of the California Code of 
Regulations, and for which no procedures for appeal are provided in statute, regulation or 
the Agreement, shall be handled in accordance with the procedures identified in Sections 
51016 through 51047, Title 22, California Code of Regulations. 
 

D. Unless otherwise stipulated in writing by CDPH, all dispute, grievance and/or appeal 
correspondence shall be directed to the CDPH Grant Manager. 
 

E. There are organizational differences within CDPH’s funding programs and the management 
levels identified in this dispute resolution provision may not apply in every contractual 
situation.  When a grievance is received and organizational differences exist, the Grantee 
shall be notified in writing by the CDPH Grant Manager of the level, name, and/or title of the 
appropriate management official that is responsible for issuing a decision at a given level. 

 



 County of Inyo  
 19-10419 

 Page 1 of 11 
Exhibit E 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 

  

CDPH IPSR (6-16) 

 
This Information Privacy and Security Requirements Exhibit (For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 
(hereinafter referred to as “this Exhibit”) sets forth the information privacy and security requirements 
Contractor is obligated to follow with respect to all personal and confidential information (as defined herein) 
disclosed to Contractor, or collected, created, maintained, stored, transmitted or used  by Contractor for or 
on behalf of the California Department of Public Health (hereinafter “CDPH”), pursuant to Contractor’s 
agreement with CDPH.  (Such personal and confidential information is referred to herein collectively as 
“CDPH PCI”.)   CDPH and Contractor desire to protect the privacy and provide for the security of CDPH 
PCI pursuant to this Exhibit and in compliance with state and federal laws applicable to the CDPH PCI. 
 
I. Order of Precedence:  With respect to information privacy and security requirements for all CDPH PCI, 

the terms and conditions of this Exhibit shall take precedence over any conflicting terms or conditions 
set forth in any other part of the agreement between Contractor and CDPH, including Exhibit A (Scope 
of Work), all other exhibits and any other attachments, and shall prevail over any such conflicting terms 
or conditions. 

 
II. Effect on lower tier transactions:  The terms of this Exhibit shall apply to all contracts, subcontracts, and 

subawards, and the information privacy and security requirements Contractor is obligated to follow with 
respect to CDPH PCI disclosed to Contractor, or collected, created, maintained, stored, transmitted or 
used by Contractor for or on behalf of CDPH, pursuant to Contractor’s agreement with CDPH.  When 
applicable the Contractor shall incorporate the relevant provisions of this Exhibit into each subcontract 
or subaward to its agents, subcontractors, or independent consultants. 

 
III. Definitions:  For purposes of the agreement between Contractor and CDPH, including this Exhibit, the 

following definitions shall apply: 
 

A. Breach:  
 

“Breach” means: 
 
1. the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of CDPH PCI in a manner which 

compromises the security, confidentiality or integrity of the information; or 
 

2.  the same as the definition of "breach of the security of the system" set forth in California 
Civil Code section 1798.29(f). 

 
B. Confidential Information:  “Confidential information” means information that: 

 
1. does not meet the definition of “public records” set forth in  California Government Code 

section 6252(e), or is exempt from disclosure under any of the  provisions of Section 6250, 
et seq. of the California Government Code or any other applicable state or federal laws; or 
 

2. is contained in documents, files, folders, books or records that are clearly labeled, marked or 
designated with the word “confidential” by CDPH.  

 
C. Disclosure:  “Disclosure” means the release, transfer, provision of, access to, or divulging in any 

manner of information outside the entity holding the information. 
 



 County of Inyo  
 19-10419 

 Page 2 of 11 
Exhibit E 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 

  

CDPH IPSR (6-16) 

D. PCI:  “PCI” means “personal information” and “confidential information” (as these terms are 
defined herein: 

 
E. Personal Information:  “Personal information” means information, in any medium (paper, 

electronic, oral) that: 
 

1. directly or indirectly collectively identifies or uniquely describes an individual; or 
 
2. could be used in combination with other information to indirectly identify or uniquely 

describe an individual, or link an individual to the other information; or 
 
3. meets the definition of “personal information” set forth in California Civil Code section 

1798.3, subdivision (a) or 
 
4. is one of the data elements set forth in California Civil Code section 1798.29, subdivision 

(g)(1) or (g)(2); or 
 
5. meets the definition of “medical information” set forth in either California Civil Code section 

1798.29, subdivision (h)(2) or California Civil Code section 56.05, subdivision (j); or 
 
6. meets the definition of “health insurance information” set forth in California Civil Code 

section 1798.29, subdivision (h)(3); or 
 
7. is protected from disclosure under applicable state or federal law. 

 
F. Security Incident:  “Security Incident” means: 

 
1. an attempted breach; or 
 
2. the attempted or successful unauthorized access or disclosure, modification or destruction 

of CDPH PCI, in violation of any state or federal law or in a manner not permitted under the 
agreement between Contractor and CDPH, including this Exhibit; or  

 
3. the attempted or successful modification or destruction of, or interference with, 

Contractor’s system operations in an information technology system, that negatively 
impacts the confidentiality, availability or integrity of CDPH PCI; or 
 

4. any event that is reasonably believed to have compromised the confidentiality, integrity, or 
availability of an information asset, system, process, data storage, or transmission. 
Furthermore, an information security incident may also include an event that constitutes a 
violation or imminent threat of violation of information security policies or procedures, 
including acceptable use policies. 

 
G. Use:  “Use” means the sharing, employment, application, utilization, examination, or analysis of 

information. 
 

IV. Disclosure Restrictions:  The Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall protect 
from unauthorized disclosure any CDPH PCI. The Contractor shall not disclose, except as otherwise 
specifically permitted by the agreement between Contractor and CDPH (including this Exhibit), any 



 County of Inyo  
 19-10419 

 Page 3 of 11 
Exhibit E 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 

  

CDPH IPSR (6-16) 

CDPH PCI to anyone other than CDPH personnel or programs without prior written authorization from 
the CDPH Program Contract Manager, except if disclosure is required by State or Federal law. 

 
V. Use Restrictions:  The Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall not use any 

CDPH PCI for any purpose other than performing the Contractor's obligations under its agreement with 
CDPH. 

 
VI. Safeguards:  The Contractor shall implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that 

reasonably and appropriately protect the privacy, confidentiality, security, integrity, and availability of 
CDPH PCI, including electronic or computerized CDPH PCI. At each location wher CDPH PCI exists 
under Contractor’s control, the Contractor shall develop and maintain a written information privacy 
and security program that includes administrative, technical and physical safeguards appropriate to 
the size and complexity of the Contractor’s operations and the nature and scope of its activities in 
performing its agreement with CDPH, including this Exhibit, and which incorporates the requirements 
of Section VII, Security, below.  Contractor shall provide CDPH with Contractor’s current and updated 
policies within five (5) business days of a request by CDPH for the policies. 

 
VII. Security: The Contractor shall take any and all steps reasonably necessary to ensure the continuous 

security of all computerized data systems containing CDPH PCI.  These steps shall include, at a 
minimum, complying with all of the data system security precautions listed in the Contractor Data 
Security Standards set forth in Attachment 1 to this Exhibit. 

 
VIII. Security Officer: At each place where CDPH PCI is located,, the Contractor shall designate a Security 

Officer to oversee its compliance with this Exhibit and to communicate with CDPH on matters 
concerning this Exhibit. 

 
IX. Training: The Contractor shall provide training on its obligations under this Exhibit, at its own expense, 

to all of its employees who assist in the performance of Contractor’s obligations under Contractor’s 
agreement with CDPH, including this Exhibit, or otherwise use or disclose CDPH PCI. 

 
A. The Contractor shall require each employee who receives training to certify, either in hard copy 

or electronic form, the date on which the training was completed. 
 

B. The Contractor shall retain each employee’s certifications for CDPH inspection for a period of 
three years following contract termination or completion. 
 

C. Contractor shall provide CDPH with its employee’s certifications within five (5) business days of 
a request by CDPH for the employee’s certifications. 

 
X. Employee Discipline:  Contractor shall impose discipline that it deems appropriate (in its sole 

discretion) on such employees and other Contractor workforce members under Contractor’s direct 
control who intentionally or negligently violate any provisions of this Exhibit. 

 



 County of Inyo  
 19-10419 

 Page 4 of 11 
Exhibit E 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 

  

CDPH IPSR (6-16) 

XI. Breach and Security Incident Responsibilities: 
 

A. Notification to CDPH of Breach or Security Incident:  The Contractor shall notify CDPH 
immediately by telephone call plus email or fax upon the discovery of a breach (as defined in 
this Exhibit), and within twenty-four (24) hours by email or fax of the discovery of any security 
incident (as defined in this Exhibit), unless a law enforcement agency determines that the 
notification will impede a criminal investigation, in which case the notification required by this 
section shall be made to CDPH immediately after the law enforcement agency determines that 
such notification will not compromise the investigation.  Notification shall be provided to the 
CDPH Program Contract Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer and the CDPH Chief Information 
Security Officer, using the contact information listed in Section XI(F), below.  If the breach or 
security incident is discovered after business hours or on a weekend or holiday and involves 
CDPH PCI in electronic or computerized form, notification to CDPH shall be provided by calling 
the CDPH Information Security Office at the telephone numberslisted in Section XI(F), below.  
For purposes of this Section, breaches and security incidents shall be treated as discovered by 
Contractor as of the first day on which such breach or security incident is known to the 
Contractor, or, by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known to the Contractor. 
Contractor shall be deemed to have knowledge of a breach if such breach is known, or by 
exercising reasonable diligence would have been known, to any person, other than the person 
committing the breach, who is a employee or agent of the Contractor. 

 
Contractor shall take: 

 
1. prompt corrective action to mitigate any risks or damages involved with the breach or 

security incident and to protect the operating environment; and 
 
2. any action pertaining to a breach required by applicable federal and state laws, including, 

specifically, California Civil Code section 1798.29. 
 

B. Investigation of Breach and Security Incidents:  The Contractor shall immediately investigate such 
breach or security incident. As soon as the information is known and subject to the legitimate 
needs of law enforcement, Contractor shall inform the CDPH Program Contract Manager, the 
CDPH Privacy Officer, and the CDPH Chief Information Security Officer of: 

 
1. what data elements were involved and the extent of the data disclosure or access involved in 

the breach, including, specifically, the number of individuals whose personal information was 
breached; and 

 
2. a description of the unauthorized persons known or reasonably believed to have improperly 

used the CDPH PCI and/or a description of the unauthorized persons known or reasonably 
believed to have improperly accessed or acquired the CDPH PCI, or to whom it is known or 
reasonably believed to have had the CDPH PCI improperly disclosed to them; and 

 
3. a description of where the CDPH PCI is believed to have been improperly used or disclosed; 

and 
 
4. a description of the probable and proximate causes of the breach or security incident; and 
 



 County of Inyo  
 19-10419 

 Page 5 of 11 
Exhibit E 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 

  

CDPH IPSR (6-16) 

5. whether Civil Code section 1798.29 or any other federal or state laws requiring individual 
notifications of breaches have been triggered. 

 
C. Written Report:  The Contractor shall provide a written report of the investigation to the CDPH 

Program Contract Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer, and the CDPH Chief Information Security 
Officer as soon as practicable after the discovery of the breach or security incident.  The report 
shall include, but not be limited to, the information specified above, as well as a complete, detailed 
corrective action plan, including information on measures that were taken to halt and/or contain 
the breach or security incident, and measures to be taken to prevent the recurrence or further 
disclosure of data regarding such breach or security incident. 

 
D. Notification to Individuals:  If notification to individuals whose information was breached is required 

under state or federal law, and regardless of whether Contractor is considered only a custodian 
and/or non-owner of the CDPH PCI, Contractor shall, at its sole expense, and at the sole election 
of CDPH, either: 

 
1. make notification to the individuals affected by the breach (including substitute notification), 

pursuant to the content and timeliness provisions of such applicable state or federal breach 
notice laws.  Contractor shall inform the CDPH Privacy Officer of the time, manner and 
content of any such notifications, prior to the transmission of such notifications to the 
individuals; or 
 

2. cooperate with and assist CDPH in its notification (including substitute notification) to the 
individuals affected by the breach. 

 
E. Submission of Sample Notification to Attorney General:  If notification to more than 500  

individuals is required pursuant to California Civil Code section 1798.29, and regardless of 
whether Contractor is considered only a custodian and/or non-owner of the CDPH PCI, 
Contractor shall, at its sole expense, and at the sole election of CDPH, either: 

 
1. electronically submit a single sample copy of the security breach notification, excluding any 

personally identifiable information, to the Attorney General pursuant to the format. content 
and timeliness provisions of Section 1798.29, subdivision (e).  Contractor shall inform the 
CDPH Privacy Officer of the time, manner and content of any such submissions, prior to the 
transmission of such submissions to the Attorney General; or 
 

2. cooperate with and assist CDPH in its submission of a sample copy of the notification to the 
Attorney General. 

 
F. CDPH Contact Information:  To direct communications to the above referenced CDPH staff, the 

Contractor shall initiate contact as indicated herein.  CDPH reserves the right to make changes 
to the contact information below by verbal or written notice to the Contractor.  Said changes 
shall not require an amendment to this Exhibit or the agreement to which it is incorporated. 



 County of Inyo  
 19-10419 

 Page 6 of 11 
Exhibit E 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 

  

CDPH IPSR (6-16) 

 
 

CDPH Program 
Contract 
Manager 

CDPH Privacy Officer CDPH Chief Information 
Security Officer 

See the Scope of 
Work exhibit for 
Program Contract 
Manager  

Privacy Officer 
Privacy Office 
Office of Legal Services 
California Dept. of Public Health 
1415 L Street, 5th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
Email: privacy@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone:  (877) 421-9634 
 

Chief Information Security Officer 
Information Security Office 
California Dept. of Public Health 
P.O. Box 997377 
MS6302 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 
 
Email:  cdphiso@cdph.ca.gov 
Telephone: (855) 500-0016 

 
 

XII. Documentation of Disclosures for Requests for Accounting:  Contractor shall document and make 
available to CDPH or (at the direction of CDPH) to an Individual such disclosures of CDPH PCI, and 
information related to such disclosures, necessary to respond to a proper request by the subject 
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of personal information as required by Civil Code section 
1798.25, or any applicable state or federal law. 

 
XIII. Requests for CDPH PCI by Third Parties:  The Contractor and its employees, agents, or 

subcontractors shall promptly transmit to the CDPH Program Contract Manager all requests for 
disclosure of any CDPH PCI requested by third parties to the agreement between Contractor and 
CDPH (except from an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of the individual’s personal 
information pursuant to applicable state or federal law), unless prohibited from doing so by applicable 
state or federal law. 

 
XIV. Audits, Inspection and EnforcementCDPH may inspect the facilities, systems, books and records of 

Contractor to monitor compliance with this Exhibit.  Contractor shall promptly remedy any violation of 
any provision of this Exhibit and shall certify the same to the CDPH Program Contract Manager in 
writing. 

 
XV. Return or Destruction of CDPH PCI on Expiration or Termination:  Upon expiration or termination of 

the agreement between Contractor and CDPH for any reason, Contractor shall securely return or 
destroy the CDPH PCI. If return or destruction is not feasible, Contractor shall provide a written 
explanation to the CDPH Program Contract Manager, the CDPH Privacy Officer and the CDPH Chief 
Information Security Officer, using the contact information listed in Section XI(F), above.   

 
A. Retention Required by Law:  If required by state or federal law, Contractor may retain, after 

expiration or termination, CDPH PCI for the time specified as necessary to comply with the law.  
 

B. Obligations Continue Until Return or Destruction:  Contractor’s obligations under this Exhibit 
shall continue until Contractor returns or destroys the CDPH PCI or returns the CDPH PCI to 
CDPH; provided however, that on expiration or termination of the agreement between 
Contractor and CDPH, Contractor shall not further use or disclose the CDPH PCI except as 
required by state or federal law.  

mailto:privacy@cdph.ca.gov
mailto:cdphiso@cdph.ca.gov


 County of Inyo  
 19-10419 

 Page 7 of 11 
Exhibit E 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 

  

CDPH IPSR (6-16) 

 
C. Notification of Election to Destroy CDPH PCI:  If Contractor elects to destroy the CDPH PCI, 

Contractor shall certify in writing, to the CDPH Program Contract Manager, the CDPH Privacy 
Officer and the CDPH Chief Information Security Officer, using the contact information listed in 
Section XI(F), above, that the CDPH PCI has been securely destroyed. The notice shall include 
the date and type of destruction method used. 

 
XVI. Amendment:  The parties acknowledge that federal and state laws regarding information security and 

privacy rapidly evolves and that amendment of this Exhibit may be required to provide for procedures 
to ensure compliance with such laws.  The parties specifically agree to take such action as is 
necessary to implement new standards and requirements imposed by regulations and other 
applicable laws relating to the security or privacy of CDPH PCI.The parties agree to promptly enter 
into negotiations concerning an amendment to this Exhibit consistent with new standards and 
requirements imposed by applicable laws and regulations. 

 
XVII. Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings:  Contractor shall make itself and any 

subcontractors, workforce employees or agents assisting Contractor in the performance of its 
obligations under the agreement between Contractor and CDPH, available to CDPH at no cost to 
CDPH to testify as witnesses, in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings being 
commenced against CDPH, its director, officers or employees based upon claimed violation of laws 
relating to security and privacy, which involves inactions or actions by the Contractor, except where 
Contractor or its subcontractor, workforce employee or agent is a named adverse party. 

 
XVIII. No Third-Party Beneficiaries:  Nothing express or implied in the terms and conditions of this Exhibit is 

intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than CDPH or Contractor 
and their respective successors or assignees, any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities 
whatsoever. 

 
XIX. Interpretation:  The terms and conditions in this Exhibit shall be interpreted as broadly as necessary to 

implement and comply with regulations and applicable State laws.  The parties agree that any 
ambiguity in the terms and conditions of this Exhibit shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that 
complies and is consistent with federal and state laws and regulations. 

 
XX. Survival:  If Contractor does not return or destroy the CDPH PCI upon the completion or termination of 

the Agreement, the respective rights and obligations of Contractor under Sections VI, VII and XI of 
this Exhibit shall survive the completion or termination of the agreement between Contractor and 
CDPH. 

 
 
 



 County of Inyo  
 19-10419 

 Page 8 of 11 
Exhibit E 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 

  

CDPH IPSR (6-16) 

Attachment 1 
Contractor Data Security Standards 

 
1. General Security Controls 

 
A. Confidentiality Statement.  All persons that will be working with CDPH PCI must sign a 

confidentiality statement.  The statement must include at a minimum, General Use, Security 
and Privacy safeguards, Unacceptable Use, and Enforcement Policies.  The statement must 
be signed by the workforce member prior to access to CDPH PCI.  The statement must be 
renewed annually.  The Contractor shall retain each person’s written confidentiality statement 
for CDPH inspection for a period of three (3) years following contract termination. 

 
B. Background check.  Before a member of the Contractor’s workforce may access CDPH PCI, 

Contractor must conduct a thorough background check of that worker and evaluate the 
results to assure that there is no indication that the worker may present a risk for theft of 
confidential data.  The Contractor shall retain each workforce member’s background check 
documentation for a period of three (3) years following contract termination. 

 
C. Workstation/Laptop encryption.  All workstations and laptops that process and/or store 

CDPH PCI must be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm, such as Advanced 
Encryption Standard (AES), with a 128bit key or higher.  The encryption solution must be full 
disk unless approved by the CDPH Information Security Office. 

 
D. Server Security. Servers containing unencrypted CDPH PCI must have sufficient 

administrative, physical, and technical controls in place to protect that data, based upon a risk 
assessment/system security review. 

 
E. Minimum Necessary. Only the minimum necessary amount of CDPH PCI required to 

perform necessary business functions may be copied, downloaded, or exported. 
 

F. Removable media devices.  All electronic files that contain CDPH PCI data must be 
encrypted when stored on any removable media or portable device (i.e. USB thumb drives, 
floppies, CD/DVD, smart devices tapes etc.). PCI must be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2 
certified algorithm, such as Advanced Encryption Standard (AES), with a 128bit key or higher 

 
G. Antivirus software.  All workstations, laptops and other systems that process and/or store 

CDPH PCI must install and actively use a comprehensive anti-virus software solution with 
automatic updates scheduled at least daily. 

 
H. Patch Management.  All workstations, laptops and other systems that process and/or store 

CDPH PCI must have operating system and application security patches applied, with system 
reboot if necessary.  There must be a documented patch management process which 
determines installation timeframe based on risk assessment and vendor recommendations.  
At a maximum, all applicable patches must be installed within 30 days of vendor release. 

 
I. User IDs and Password Controls.  All users must be issued a unique user name for 

accessing CDPH PCI.  Username must be promptly disabled, deleted, or the password 
changed upon the transfer or termination of an employee with knowledge of the password. 
Passwords are not to be shared.  Must be at least eight characters.  Must be a non-dictionary 



 County of Inyo  
 19-10419 

 Page 9 of 11 
Exhibit E 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 

  

CDPH IPSR (6-16) 

word.  Must not be stored in readable format on the computer.  Must be changed every 60 
days.  Must be changed if revealed or compromised.  Must be composed of characters from 
at least three of the following four groups from the standard keyboard: 

 
• Upper case letters (A-Z) 
• Lower case letters (a-z) 
• Arabic numerals (0-9) 
• Non-alphanumeric characters (punctuation symbols) 

 
J. Data Sanitization.  All CDPH PCI must be sanitized using NIST Special Publication 800-88 

standard methods for data sanitization when the CDPH PCI is no longer needed.   
 
2. System Security Controls 

 
A. System Timeout.  The system must provide an automatic timeout, requiring 

reauthentication of the user session after no more than 20 minutes of inactivity. 
 

B. Warning Banners.  All systems containing CDPH PCI must display a warning banner each 
time a user attempts access, stating that data is confidential, systems are logged, and 
system use is for business purposes only.  User must be directed to log off the system if they 
do not agree with these requirements. 

 
C. System Logging.  The system must maintain an automated audit trail which can identify the 

user or system process which initiates a request for CDPH PCI, or which alters CDPH PCI.  
The audit trail must be date and time stamped, must log both successful and failed 
accesses, must be read only, and must be restricted to authorized users This logging must 
be included for all user privilege levels including, but not limited to, systems administrators.  
If CDPH PCI is stored in a database, database logging functionality must be enabled.  Audit 
trail data must be archived for at least 3 years after occurrence. 

 
D. Access Controls.  The system must use role based access controls for all user 

authentications, enforcing the principle of least privilege. 
 

E. Transmission encryption.  All data transmissions of CDPH PCI outside the contractor’s 
secure internal network must be encrypted using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm, such as 
Advanced Encryption Standard (AES), with a 128bit key or higher.  Encryption can be end to 
end at the network level, or the data files containing CDPH PCI can be encrypted.  This 
requirement pertains to any type of CDPH PCI in motion such as website access, file 
transfer, and E-Mail. 

 
F. Intrusion Detection.  All systems involved in accessing, holding, transporting, and 

protecting CDPH PCI that are accessible via the Internet must be protected by a 
comprehensive intrusion detection and prevention solution. 

 
 
 
 
 
3. Audit Controls 



 County of Inyo  
 19-10419 

 Page 10 of 11 
Exhibit E 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 

  

CDPH IPSR (6-16) 

 
A. System Security Review.  All systems processing and/or storing CDPH PCI must have at 

least an annual system risk assessment/security review which provides assurance that 
administrative, physical, and technical controls are functioning effectively and providing 
adequate levels of protection.  Reviews shall include vulnerability scanning tools. 

 
B. Log Reviews.  All systems processing and/or storing CDPH PCI must have a routine 

procedure in place to review system logs for unauthorized access. 
 

C. Change Control.  All systems processing and/or storing CDPH PCI must have a 
documented change control procedure that ensures separation of duties and protects the 
confidentiality, integrity and availability of data. 

 
4. Business Continuity / Disaster Recovery Controls 

 
A. Disaster Recovery.  Contractor must establish a documented plan to enable continuation of 

critical business processes and protection of the security of electronic CDPH PCI in the 
event of an emergency.  Emergency means any circumstance or situation that causes 
normal computer operations to become unavailable for use in performing the work required 
under this agreement for more than 24 hours. 

 
B. Data Backup Plan.  Contractor must have established documented procedures to securely 

backup CDPH PCI to maintain retrievable exact copies of CDPH PCI.  The backups shall be 
encrypted.The plan must include a regular schedule for making backups, storing backups 
offsite, an inventory of backup media, and the amount of time to restore CDPH PCI should it 
be lost.  At a minimum, the schedule must be a weekly full backup and monthly offsite 
storage of CDPH data. 

 
5. Paper Document Controls 

 
A. Supervision of Data.  CDPH PCI in paper form shall not be left unattended at any time, 

unless it is locked in a file cabinet, file room, desk or office.  Unattended means that 
information is not being observed by an employee authorized to access the information.  
CDPH PCI in paper form shall not be left unattended at any time in vehicles or planes and 
shall not be checked in baggage on commercial airplanes. 

 
B. Escorting Visitors.  Visitors to areas where CDPH PCI is contained shall be escorted and 

CDPH PHI shall be kept out of sight while visitors are in the area. 
 

C. Confidential Destruction.  CDPH PCI must be disposed of through confidential means, 
using NIST Special Publication 800-88 standard methods for data sanitization when the 
CDPH PSCI is no longer needed.   

 
D. Removal of Data.  CDPH PCI must not be removed from the premises of the Contractor 

except with express written permission of CDPH. 
 
 

E. Faxing.  Faxes containing CDPH PCI shall not be left unattended and fax machines shall be 
in secure areas.  Faxes shall contain a confidentiality statement notifying persons receiving 



 County of Inyo  
 19-10419 

 Page 11 of 11 
Exhibit E 

Information Privacy and Security Requirements 
(For Non-HIPAA/HITECH Act Contracts) 

  

CDPH IPSR (6-16) 

faxes in error to destroy them.  Fax numbers shall be verified with the intended recipient 
before sending. 

 
F. Mailing.  CDPH PCI shall only be mailed using secure methods.  Large volume mailings of 

CDPH PHI shall be by a secure, bonded courier with signature required on receipt.  Disks 
and other transportable media sent through the mail must be encrypted with a CDPH 
approved solution, such as a solution using a vendor product specified on the CALIFORNIA 
STRATEGIC SOURCING INITIATIVE. 



CCC 04/2017 
CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly 
authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed below. This 
certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with
the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2,
Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with the
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free
workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying
actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:
1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,
4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:
1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,
2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment
on the Agreement.
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under 
the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible 
for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the 
following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 



certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et 
seq.)  

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies 
that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal 
court has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year 
period because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which 
orders Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. 
Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the 
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 
2003.   

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of 
pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 
multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the 
number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full 
year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for 
legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future 
contracts with the State for legal services. 

5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an 
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of 
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the 
State of California. 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, other 
than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of perjury that 
no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies 
furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced in whole 
or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal 
sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or 
with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop 
labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the 
Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial 
Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the 
contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably required 
by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial Relations, 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with the 
requirements under paragraph (a). 

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts  of $100,000 or more,  Contractor certifies 
that Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

8. GENDER IDENTITY:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of 
California. 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions 
regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has any questions on the 
status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from 
which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and 
which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent 
contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state 
officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the 
negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making 
process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former 
state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was 
employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject 
area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall 
render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive 
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for 
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e)) 



2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the 
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and 
Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance 
of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and 
guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the 
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of 
the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented 
with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting 
agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in 
California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any 
transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are 
some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing 
within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must 
be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will 
determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary 
of State. 

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the 
State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body 
which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the 
agreement. 
7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor 
shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated 
by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease 
and desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water 
Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) 
finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water 
pollution. 
 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all 
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 



State of California--Health and Human Services Agency California Department of Public Health 
 Contracts and Purchasing Services Section 

 

CDPH 9067 (7/17) 

Darfur Contracting Act 
 
 
Pursuant to Public Contract Code (PCC) sections 10475-10481, the Darfur Contracting Act’s intent is to 
preclude State agencies from contracting with scrutinized companies that do business in the African nation of 
Sudan.  A scrutinized company is a company doing specified types of business in Sudan as defined in PCC 
section 10476. Scrutinized companies are ineligible to, and cannot, contract with a State agency for goods or 
services (PCC section 10477(a)) unless obtaining permission from the Department of General Services 
according to the criteria set forth in PCC section 10477(b).  
 
Therefore, to be eligible to contract with the California Department of Public Health, please initial one of the 
following three paragraphs and complete the certification below:  
 
1.        We do not currently have, or we have not had within the previous  

Initials three years, business activities or other operations outside of the United States.  
 

OR 
 
2.        We are a scrutinized company as defined in Public Contract Code  

Initials section 10476, but we have received written permission from the Department of General 
Services (DGS) to submit a bid or proposal pursuant to Public Contract Code section 
10477(b) or submit a contract/purchase order.  A copy of the written permission from 
DGS is included with our bid, proposal or contract/purchase order. 

 
OR 

 
3.        We currently have, or we have had within the previous three years,  

Initials business activities or other operations outside of the United States, 
 but we certify below that we are not a scrutinized company  
       as defined in Public Contract Code section 10476.   

 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am duly authorized to legally bind this  
company to the clause listed above.  This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 
 
 
Company Name (Printed) 

      

Federal ID Number 

       
By (Authorized Signature) 

  
Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

       
Date Executed 
 
      

Executed in the County and State of 

       
 

 

rjackson
Highlight



STATE OF CALIFORNIA   DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES 
CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS ATTACHMENT OFFICE OF LEGAL SERVICES 
DGS OLS 04 (Rev. 01/17) 
 
 
 
Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, a person that submits a bid or proposal to, or 
otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract with, a state agency with respect to any 
contract in the amount of $100,000 or above shall certify, under penalty perjury, at the time the 
bid or proposal is submitted or the contract is renewed, all of the following: 
 

1.  CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS:  For contracts  executed or renewed after January 1, 
2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Section 51 of the Civil 
Code) and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the Government Code); 
and 

2.  EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES: For contracts executed or renewed after 
January 1, 2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy against a sovereign nation or peoples 
recognized by the United States government, the Contractor certifies that such policies are not 
used in violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Section 51 of the Civil Code) or the Fair 
Employment and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the Government Code).  

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under  
the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and  
correct.  
 
Proposer/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 
 
  

Federal ID Number  

By (Authorized Signature)  
 
 
Printed Name and Title of Person Signing  
 
 
Date Executed  Executed in the County and State of  

 
 

 

 





County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Riannah Reade 
 
SUBJECT:  Amend FY 19/20 Sheriff Safety Budget and ratify US DEA agreement. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: 
A) amend the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Sheriff Safety Budget 022710 as follows: increase estimated revenue in 
Federal Grants Revenue Code No. 4555 by $2,500 and increase appropriation in Overtime Object Code 5003 by 
$2,500 (4/5ths vote required); and
B) ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Drug Enforcement Administration of United 
States for the provision of Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Forces FY 2019 Agreement in an amount 
not to exceed $2,500 for the period of April 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019, and authorize the Sheriff or 
designee to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
US DEA has grant funds available for overtime costs associated with illegal cannabis eradication. The Sheriff's 
office overtime costs are paid by the general fund from the Sheriff Security Budget Budget 022710. The Sheriff's 
office has a separate grant through US DEA for illegal cannabis eradication that pays for up to $1,400 in supplies 
for eradication activities. If approved, these funds will help offset costs to the general fund.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to deny this agreement. This is not recommended; although small, any amount to offset 
the burden to the general fund should be considered.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor's office
Budget Officer
County Counsel
Purchasing Officer
US DEA
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Overtime costs for illegal cannabis eradication are paid from the Sheriff Safety Budget 022710 Overtime Object 
Code 5003
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2019 US DEA OCDETF grant
 
APPROVALS:
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 8/28/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/29/2019
Denelle Carrington Approved - 9/3/2019
Riannah Reade Approved - 9/19/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/20/2019
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 9/20/2019























County of Inyo

County Administrator - Personnel
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the July 1, 2019- June 30, 2022 Memorandum of Understanding between the 
County of the Inyo and the Law Enforcement Administrators Association (LEAA).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board has given direction regarding negotiations on the current contract with the Law Enforcement 
Administrator’s Association (LEAA).  At this time, negotiations have concluded successfully with all parties 
agreeing on the Memorandum of Understanding.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the Memorandum of Understanding and direct staff to re-negotiate the 
terms with LEAA.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
The increased costs will be absorbed in the Sheriff’s Department Budget this fiscal year.  Future year increases will 
be addressed during the budget process.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. LEAA MOU 2019-2022
 
APPROVALS:
Sue Dishion Created/Initiated - 9/25/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/25/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 9/25/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/25/2019



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 9/25/2019



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSIAA/DING

between

INYO COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT
AD M I N/SIRA TORS ASSO CI AT I ON

COUNTY OF INYO

July 1, 2019 - June 30,2022

and



LEAA MOU - Table of Contents

Section I - Introduction....................
Article I - Recognition
Article 2 - Not applicable
Article 3 - Non-Discrimination
Article 4 - Personnel Rules and Regulations
Afticle 5 - Membership
Article 6 - Melit System Membership

J

Section 2 - Salaries / Additional Compensation.....
Article I - Salaries

Article 2 - Longevity Pay

Article 3 - Bilingual Pay

Article 4 - Uniforms
Article 5 - Out of Classification Pay

Article 6 - Other Safety Compensation

4

Section 3 - Leave 7

Afticle I - Vacation
Article 2 - Holidays
Article3-SickLeave
Arlicle4-LeavePool
Article 5 - Administrative Leave

Section 4 - Other Benefits 9

Afticle 1 - Insurance
Article 2 - Retirement

Section 5 - Policy and Procedures 1l
Article I - No Smoking Policy
Article 2 -Drugand Alcohol Policy
Article 3 - Employee Assistance Policy
Article4-TravelPay
Article 5 - Educational Reimbursement
Article 6 - Mistaken Overpayments
Article 7 - Elevation to Elected Office
Article 8 - Discipline and Grievance Procedure
Article 9 - Personnel Complaints per Section 832,5 of the CA Penal Code
Article l0 - Administrative Reorganization

Section 6 - Other Terms.........., ..,...,..... 13

Afticle I - Authorized Agents
Afticle 2 - No Strike - No Lockout
Article 3 - Emergency Waiver
Afticle 4 - Re-opener Clause
Afticle 5 - Employee Organizational Rights and Responsibilities - not defined
Article 6 - Separability
Afticle 7 - Sole and Entire MOU
Article 8 -Term of MOU
Afticle 9 - Ratification and Execution

2



COMPREHENSIVE
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

THE COUNTY OF INYO
AND

THE INYO COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT ADMINISTRATORIS
ASSOCIATION

2019-2022

Section I - Introduction

Article I - Recosnition

The County of Inyo (hereinafter called the "County") has recognized the Inyo County

Law Enforcement Administrators Association (hereinafter called the "Association") as the

formally recognized employee organization of bargaining unit employees for the purpose of
meeting its obligations under the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act, Government Code Section 3500 et

seq., when rules, regulations, or laws affecting wages, hours and other terms and conditions of
employment are amended or changed.

Article 2 - Not apnlicable

Article 3 - Non-Discrimination

Section 1 The parties mutually recognize and agree to protect the rights of all
employees hereby to join and/or participate in protected Association
activities, or to refrain from joining or participating in protected

activities, in accordance with Government Code Sections 3500 to 351 l.

Section 2: The County and the Association agree that they shall not discriminate
against any employee because of race, color, sex, age, national origin,
ancestry, political or religion or religious creed, medical condition or
sexual orientation. The County and the Association shall reopen any

provision of this Agreement for the purpose of complying with any final
order of a federal or state agency or coutt of competent jurisdiction
requiring a modification or change in any provision or provisions of this
Agreement in compliance with state or federal anti-discrimination laws.

Whenever the masculine gender is used in this Agreement, it shall be

understood to include the feminine gender.

J

Section 3



Article 4 - Personnel Rules and Regulations

The County of Inyo Personnel Rules and Regulations are hereby incorporated by reference

and, except as provided in this Memorandum of Understanding, govern the terms and conditions of
employment.

Article 5 - Membershin

The Association represents the following management positions;

Undersheriff: Sheriffs Department

Lieutenants: Sheriffs Department

Chief Investigator: District Attomey

Article 6 - Merit System Membership

Those positions represented by the Association shall be part of the County Merit System,

with the terms and conditions of their employment governed by the County Merit System rules, the

County of Inyo Personnel Rules and Regulations and this Memorandum of Understanding. The

County shall amend the current Merit System rules as necessary to comply with this section.

Section 2 - Salaries / Additional Compensation

Article 1 - Salaries

Section l: The positions represented by the Association are flat salaried positions

subject only to benefits as addressed by this MOU.

Section 2

Undersheriff:
Lieutenant:
Chief Investigator:

2%o COLA: July 11, 2019
2%o COLA: Iuly 9,2020
2Yo COLA: July 8,2021

Equity Adjustment:
July 11, 2019 - 1.5%
July 9, 2020 - 1.5%

July 8, 2021- 15%

For a total of a 3 .5Yo increase per year

SC85, SD85, SE85

SC8I, SD81, SESI
SC8I, SD8I, SESI

4



Addition of an F Step to the salary table which is a 5%o increase above E Step. Employees

currently at E step will move to F Step upon ratification of the contract. Any other Classic Member
that is not currently at E Step, will be moved up one step upon ratification. The employee's

anniversary will not change upon ratification (For example, if their next step is due in March2020,
they will receive their next step increase in March 2020.)

Article 2 - Longevitv Pay

At year 6 on the anniversary date the employee will receive a I percent increase to the

base salary and will receive a Yz percent increase every year after until employee reaches a total
of 8 percent and20 years of service.

Article 3 - Bilingual Pay

The County agrees to compensate members who successfully demonstrate the ability to provide

bilingual services to the public in the languages designated below shall be compensated as follows:

Spanish I - Those who can communicate with the public will receive an additional two percent

(2%) of base pay.
Spanish II - Those who interview and interrogate will receive an additional three percent (3%) of
base pay.

Spanish III - Those who speak, read and write will receive an additional five percent (5%) of
base pay.

Upon passing the testing procedure administered by Cooperative Personnel Services (CPS), Department

Heads will assign the level which they qualify to the employee.

Article 4 - Uniforms

l. Uniform allowance to be paid in the amount of $38.46 per pay period.

2. All clothing damaged within the course and scope of employment shall be replaced or
repaired at no cost to the Member. The determination as to replacement or repair shall be

made by the Department. Normal wear and tear is not included.

Article 5 - Out of Classification Pay

In the event a represented employee is temporarily assigned for a period of more than 5
working days to a position with a higher salary range that member shall have his or her salary

increased to the amount of the higher range for the duration of the assignment. The increase is

retroactive to the first day of the assignment.

5



Article 6 - Other Safety Comnensation

A. Education Incentive

l. County agrees to compensate Members holding Associate College degrees and/or
an lntermediate Certificate issued by Peace Officers Standards and Training an

additional 5 percent (5%) of the Members base pay.

2. County agrees to compensate Members holding Bachelor College degrees and/or
an Advanced Certificate issued by Peace Officers Standards and Training an

additional 5 percent (5%) of the Members base pay.

3. County agrees to compensate Members holding a Supervisory Certificate issued

by Peace Officers Standards and Training an additional 5 percent (5%) of the
Members base pay.

4. County agrees to compensate Members possessing a Masters Degree in a field
applicable to Law Enforcement Management and/or a Management Certificate
from Peace Officers Standards and Training an additional 6 percent (6%) of the
Members base pay.

Stand-By Pay: Employees requested by the Department Head to serve in an after-hours
response capacity will receive $100 per day for performing standby duties on Saturday
and Sunday and any county recognized holiday.

B. Safety Equipment: The County agrees to supply the following safety equipment to
Members. If Members wish to purchase equipment that is not standard issue, they
may do so at their own expense. All equipment shall meet Departmental approval
prior to use.

Gun
Holster
Sam Browne belt and accessories
Baton and holder
Handcuff case and handcuffi
Fl as hli ght including b att eri es

Ammunition and holder
Safety helmet
Body armor
Parka Rain gear (pants and jacket)

Association agrees to waive all claims for sums expended by its Members to purchase

equipment.

6



C. Expert Pay: All members who qualify as "Expert" or higher at a quarterly
qualification shoot will receive a one-time payment of $50. A qualifying shoot shall
be scheduled by the Department once each quarter with a Department appointed
firearms instructor. For those members unable to participate in the designated shoot
due to vacation, illness or other reasons acceptable to the Department, the

Department may schedule a make-up qualifying shoot. A member may have only
one attempt to qualify as Expert or higher for this additional compensation each

quarter. The Firearms Instructor will designate, in accordance with Department
policy, which attempt at the qualifying shoot will be the "designated qualifying
shoot".

D. Additional Compensation in "Times of Emergency" - In times of declared
disaster/emergency, State or Federal, those members assigned to that disaster/
emergency shall be compensated for overtime at the rate of time and one-half upon
the receipt of reimbursement funds by the County from the State or Federal

government for the members work that meets the requirements for the

reimbursement rate of time and one-half. This additional compensation shall be

provided per the requirements of Resolution No. 94-15.

Section 3 - Leave

Article 1 - Vacation

Vacation accrual rates and use of vacation are defined in the County Personnel Rules

and Regulations Manual.

The maximum amount of vacation days, which may be accrued, shall be

280 hours (35 days).

In the event an employee is denied a request for vacation, which denial
causes the employee to cease accruing vacation benefits due to the 35-

day cap provided herein, the employee may continue to accrue vacation
benefits so long as (l) the employee and his/her supervisor agree that
the employee will take necessary vacation time at a date in the future to
bring the employee below the 35-day cap; (2) the alternate vacation
must be scheduled and taken by the employee within six months; and
(3) the County Administrator approves the arrangements, which
approval will not be unreasonably denied.

In the event an employee would cease accruing vacation benefits due to
the 35-day cap provided herein, the employee may continue to accrue

vacation benefits so long as (1) the employee and his/her supervisor
agree that the employee will take necessary vacation time at a date in
the future to bring the employee below the 35-day cap:' (2) the vacation
must be scheduled and taken by the employee within six months; and
(3) the County Administrator approves the arrangements, which
approval will not be unreasonably denied.

1

2.

3

7



The Association understands that the County is under no obligation to change vacation
benefits for DSA employees and that an agreement providing for no changes to
vacation benefits for DSA employees would result in no changes to LEAA represented

employees,

Article 2 - Holidavs

Association Members shall be entitled to the following legal holidays:
January I (New Years Day)
Third Monday in January (Martin Luther King Day)
February I2 (Lincoln's Birthday)
Third Monday in February (Presidents Day)
Last Monday in May (Memorial Day)
July 4 (Independence Day)
First Monday in September (Labor Day)
September 9 (Califurnia Admissions Day)
Second Monday in October (Columbus Day)
November I1 (Veterans Day)
Thanksgiving Day
Fri d ay imm e d i ate ly fo I I ow i n g Th anks givin g D ay
December 25 (Christmas)
Christmas Eve and New Years Eve (See below)

All regular employees eligible therefore under Rule 818 of the Personnel Rules shall be

entitled to a one (l) day holiday with pay on their last working day preceding either
December 25 or January I of each year. The employee's Department head shall
determine upon which of the alternative days the employee may take such leave.

Department heads shall schedule such leaves in a manner, which ensures continuation
of regular County business with a minimum degree of disruption. If an employee cannot
be excused on either day, the employee shall be entitled to the leave at some other time
convenient to the Department.

Every day appointed by the President or Governor for a public fast, thanksgiving or
holiday.

If any of the above-designated holidays falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday is a
holiday. If any of the above designated holidays falls on a Sunday, the following
Monday is a holiday. Employees for whom necessity requires a different holiday
schedule than generally applied shall work according to regulations prepared by the

Department Head.

Article3-SickLeave

There shall be no payoff of accrued unused sick leave upon termination or retirement.

Article4-LeavePool

Association members are all currently involved in the County Leave Pool as such

continue to be involved on an equal basis with DSA members.

8



Article 5 - Administrative Leave

Section I

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Section 5

July 1- October 31

November l- February 28

The County shall grant employees 76 hours of Administrative hours each

fiscal year.

Administrative hours will be granted each July I and must be exhausted by
the following June 30. Administrative hours will not accrue from one fiscal
year to the next.

Administrative hours will not be paid should an employee terminate, for any
reason, from County services.

An employee requesting administrative hours shall give a minimum of 48

hours notice to his/her supervisor. A request to take the leave may be denied
due to the operational needs of the employee's department.

New employees, upon appointment, shall be granted a prorated number of
Administrative hours as follows:

i

9.5Days
5.5 Days
2 DaysMarchl-June30

Section 4 - Other Benefits

Article I - Insurance

Section 1: The County shall maintain the existing health (including PORAC
Premier), dental, vision, long-term disability and life insurance and shall
continue them on an equal basis for those benefits.

A. Dental
County agrees to pay 100% of the premiums for dental insurance
during the term of this MOU. County agrees to additional
orthodontia benefits for adults and children, 50yo benefit schedule,

$1,200 lifetime maximum.

B. Optical
County agrees to pay 100% of the premiums for optical insurance
during the term of this MOU.

C. Life
County agrees to pay 100% of the premium for life insurance
during the term of this MOU.

D. Short-Term Disability
County will provide all eligible employees with a self-insured
income protection plan for up to one year for non-job-related

9



Section 2:

Section 3:

Section 4

disabilities preventing a person from working. County agrees to pay
the premium based on the state disability program. Any employee
denied benefits under this provision may file a grievance pursuant
to Article XIII of the County Personnel Rules and may have the
matter heard only up to the level of the County Administrator.

E. Long-TermDisability
County agrees to pay 100% of the insurance premium for existing
Long-Term Disability Program for the term of this MOU.

Except as specified herein, the represented employees shall receive all
benefits as provided for in the Personnel Rules and Regulations.

County agrees to pay 80% of the premium of PERS Choice, PORAC or
PERS Select Plans. Employee will be responsible for 20Yo of the
premium. The maximum the County will contribute toward a different
CaIPERS plan other than listed above will be 80% of PERS Choice
premium.

Employees who have other medical coverage and have opted out of the
County's Medical Plan will receive the following:

Employee Only:
Employee + 1:

Family:

$92.31 per pay period
5184.62 per pay period
5276.93 per pay period

Section 5: If and when the County is allowed or becomes eligible to participate in
a Two-Tier Medical Insurance System allowing the discontinuation or
modification of retiree medical benefits for new hires, LEAA agrees to
meet and confer on implementation of the Two-Tier Medical Insurance
System.

PERS Employee hired prior to January 1,2013 (Classic)

L County agrees to provide Ihe 3%o at 50 formula PERS retirement for Safety members for
current employees.

2. County agrees to pay for half of the member's contribution for retirement at the rate of 4.5o/o

for the 3Yo at 50 PERS retirement.

3. The member will pay for the other half of the member's contribution for retirement at the
ruteof 4.5Yo forthe 3%at50 PERS retirement.

4. PERS benefit to safety employees shall consist ofl
a. The "highest yeaf' computation for these employees will be based on highest one

year's salary.

b. Upon retirement any member may convert up to three hundred (300) days accrued
unused sick leave to service credit for retirement purposes.

l0



County will pay 50% of the member's normal contributions as employer paid
member contributions (EPMC) and report the same percentage of compensation
earnable as additional compensation pursuant to Government Code Sections
20636(c)@) and2069l. (45%to be reported at EPMC).

d. All other provisions as amended in the County PERS contract.

Employees hired after January 2013 (PEPRA)

Employees will receive 2.7o/o aI 57 and employees will be required to pay at least 50
percent (50%) of normal cost toward retirement.

Section 5 - Policv and Procedures

Article I - No Smokins Policv

County and Association agree to a non-smoking policy as a condition of employment for new
hires.

Article 2 - Drug and Alcohol Policv

Association agrees to the County Alcohol and Drug Abuse Policy as last amended.

County agrees that members are excluded from this policy when duties require they
maintain possession of alcohol or drugs. County also agrees that members who are

required by the Department to undergo an alcohol or drug test as described in the policy
will:

l be entitled to a second sample and independent analysis of the second samples; and

2. be evaluated under County Personnel Rules and Regulations policies with regard to
"probable cause" for drug testing.

The Association also agrees to the County of Inyo Drug and Alcohol Policy pursuant to
the Department of Transportation Resolutions as last amended.

Article 3 - Employee Assistance Program

The County will provide represented employees with the same employee assistance
program as provided to its other merit system employees.

Article4-TravelPav

County will use the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) policy regarding reimbursement of
travel pay. If the IRS rates increase, the County reimbursement rates will increase in the same

amount as the IRS rates. Should the IRS rates decrease or undergo fundamental changes,
renegotiations between the County and the Association on travel pay will occur.

11

A

B.



Article 5 - Educational Reimhursement

The County agrees to reimburse educational expenses up to a maximum of $350.00
per fiscal year, per Member for tuition and books.

The Member must be engaged in a course of study that has a direct relationship to
duties performed and would benefit the Department and County and is approved by
the Department Head.

The Member must complete the course work with a grade of "passing" or higher and

submit a final grade report and a receipt for books purchased.

If a Member makes a commitment to attend course work either in-county or out-of-
county, the Department will make every attempt to accommodate a Member's request

for duty scheduling to allow for successful course completion,

The Member will be required to utilize leave time if time off is in excess of normally
scheduled time off and is required for successful course completion.

If the Department grants scheduling priority to a Member and such a priority causes other
Members to receive undesirable shift work or not receive the normal rotational shift change,

the Department will not be subject to grievance issues,

Article 6 - Mistaken Overnavments

Should any covered employee be overpaid due to any mistake or inadvertence, the

County may recover the amount of overpayment by subsequent unilateral deduction from the
pay of the employee in question up to not more than the amount of the overpayment.
However, not more than twenty-five percent (25%) of any such employee's net pay shall be

deducted from any one paycheck for this purpose.

Article 7 - Elevation to Elected Office

In the event an Association member is elected to any County office, the Member may
carry over to the new position 120 days of sick leave for the sole purpose of converting such

sick leave to service credit at the time of retirement.

In the event an elected office is vacated by an elected official, a represented employee

temporarily assigned the duties of that elected official shall have his salary increased to the
amount the elected official received when the office was vacated. Such increase shall be paid

beginning the date the office was vacated until the vacancy is filled by either the Board of
Supervisors or an election, whichever is earlier.

Article 8 - Discipline & Grievance Procedure

Employee grievances and discipline shall be handled in accordance with the County
Personnel Rules and Regulations. Selection of Hearing Officer shall be mutually agreed upon
by both parties and to be selected from a list provided by Mr. Curtis Lyon of the State

Mediation and Conciliation Service.

a

t2



This Memorandum of Understanding hereby incorporates by reference the provisions of
sections 3300 through 33ll of the Government Code of the State of California, which
sections are collectively known as the Public Safety Officers'Procedural Bill of Rights Act.

Article 9 - Personnel Comnlaints per Section 832.5 of the California Penal Code

Personnel complaints will be taken as required by law.

In those cases where a personnel complaint is of a nature that may result in disciplinary
action as referenced in Sections 3300 through 33ll of the California Government Code, the
Department will request such complaint be made in writing. If the complaining party refuses

to write or sign such complaint, such refusal will be noted in the investigator's report along
with the reason, if known.

Article 10 - Administrative Reorganization

If Department lay-offs are required, those having a below standard evaluation at last

annual evaluation will be laid off first, and thereafter, layoffs will be made by seniority.
Seniority shall be determined first by rank, then by length of service within a rank and finally
by length of service with the Department.

When the Department rehires after layoffs have occurred, the last employee laid off will
be the first employee rehired.

Section6-OtherTerms

Article I - Authorized Agents

Authorized agents, for the purpose of administering the terms and provisions of this
Memorandum of Understanding shall be:

County:
County Administrative Officer
P.O. Box N
Independence, CA 93526

Association:
Inyo County Sheriff s Department
Attn: LEAA President
P.O. Drawer S

Independence, CA 93526

13



Article 2 - No Strike- No Lockout

Section I The Association, its officers, agents, representatives and or members

agree that during the term of this MOU they will not cause or condone

any strike, walkout, slowdown, sick-out or any other job action by

withholding or refusing to perform services.

Section 2 The County agrees that it shall not lockout the represented employees
during the term of this MOU. The term 'olockout" is hereby defined so

as to include the discharge, suspension, termination, layoff, failure to
recall or failure to return to work employees of the County in the

exercise of it's rights as set forth in any of the provisions of this MOU
or applicable ordinance or law.

Section 3 Any employee of the County who parlicipates in any conduct prohibited
in Section I above may be subject to disciplinary action up to and

including termination.

Section 4: In the event that any one or more officers, agents, representatives, or
members of the Association engage in any of the conduct prohibited in
Section I above, the Association shall immediately instruct any persons

engaging in such conduct that their conduct is in violation of this MOU
and is unlawful and they must immediately cease engaging in conduct
prohibited in Section 1 above, and return to work.

Article 3 - Emergency Waiver

In the event of circumstances beyond the control of the County, such as acts of God,

fire, flood, insurrection, civil disorder, national emergency, or similar circumstances, if the

County Administrative Officer or his designee so declares, any provisions of this MOU or the

Personnel Rules of the County, which restricts the County's ability to respond to these

emergencies, shall be suspended for the duration of such emergency. After the emergency is

declared over, the Association shall have the right to meet and confer with the County
regarding the impact on employees of the suspension of these provisions in the MOU and any
personnel rules and policies.

Article 4 - Re-opener

Section 1 Either the Law Enforcement Administrators Association or the County
may reopen this MOU to negotiate any term(s) and condition(s)
expressly addressed or absent from this MOU upon 30 days written
notice to the other side. Both parties agree to negotiate regarding any

issues subject to the request to reopen the MOU. Changes will only be

made by mutual agreement of both sides.

14



Section 2 The parties shall reopen any provisions of this MOU for the purpose of
complying with any final order of a federal or state agency or couft of
competent jurisdiction requiring a modification or change in any
provision or provisions of this MOU in order to comply with state or
federal laws.

Article 5 - Emnlovee Organizational Rights and Responsihilities

Article 6 - Senarabilitv

Should any provision of this MOU be found to be inoperative, void, or invalid by a

court of competent jurisdiction, all other provisions of this MOU shall remain in full force

and effect.

Article 7 - Sole and Entire MOU

Section I It is the intent of the parties hereto that the provisions of this
Memorandum of Understanding shall supersede all prior agreements

and memoranda of agreement or memoranda of understanding, or
contrary salary and/or personnel resolutions, or written, expressed or
implied, between the parties, and shall govern the entire relationship and

shall be the sole source of any and all rights which may be asserted

hereunder. This Memorandum of Understanding is not intended to
conflict with Federal or State Law.

Section 2: The parties acknowledge that the Board of Supervisors will adopt this
agreement by resolution and that said resolution shall remain in full
force and effect during the life of this Memorandum of Understanding.

Article 8 - Term of MOII

The term of this Memorandum of Understanding shall continue in full force and effect
until June 30,2022. The County will provide each employee represented by the Association a

copy of this and all subsequent MOU's.

l5



Article 9 - Ratification and Execution

The County and the Association acknowledge that this Memorandum of Understanding

shall not be in full force and effect until ratification by the Association and adopted by the

Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo. Subject to the foregoing, this MOU is hereby

executed by the authorized representatives of the County and Association and entered into as

of this lst day of October 2019.

DATED:

SIGNED:

DATED

SIGNED:

LEAA President

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

16



Article o - Rotificatinn and ltvecution

The County and the Association acknowledge that this Memorandum of Understanding
shall not be in full force and effect until ratification by the Association and adopted by the
Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo. Subject to the foregoing, this MOU is hereby
executed by the authorized representatives of the County and Association and entered into as

of this lst day of October 2019.

z/ee fi*DATED:

SIGNED:

DATED:

SIGNED:

LEAA President

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

16



LEAA - LAW ENFORCEMENT ADM ASSISTANTS
EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 3, 2019

(Retro Back to 07111119l-

2% COLA + 1.5% EQUITY ADJUSTMENT
TOTAL OF 3.5% INCREASE

LEAA - LAW ENFORCEMENT ADM ASSISTANTS
EFFECTIVE JULY 09, 2O2O

2% COLA + 1.5o/o EQUITY ADJUSTMENT
TOTAL OF 3.5% INCREASE

LEAA. LAW ENFORCEMENT ADM ASSISTANTS
EFFECTIVE JULY 08, 2021

2% COLA + 1.5o/o EQUITY ADJUSTMENT
TOTAL OF 3.5% INCREASE

Range Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F

079SC 6,620 6,953 7,288 7,673 8,054 8,457
O79SD 6,951 7,300 7,655 8,056 8,457 8,880
O79SE 7,368 7,739 8,1 15 8,540 8,965 9,413
081 SC 6,852 7,1 96 7,546 7,939 8,337 8,754
081 SD 7,195 7,556 7,923 8,339 8,753 9,1 91

081 SE 7,628 8,01'r 8,398 8,838 9,278 9,742
083SC 7,093 7,448 7,810 8,221 8,627 9,058
O83SD 7,447 7,820 8,199 8,629 9,058 9,511

O83SE 7,896 8,289 8,692 9,147 9,602 10,082
085SC 7,341 7,711 8,083 8,506 8,929 9,375
O85SD 7,709 8,096 8,489 8,931 9,375 9,844
O85SE 8,171 8,s83 8,997 9,467 9,937 10,434

Range Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E StEP F
079SC 6,852 7,196 7,543 7,942 8,336 8,753
079SD 7,194 7,556 7,923 8,338 8,753 9,1 91

079SE 7,626 8,010 8,399 8,839 9,279 9,742
081 SC 7,092 7,448 7,810 8,217 8,629 9,060
081 SD 7,447 7,820 8,200 8,631 9,059 9,513
081 SE 7,895 8,291 8,692 9,147 9,603 10,083
083SC 7,341 7,709 8,083 8,509 8,929 9,375
083SD 7,708 8,094 8,486 8,931 9,375 9,844
083SE 8,172 8,579 8,996 9,467 9,938 10,435
O85SC 7,598 7,981 8,366 8,804 9,242 9,703
085SD 7,979 8,379 8,786 9,244 9,703 10,'l 89

O85SE 8,457 8,883 9,312 9,798 10,285 10,799

Range Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F

079SC 7,092 7,448 7,807 8,220 8,628 9,059
079SD 7,446 7,820 8,200 8,630 9,059 9,513
079SE 7,893 8,290 8,693 9,'148 9,604 10,083
081SC 7,340 7,709 8,083 8,50s 8,931 9,377
081SD 7,708 8,094 8,487 8,933 9,376 9,846
081 SE 8,171 8,581 8,996 9,467 9,939 10,436
083SC 7,598 7,979 8,366 8,807 9,242 9,703
083SD 7,978 8,377 8,783 9,244 9,703 1 0,1 89
083SE 8,458 8,879 9,311 9,798 10,286 10,800
085SC 7,864 8,260 8,659 9,112 9,565 10,043
O85SD 8,258 8,672 9,094 9,568 10,043 10,546
O85SE 8,753 9,194 9,638 10,141 10,645 11,177



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Recycling & Waste 
Management/Emergency Services

 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:   Kelley Williams, Cap Aubrey 
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of a Waiver of Green Waste Disposal Fees during Inyo County Free Green Waste 
Disposal events. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board consider approving and authorizing the Chairperson to sign Resolution No. 2019-45, waiving gate 
fees for green waste disposal at all Inyo County Landfills on Saturday, November 2, 2019 and Sunday, 
November 3, 2019 and quarterly thereafter on the third weekends of January, April, July and October of each 
year until changed by Board consensus. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The U.S. fire suppression policies have largely kept fire from playing its natural role, resulting in unnaturally high 
"fuel" levels in forests and other areas throughout the Country.

Removing fire from ecosystems that depend on it to stay healthy, coupled with more people living in flammable 
natural areas, have created a costly and dangerous wildfire problem.  Fires are a part of the natural ecology, and 
living adjacent to the wilderness means living with a constant threat of fire.  Fire, by nature, is an unpredictable 
and often an uncontrollable force.

We need to find ways to restore fire to places that need it, while protecting homes and communities.  As a 
community, we need to learn how to live more safely with fire.  Through advanced planning, understanding and 
preparation, we can all be partners in the wildland fire solution.

Living next to a dense vegetation area, the Wildland-Urban Interface (WUI), landowners should provide 
firefighters with the defensible space they need to protect their homes.  Unmanaged vegetation around homes 
increases the risk of wildfire spreading throughout the community, and endangering lives and property.  Creating 
a buffer zone by removing weeds, brush, and other vegetation helps slow or halt the spread of fire to a structure.

The Inyo County Office of Emergency Services has been reaching out to the communities throughout Inyo 
County with wildfire prevention education, and by participating in numerous disaster preparedness events.  
 Sponsoring frequent promotional opportunities, such as free green waste disposal events, is another strategy to 
help encourage neighborhoods to jointly collaborate in a community-wide effort to actively contribute to reducing 
the risk of a wildland fire. 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
In April of 2019 in support of Earth Day, and again in July of 2019, your Board approved similar resolutions 
waiving the green waste disposal gate fees.  This being the third green waste disposal gate fee waiver within a 9 
month period shows the County's continued commitment to being proactive in helping to reduce wildfire risk 
throughout Inyo County. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not waive these fees, but to be effective, wildfire preparedness and mitigation 
activities need to involve the "whole community".  By waiving the "Green Waste" disposal gate fees, it helps to 
encourage Inyo County residents to be proactive in managing the dead and dry vegetation around their personal 
property.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
If your Board approves waiving these fees, it is unknown how much green waste will be received at the landfills.  
Once the amount has been determined, this amount can be used to provide cost match for funding that is 
received through the Emergency Management Performance Grant.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Green Waste Fee Waiver Resolution October 2019
 
APPROVALS:
Leslie Chapman Created/Initiated - 9/20/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/20/2019
Leslie Chapman Approved - 9/20/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/20/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/20/2019
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 9/26/2019



RESOLUTION NO. ___________

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, WAIVING SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AND GATE FEES FOR GREEN 

WASTE IN SUPPORT OF COMMUNITY WILDFIRE PREVENTION AND 
VEGETATION MANAGEMENT

WHEREAS, Wildfire is a serious threat to lives, property and natural resources in Inyo 
County; and

WHEREAS, maintaining a defensible space around structures is one of the most 
effective means to slow or halt the spread of wildfire; and 

              WHEREAS, to help encourage Inyo County residents to become more proactive in 
vegetation management around their homes and private properties, the County of Inyo-Office of 
Emergency Services has requested to waive green waste disposal gate fees at all landfills on 
Saturday and Sunday, November 2nd and 3rd, 2019, and quarterly thereafter on the 3rd weekends of 
January, April, July and October of each year until changed by Board consensus.

              NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, 
pursuant to Section 7.10.080 of the Inyo County Code, hereby waives gate and green waste 
disposal fees for all Inyo County residents, excluding commercial haulers and landscaping 
contractors, at all Inyo County landfills on Saturday and Sunday, November 2nd and 3rd, 2019, and 
quarterly thereafter on the 3rd weekends of January, April, July and October of each year until 
changed by Board consensus.

             PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 1st day of October, by the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors, County of Inyo, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:  
                                                 _______________________________________________
                                                  Rick Pucci, Chairperson
                                                  Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

CLINT QUILTER
Clerk of the Board

By:  ________________________________
         Darcy Ellis, Assistant



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Clint Quilter 
 
SUBJECT:  Regional Dispatch 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) conduct workshop regarding regional dispatch; and B) authorize expenditure of up to $25,000 
to fund 25% of a feasibility study.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Inyo County Sheriff Department currently houses the Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) used to 
dispatch law, fire, and emergency medical services personnel for all Inyo County, except the City of Bishop. This 
facility is located in the Independence jail.
Two additional PSAPs exist in the region – one operated by Mono County Sheriff and housed in the Bridgeport 
jail and the other by the City of Bishop and housed in the Bishop Police Department. 
 
Over the past several months, executives and staff (including administrators and public safety personnel) from 
Mono County, Inyo County, the Town of Mammoth Lakes, and the City of Bishop have met to discuss the 
possibility and opportunity to consolidate our three separate PSAPs into one and deliver regional dispatch 
services. Conceptually all of the players are on-board with performing and analysis, although it is clear that there 
are a great number of details which will need to be better understood and worked through before positive 
decisions can be made. 
Luckily the concept of consolidated regional dispatch is not new to Mono and Inyo Counties. There is wide 
support from the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (which oversees 911 operations in 
California), as well as examples of other jurisdictions throughout the state who have gone through or are going 
through efforts such as these.
Our intention is to better understand the issues, opportunities, and constraints associated with a consolidated 
regional dispatch solution by commencing a feasibility study and associated implementation plan for our 
environment and conditions. This set of reports will provide valuable information to each of our agencies and 
help us make a decision as to whether or not to move forward, and if moving forward is agreed to, the manner in 
which we should do so.
Staff will provide an overview of the discussion which has taken place to date within the group. It also requests 
Board approval to move forward with this effort by allocating a maximum of $25,000 toward the effort. This 
money would be matched by equal contributions from other agencies and be used toward the development of 
the necessary study.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to participate in discussions regarding consolidated regional dispatch.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
$25,000 is budgeted in Object Code 5265 in the CAO - General Budget (Budget Unit #010200) 
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Clint Quilter Created/Initiated - 9/23/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/23/2019
Clint Quilter Approved - 9/23/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 9/24/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/25/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/25/2019
Clint Quilter Approved - 9/25/2019
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 9/25/2019



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Emergency Services 
 
SUBJECT:  Continuation of Declaration of Local Emergency 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board discuss and consider continuation of the local emergency that was proclaimed as the result of 
Taboose Fire.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On the evening of September 4, 2019, a wildfire located southwest of Big Pine and northwest of the community 
of Aberdeen, began in the steep and rocky terrain at the base of the Eastern Sierras. 

Fire crews worked throughout the night to suppress the now named Taboose Fire, to an estimated 380 acres 
with 30% containment. 

The Taboose Fire jumped containment lines on the evening of September 7th, when sustained 40-50 mph winds 
produced spot fires, which reignited the area causing significant fire growth overnight. Within a 24 hour period, 
the Taboose Fire had increased in acreage to 10,500 and the fire containment was reduced to 10%. 

Additional fire resources to help with suppression efforts arrived quickly and were aided by support from retardant 
and water drops from air tankers and helicopters.

Dry vegetation, hot temperatures and extreme erratic wind events, like the one that occurred on September 7th, 
will continue to be a threat to life and property until the Taboose Fire is fully contained. Inyo County is relying on 
the additional firefighting resources and support until the Taboose Fire is completely extinguished. 

Protection of life and property must be the priority.  As such, on September 10, 2019, your Board declared a local 
emergency by approving Resolution No. 2019-43, in order to help ensure adequate resources and equipment are 
available in a timely manner.

Per State law, the governing body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at least once every 
60 days until the governing body terminates the local emergency.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/25/2019
Kelley Williams Approved - 9/25/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 9/25/2019



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Emergency Services 
 
SUBJECT:  Continuation of Existence of Local Emergency 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board discuss and consider staff’s recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency 
known as the “Here It Comes Emergency” that was proclaimed in anticipation of run-off conditions from near-
record snowpack posing extreme peril to the safety of property and persons in Inyo County.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
During your March 28, 2017 Board of Supervisors meeting your Board took action to approve Resolution 2017-15 
proclaiming the existence of a local emergency, which has been named the Here It Comes Emergency, in 
anticipation of run-off conditions from near-record snowpack posing extreme peril to the safety of property and 
persons in Inyo County and which are likely beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and 
facilities of the County of Inyo. During your June 27, 2017 meeting, your Board took action to amend Resolution 
2017-15 to recognize that the County moved from the Preparedness stage to the Response stage, and to include 
new damages and impacts that have occurred in the operational area. 

Per State law, the governing body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at least once every 
60 days until the governing body terminates the local emergency. Staff recommends the Board continue this 
review, and that Resolution 2017-15 be updated as necessary, until further evaluation of conditions are 
completed and staff makes the recommendation to end the emergency. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/24/2019
Kelley Williams Approved - 9/25/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 9/25/2019



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Emergency Services 
 
SUBJECT:  Continuation of Declaration of Local Emergency 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board discuss and consider staff’s recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency 
known as the “Rocky Road Emergency” that was proclaimed as the result of flooding, mud, and rock landslides 
and deep snow drifts over portions of Inyo County caused by an atmospheric river weather phenomena that 
began January 3, 2017 and continued throughout February.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
During your February 7, 2017 Board of Supervisors meeting your Board took action to approve Resolution 2017-
04 declaring a local emergency, which has been named The Rocky Road Emergency, and was the result of an 
atmospheric river weather phenomena that began January 3, 2017 and caused flooding, mud, and rock 
landslides and deep snow drifts over portions of Inyo County. Since the circumstances and conditions relating to 
this emergency persist, your Board directed that the continuation of the declaration be considered on a routine 
basis. On March 7, 2017, your Board amended Resolution 2017-04 to further extend the continuation of the 
emergency and also add language to include additional damages that occurred in the latter half of January and 
into February. 

Per State law, the governing body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at least once every 
60 days until the governing body terminates the local emergency.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/25/2019
Kelley Williams Approved - 9/25/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 9/25/2019



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meetings of September 10, 2019 and 
September 17, 2019.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/24/2019
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 9/25/2019



County of Inyo

Public Works - Town Water Systems
 

TIMED ITEMS - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 1, 2019 

FROM:  Katie Paterson 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing and Possible Approval of New Town Water System Rates 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
PUBLIC WORKS - 11 A.M. - Request Board: A) hold a public hearing to receive and consider input on proposed 
increases in the County's rates and charges for water service; and B) if the Board finds and determines that it has 
not received written protests to the proposed rates and charges from a majority of the affected parcels, then 
approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign Resolution No. 2019-46, approving new or increased rates for 
town water system services.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On February 5, 2019 Raftelis, Inyo County’s consultant preparing the water rate study, presented a workshop to 
the Board. The workshop recommended transitioning to a flat rate billing rather than a consumption charge, and 
outlined current water rates, proposed rates and bill impacts as well as a surcharge to Independence rate-payers 
that would be imposed on Independence customers to pay back the cost of emergency repairs to transmission 
main between the systems storage tanks and town.  
 
On June 5th and 6th Inyo County Public Works along with Raftelis hosted two workshops - one in Independence 
and one in Lone Pine. The workshops provided a chance for the community to come out and learn the steps in 
conducting a water rate study, proposed rates and bill impacts, additional water supply cost allocations and the 
fees associated with the Independence surcharge.  
 
Two options for an overall increase to revenues were presented. Option 1 included a 30% increase in October 
2019 with four annual 10% increases that would take place on July 1 of every year after. Option 2 included a 
50% increase with a subsequent annual increases 10% the following July and 5% increases for three years after 
that. At these workshops, attendees were asked for their preference by show of hands. The overwhelming 
majority of each group preferred the 50% increase option (see attached).
 
Before the Board may impose new or increased fees (water rates), it must follow a notice and hearing process 
specified by the California Constitution (Article XIIID, section 6, which was added by Proposition 218). The 
process involves mailing a notice to property owners about the proposed fee and advising them of the 
date/time/place of a public hearing regarding the proposed fee. The public hearing cannot be held less than 45 
days after the mailing of the notices. After the public hearing, the County can impose the fee as long as it didn’t 
receive written protests from a majority of the affected property owners.
 
On August 07, 2019 the County mailed notices in accordance with Proposition 218 to property owners and 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

tenants notifying them of the proposed rate increase and the date/time/place of the public hearing. Please see 
attached Public Notice outlining residential and non-residential water rate increases. 
 
The public notice did not include the $6.34 surcharge for the Independence rate payers that would have been 
applied in addition to their regular water bill. If approved this surcharge would be applied to each customer for a 5 
year duration to pay back the cost of emergency repairs to the transmission main, including acquisition of a 12” 
HDPE line that will be converted to a permanent main line at a future date. As this issue is specific to the 
Independence residents, Public Works intends to bring this surcharge before the Board in the future for the 
Independence residents input and, if desired, the public hearing process for an Independence surcharge.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
On February 5, 2019 Raftelis, Inyo County’s consultant preparing the water rate study, presented a workshop to 
the Board. The workshop recommended transitioning to a flat rate billing rather than a consumption charge, and 
outlined current water rates, proposed rates and bill impacts as well as a surcharge to Independence rate-payers 
that would be imposed on Independence customers to pay back the cost of emergency repairs to transmission 
main between the systems storage tanks and town.  
 
On June 5th and 6th Inyo County Public Works along with Raftelis hosted two workshops - one in Independence 
and one in Lone Pine. The workshops provided a chance for the community to come out and learn the steps in 
conducting a water rate study, proposed rates and bill impacts, additional water supply cost allocations and the 
fees associated with the Independence surcharge.  
 
Two options for an overall increase to revenues were presented. Option 1 included a 30% increase in October 
2019 with four annual 10% increases that would take place on July 1 of every year after. Option 2 included a 
50% increase with a subsequent annual increases 10% the following July and 5% increases for three years after 
that. At these workshops, attendees were asked for their preference by show of hands. The overwhelming 
majority of each group preferred the 50% increase option (see attached).
 
Before the Board may impose new or increased fees (water rates), it must follow a notice and hearing process 
specified by the California Constitution (Article XIIID, section 6, which was added by Proposition 218). The 
process involves mailing a notice to property owners about the proposed fee and advising them of the 
date/time/place of a public hearing regarding the proposed fee. The public hearing cannot be held less than 45 
days after the mailing of the notices. After the public hearing, the County can impose the fee as long as it didn’t 
receive written protests from a majority of the affected property owners.
 
On August 07, 2019 the County mailed notices in accordance with Proposition 218 to property owners and 
tenants notifying them of the proposed rate increase and the date/time/place of the public hearing. Please see 
attached Public Notice outlining residential and non-residential water rate increases. 
 
The public notice did not include the $6.34 surcharge for the Independence rate payers that would have been 
applied in addition to their regular water bill. If approved this surcharge would be applied to each customer for a 5 
year duration to pay back the cost of emergency repairs to the transmission main, including acquisition of a 12” 
HDPE line that will be converted to a permanent main line at a future date. As this issue is specific to the 
Independence residents, Public Works intends to bring this surcharge before the Board in the future for the 
Independence residents input and, if desired, the public hearing process for an Independence surcharge.
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A



Agenda Request 
Page 3

 
FINANCING:
Ultimately increase revenue to the Town Water Systems by 50% in the initial year, additional 10% in FY 20/21, 
and an additional 5% in FY 21/22, FY 22/23, and FY 23/24. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo County Prop 218 Public Hearing Notice
2. Water System Rates Resolution
 
APPROVALS:
Katie Paterson Created/Initiated - 9/19/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/19/2019
Katie Paterson Approved - 9/25/2019
Michael Errante Approved - 9/25/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/25/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/25/2019
Michael Errante Final Approval - 9/25/2019



 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED WATER RATE INCREASES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on Tuesday, October 01, 2019, at 11:00 a.m., a public hearing will 
be held at the Board of Supervisor’s Room in the County Administration Center located at 224 North 
Edwards, in Independence, California to consider proposed increases in the County’s rates and 
charges for water service. If the proposed rate increase is approved, the proposed rates will be effective 
October 1, 2019.

WHY IS THE COUNTY PROPOSING RATE INCREASES?
Inyo County is committed to efficiently provide the highest quality services at the lowest possible rates 
for its water customers. To meet this commitment, the County evaluates the water system’s operational 
and maintenance costs as well as infrastructure needs. Much of the Inyo County’s Town Water Systems 
infrastructure has reached, or is reaching the end of its functional lifespan. The County hired Raftelis 
Financial Consultants, Inc. to prepare a detailed 2018 Water Rate Study to determine how best to 
recover the projected costs necessary to operate, maintain and provide capital infrastructure 
improvements needed to continue to deliver a reliable and safe water supply to our customers. The 
Board of Supervisors received the report on February 5, 2019 and based on the Water Rate Study, 
determined that rate adjustments are needed to continue providing a reliable water supply. 

PUBLIC HEARING AND PROTEST PROCEEDINGS
Any record owner of a parcel or tenant who is a water utility customer may submit a written protest to 
the proposed rate changes. Written protests may be submitted in person at the Public Hearing or mailed 
to the Board Clerk at P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526. Protests must be received before the 
close of the October 01, 2019 public hearing. Each protest must clearly identify the property or account 
(by assessor’s parcel number or street address), reference the proposed water rate increases and must 
include the printed or typed name and signature of the property owner or tenant. To ensure the 
authenticity of protests, protests cannot be accepted by telephone, e-mail, or social media sites such as 
Facebook or Twitter. Oral comments at the public hearing will qualify as formal protests of the proposed 
rate increases only if accompanied by a written protest as described above. If a majority of the affected 
property owners or customers submit timely written protests, the County cannot adopt the proposed 
increases. The owner or tenant of any property receiving County service may submit a protest. 
However, only one protest per parcel will be counted. Written protests must be timely submitted, not 
withdrawn by the owner or tenant, and represent a majority (50% + 1) of the total number of parcels 
subject to the proposed charge in order to reject the proposed rate increases.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
The utility rate study detailing the Water Systems budget and rate derivations that was presented in 
public meetings as well as the complete report from Raftelis will be available on the County’s website at 
www.inyocounty.us

PROPOSED BI-MONTHLY BASE SERVICE CHARGES
Currently, residential and non-residential customers pay a bi-monthly base service charge by meter size 
plus a minimum bi-monthly water usage fee of $3.90 up to 12 consumption units. The County will 
maintain a bi-monthly structure, based on the proposed following fixed flat rate:

RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS:

Commercial rates can be found on the reverse side of this notice

Meter 
Size

Current 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge

Proposed 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge
FY 2020

Proposed 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge
FY 2021

Proposed 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge 
FY 2022

Proposed 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge
FY 2023

Proposed 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge
FY 2024

3/4” $60.66 $88.72 $97.60 $102.48 $107.62 $113.02
Lifeline $32.28 $44.38 $48.82 $51.28 $53.86 $56.56 

http://www.inyocounty.us/


 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED WATER RATE INCREASES

NON RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS:

Meter 
Size

Current 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge

Proposed 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge
FY 2020

Proposed 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge
FY 2021

Proposed 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge 
FY 2022

Proposed 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge
FY 2023

Proposed 
Bi-Monthly 

Charge
FY 2024

1” $84.72 $147.84 $162.64 $170.78 $179.32 $188.30
1 1/2" $110.76 $295.72 $325.30 $341.58 $358.66 $376.60

2” $131.62 $473.14 $520.46 $546.50 $573.84 $602.54
3” $238.10 $946.24 $1040.88 $1,092.94 $1,147.60 $1,204.98
4” $338.26 $1,478.50 $1,626.36 $1,707.68 $1,793.08 $1,882.74
6” $561.58 $2,957.02 $3,252.74 $3,415.38 $3,586.16 $3,765.48

If you have any questions regarding the proposed increases or how to submit a written protest, contact 
Katie Paterson, at (760) 878-0208 or kpaterson@inyocounty.us

Si desea recibir este aviso en español, póngase en contacto con Katie Paterson al (760) 878-0208 o por 
correo electrónico al kpaterson@inyocounty.us

mailto:kpaterson@inyocounty.us


RESOLUTION NO. ___________

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING

NEW OR INCREASED RATES FOR TOWN WATER SYSTEM SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County operates water systems in the towns of Laws, Independence, 
and Lone Pine, and has historically billed water system customers for services provided 
based on usage as measured by water meters; and   

WHEREAS, the County commissioned a study by Raftelis to analyze the County’s 
rates for water system services and offer recommendations for any rate adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the Raftelis study (entitled “Inyo County Water Department Water Rate 
Study” and incorporated herein by this reference) recommended that rates be increased over 
a period of years and that the County transition from a meter-based billing system to a flat 
fee approach, with different rates charged to residential and non-residential customers; and   

WHEREAS, the Board considered those recommendations and directed staff to 
proceed with workshops and public noticing in order so that the Board could potentially 
adopt the recommended rates: and

WHEREAS, the County mailed written notices regarding the proposed new or 
increased rates for town water system services to affected property owners and water system 
customers in accordance with the requirements of Article XIIID, section 6, of the California 
Constitution, informing them of their rights to protest the proposed rates and provide 
testimony at a public hearing, which was also duly noticed in the newspaper; and

WHEREAS, the County has conducted the public hearing and has tallied any written 
protests received, and has determined that it did not receive such protests from a majority of 
the total number of affected parcels; and 

WHEREAS, based on the testimony presented at the public hearing as well as the oral 
and written staff reports also presented to the Board in connection with the hearing, the 
Board finds and determines that the service charges (water rates) set forth in this Resolution 
will not exceed the County’s reasonable costs of providing the services for which the fees are 
charged, are not excessive or discriminatory, and that the manner in which those costs are 
allocated to the fee payers bears a reasonable relationship to the payers’ benefits received 
from the services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the County 
of Inyo that the schedule of water rates for town water system services, attached as Exhibit A 
of this resolution, is hereby approved and the new or increased rates set forth in that schedule 
shall be effective immediately. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of 
California, this 1st day of October 2019, by the following vote:



AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

______________________________________
Chairperson
INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

ATTEST:  Clint Quilter
    Clerk of the Board

by: ______________________________ 
Darcy Ellis, Assistant



EXHIBIT “A”

RATES FOR TOWN WATER SYSTEM SERVICES*

RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS:

Meter 
Size

Bi-Monthly 
Charge

FY 2019-20

Bi-Monthly 
Charge

FY 2020-21

Bi-Monthly 
Charge 

FY 2021-22

Bi-Monthly 
Charge

FY 2022-23

Bi-Monthly 
Charge

FY 23-24
3/4” $88.72 $97.60 $102.48 $107.62 $113.02

Lifeline $44.38 $48.82 $51.28 $53.86 $56.56 

NON RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS:

Meter 
Size

Bi-Monthly 
Charge

FY 2019-20

Bi-Monthly 
Charge

FY 2020-21

Bi-Monthly 
Charge 

FY 2021-22

Bi-Monthly 
Charge

FY 2022-23

Bi-Monthly 
Charge

FY 2023-24
1” $147.84 $162.64 $170.78 $179.32 $188.30

1 1/2" $295.72 $325.30 $341.58 $358.66 $376.60
2” $473.14 $520.46 $546.50 $573.84 $602.54
3” $946.24 $1040.88 $1,092.94 $1,147.60 $1,204.98
4” $1,478.50 $1,626.36 $1,707.68 $1,793.08 $1,882.74
6” $2,957.02 $3,252.74 $3,415.38 $3,586.16 $3,765.48

*Note: rates are shown as bi-monthly, but the County reserves the right to use monthly 
billing (at half the bi-monthly rate) in its discretion.


	 Meeting Date
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATIO
	3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGA
	4. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY&rsquo;S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [

	 Open Session
	5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	7. PUBLIC COMMENT
	8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two
	9. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will b
	10. PROCLAMATION - Supervisor Kingsley - Request Board
	Agenda Request Form
	AHNSA Dedication Proclamation
	Event Flier


	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	11. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form

	12. Request Board approve the job description for the
	Agenda Request Form
	Social Services Aide Job Description


	 Consent Agenda
	13. Request Board approve Resolution No. 2019-44, titl
	Agenda Request Form
	SNC_ForestHealth_PreApplicationForm_updated090619
	SNC_ForestHealth_DetailedBudgetWorksheet
	Authorization_Resolution

	14. Request Board authorize payment to the Town of Mam
	Agenda Request Form
	FY 18-19 Invoice

	15. Request Board approve and authorize the Chairperso
	Agenda Request Form
	Letter in Support ESTA FTA Grant 2019

	16. Request Board approve final payments from the 2018
	Agenda Request Form
	Final Report  FOI BIRD FESTIVAL 8.28.2019
	Final Request LP Chamber 2019 Music in Courtyard
	Final Request LP Chamber 2019 Photo Contest

	17. Request Board amend the July 9, 2019 minutes and c
	Agenda Request Form
	20190709InfoServices-CanonFinancialServicesContractAmendment1
	20190108InfoServices - CanonFinancialServicesContract

	18. Request Board approve the Prevention Early Interve
	Agenda Request Form
	PEI Evaluation Report 

	19. Request Board: A) approve an amendment to the Augu
	Agenda Request Form
	20190806HHS-PublicHealth-RatifyCDPHHIV-AIDSProgramAgreement
	Contract Certification Clause

	20. Request Board: A) approve the plans and specificat
	Agenda Request Form
	Mazourka Shop Fencing Project Bid Package
	Mazourka Shop Fence Plans

	21. Request Board approve the purchase of one Caterpil
	Agenda Request Form
	QUOTE Inyo Co Road 918M_rev2
	918M

	22. Request Board approve the closure of a portion of
	Agenda Request Form
	Event Map

	23. Request Board approve the closure of a portion of
	Agenda Request Form
	Parade Route

	24. Request Board approve the closure of a portion of
	Agenda Request Form
	2019 Event Map


	 Departmental
	25. Request Board ratify and approve Standard Agreemen
	Agenda Request Form
	Grant w Exhibits
	Contract Certification Clause
	Darfur Contracting Act Certification
	CIVIL RIGHTS FORM
	HIV Surveillance submittal information

	26. Request Board: 
A) amend the Fiscal Year 2019-2020
	Agenda Request Form
	2019 US DEA OCDETF grant

	27. Request Board ratify and approve the July 1, 2019-
	Agenda Request Form
	LEAA MOU 2019-2022

	28. Request Board consider approving and authorizing t
	Agenda Request Form
	Green Waste Fee Waiver Resolution October 2019

	29. Request Board: A) conduct workshop regarding regio
	Agenda Request Form

	30. Request Board discuss and consider continuation of
	Agenda Request Form

	31. Request Board discuss and consider staff’s recomme
	Agenda Request Form

	32. Request Board discuss and consider staff’s recomme
	Agenda Request Form

	33. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Timed Items
	34. PUBLIC WORKS - 11 A.M. - Request Board: A) hold a
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County Prop 218 Public Hearing Notice
	Water System Rates Resolution


	 Comment
	35. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports

	Text1: 
	Federal ID Number: 
	By Authorized Signature: 
	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 
	mm/dd/yyyy: 
	County: 
	State: 
	Print Name: 


